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Based in Hong Kong, PYI Corporation Limited focuses on
ports and infrastructure development and investment,
and the operation of ports and logistics facilities, in the
Yangtze River region of China. It also engages in land and
property development and investment in association with
ports and infrastructure development, securities trading
and investment, and provision of loan financing services.
In addition, PYI provides comprehensive engineering and
property-related services through Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

2018 2017

Revenue of the Group (HK$m) KEBZHA(BEEET) 624 554
Gross proceeds from securities trading of the Group K& @~ 2% B & 15 X8 458

(HK$m) (BBAT) 59 12
Share of revenue of associates and joint ventures — #(hEs & NI RA LR E KA

(HK$m) (B8ET) 3,642 3,847
Total revenue and gross proceeds (HK$m) WAKFEZEAEAT(BEEST) 4,325 4,413
Gross profit (HK$m) EM(BEET) 196 172
Earnings before interest expense and tax (HK$m) k&t F 8B RRATEMN (&5 T) 768 41
Earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation R&rFIEMAY - FE -TEK

and amortisation (“EBITDA") (HK$m) a1 2% (TEBITDAD) (BB #T) 889 97
Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders (HK$m) R EE A () (B &8 T) 477 (34)
Shares in issue (m) EEITRH (BER) 5,520 4,587
Net asset value' per share (HK$) FREEFE (BT) 0.85 0.87
Earnings (loss) per share (HK$) k& (EE) (Br) 0.088 (0.007)
Dividend per share (HK$) SRS GET) 0 0
Total assets (HK$m) REE(BEBIL 8,119 7,782
Quick assets? (HK$m) FEEE(BAEET) 1,871 923
Net current assets (HK$m) REYEEFE(EEBIT) 2,660 792
Net debt?® (HK$m) FAB(BEE&ET) 437 1,193
Shareholders’ funds' (HK$m) RERES (BEEET) 4,712 4,009
Capital employed* (HK$m) BEFHAEe(BBETL) 5,420 4,550
Current ratio® VIR 4.11 1.49
Quick ratio® B KO 2.19 0.57
Net debt/equity ratio’ FAESEN R 0.09 0.30
Gearing ratio® BN B E L xR 0.26 0.47
Return on equity® % 2 Ui 25 ° 10.1% -0.8%
Return on capital employed'® EBAES k=" 17.8% 2.0%
Total shareholder return’! R R B Uz -12% -8%

1

2

Prl

The amount for each of net asset value or shareholders’ funds is equivalent to the amount of equity attributable to owners of PYI

BEFEIRREGZHEMSENREREARGREZZEHE

Quick assets represent current assets less inventories, stock of properties and current portion of prepaid lease payments

RPEERRNDEERTE VEFERENEERBEZRDEDH

Net debt represents bank borrowings less cash, bank balances and deposits

FABERITERRRE  RITEFREFK

Capital employed represents the sum of shareholders’ funds and non-current borrowings. Non-current borrowings of HK$708 million as at 31 March

2018 (2017: HK$541 million) are the sum of non-current portion of (i) bank and other borrowings and (ii) amounts due to non-controlling interests which

are interest bearing

EOFAESERTRESRIFMBERZEM - R2018F3A31H 2 FREERA7.08EHE T (2017 : 5.41BFT) - BORTRHEMET
R B BN SEE R R IR Z FEMB A 5 2 870

Current ratio measures the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

B ERGFERDEERRBDABHLLE

Quick ratio measures the ratio of quick assets to current liabilities

RPLRGEEHEERRDABHLLE

Net debt/equity ratio measures the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ funds

FEE/ERLRFEFEEERRESNL X

Gearing ratio measures the ratio of total borrowings to shareholders’ funds

EREBLEAEGRATEEARTESNLE

Return on equity measures the net profit or loss attributable to shareholders as a percentage of shareholders’ funds

EKEFERREGRFRMNNBEORRESNEDL

Return on capital employed measures the EBITDA as a percentage of the average capital employed over the year

EPRESUEFEBMAMFAEDRESTHENA ST

Total shareholder return represents change in share price (ex dividend) over each financial year plus dividend paid during that year. The figure of -12%

for 2018 is the percentage change from closing share price of HK$0.165 at 31 March 2017 to HK$0.145 at 31 March 2018.

BRAKSERE(BRE)NRSVBRFENEIMFANE XNMNORE < 2018F 2 BF-12% HHE2017F3A3MB 2 RH KT E0.165ETE

201843 A31H Z0. 145/%7EE’J§/JJ\H:@ °

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report



Financial Highlights
MBRE
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Chairman’s Statement

ETREES

At 31 March 2018, shareholders’ funds increased
to HK$4,712 million, representing net asset value

per share of HK$0.85. PYI will continue to maintain a
prudent approach in refining its strategy to strengthen
the long-term value of the Group.

R2018%F3A31H » RREZBMEA7.128% T » HIER
BEEFE085ET - REKBBERISEENECEBLRE -
DURa ARl REE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of PYl Corporation
Limited (“PYI"” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018. The Group
recorded a consolidated revenue of about HK$624 million (2017:
HK$554 million), representing an increase of 13% from that of
the preceding year. Net profit for the year attributable to the
owners of PYl was about HK$477 million (2017: net loss of
HK$34 million), and basic earnings per share was HK8.8 cents
(2017: basic loss per share of HK0.7 cent). Shareholders’ funds
increased by 18% to about HK$4,712 million (2017: HK$4,009
million), representing net asset value per share of HK$0.85 (2017:
HK$0.87).

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) has resolved not to
recommend payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2018 (2017: Nil).

During the year under review, PYl maintained a prudent
approach in refining its strategy to strengthen the long-term
value of the Group. In September 2017, PYI completed the
disposal of 45% interest in Nantong Port Group, recognised a
net gain after tax of HK$693 million and received the full
consideration after tax in the sum of HK$1,812 million in cash.
The ports and logistics business of PYI delivered stable
performance during the year, which most of our ports recorded
a satisfactory increase in both cargo throughput and container
throughput. A detailed review of our operations during the year
is set out in the Business Review section.

EARLAR

RNAMRAR BTE2REREFEEFR 2 AR
Z|gAQA ) REMNBRAR(ABIE£E]) &
F2018F3A3MAIEFEMELE - SEHBEL
AU AE6.241E BT (2017 - 5548 T) W=
FIEM13% - REHFEEABEFEEFFRELH
47718 AL (2017 : BEF 34008 B L) * &
BRERNAFNABLSENWQ017: BREREIE
0.78M) - RRESIEIMI18% E 47128 E T
(2017 : 40.0918 B L) » BN BRI & EF{E0.85/%8
7t (2017 : 0.878 L) °

RESEBESR(ESRNDERRTERIKN
HE2018F3A3MHIEFE 2 KK E (2017 ¢
7)o

EIEFAN RERFFENEEZELRRE A
WA AREBY REEME - R2017F 98 » RER
MEEmMBEBNEBAS%ERD I HR693E
BB FRE LR 2 RERES L1812
BELRS REBORYREKFTRARER
- RBABOZEMELERERBEETLE
HEEREEE B AEEFTFRNZEBKE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

In June 2018, World Bank forecasted that global economic
growth would strengthen to 3.1% for 2018. The GDP growth
of China for the full year of 2017 and the first quarter of 2018
was 6.9% and 6.8% respectively. Despite the sign of recovery,
the overall economic environment was still challenging.

In light of current government policies which assert particular
emphasis on the more efficient utilisation of port assets in
Yangtze River region by way of consolidation of ownership and
operations, PYI will, in line with such policies, continue to focus
on capturing opportunities to further crystalise the value of its
Yangtze Strategy. With a strengthened balance sheet following
the disposal of Nantong Port Group and placement of new
shares and while expanding our treasury investment and
securities trading business and diversifying into provision of
financial services, PYl is poised to explore new and alternative
business and investment opportunities.

PYI continues to pursue effective internal control measures and
endeavours to enhance the quality of our overall corporate
governance measures. We maintained transparent
communications with investors and stakeholders, persisted to
pursue consistent and effective internal control and audit
programs, and offered relevant trainings across our offices in
the Mainland.

PY| demonstrated a strong commitment to corporate social
responsibility addressing on education and youth development
by sponsoring educational exchange program for students
coming from Nantong for twelve years. During the year, PYI also
donated, together with Paul Y. Engineering, HK$1 million to
Friends of Hope Education Fund to support their educational
works in the Mainland and Hong Kong. For the tenth
consecutive years, we were awarded with the title of “Caring
Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
recognition to our corporate citizenship and our ongoing effort
in caring the community.

P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBES

Details of the Group's corporate governance practices and
corporate social responsibilities are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report and Business Review.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to Mr Edmond Mok, former independent non-
executive director, for his invaluable contribution to the Group's
development in the past years. | would like to extend my
warmest welcome to Mr Leung Chung Ki to join our Board as
an independent non-executive director and am confident that
the Group will benefit from his wealth of experience in banking
industry.

| wish to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
my fellow Board members for their valuable guidance and
monitoring to the Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like
to express our appreciation to the Group's staff for their
dedication and contribution that gives impetus to the
development of the Group. | would also like to send our
gratitude to our shareholders, clients and partners for their
continuous support and confidence to the Group. | wish them
all prosperity and continued success in the coming year.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Business Review
EXEBER

PYI will stay in line with China’s national
policy and general development directions
on implementation of our Yangtze Strategy.
RESEENRERERTIRIENSSHEDEERK
RRBEBRAIARE—H -
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i
MINSHENG GAS B4 5 &
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Business Review

RIFER

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

Ports and Logistics

The ports and logistics business of PYI delivered stable
performance during the year, which most of our ports recorded
a satisfactory increase in both cargo throughput and container
throughput. Nonetheless, PYI takes heed of the challenging
economic landscape ahead through enhancement of operational
efficiency measures.

Nantong Port Group (45% owned before disposal on
14 September 2017)

Nantong Port Group contributed about HK$891 million (2017:
HK$62 million) to the segment’s profit for the year, which
comprised the gain on disposal of the Group’s 45% equity
interest in Nantong Port Group of about HK$848 million (2017:
Nil) and share of its result by the Group up to the date of
disposal on 14 September 2017 of about HK$43 million (2017:
HK$62 million). A tax charge of about HK$155 million (2017:
Nil) in relation to the disposal was recognised in the consolidated
income statement during the year.

In coping with Nantong Municipal Government’s plan for the
consolidation of port assets in the city, which would also serve
as a good opportunity for the Group to realise a considerable
gain and to generate cash inflow to diversify and explore other
business prospects and investment opportunities, a conditional
agreement for the disposal of the Group’s 45% equity interest
in Nantong Port Group Limited was entered into on 21 July
2017. The disposal was completed on 14 September 2017. Full
consideration after tax in the sum of about HK$1,812 million in
cash was received by 21 September 2017.

CEOERXBERR

BORYR
ERCREEORMAEBRRET ABH
BOZENELERELHALELHERE
MIE - REM REMTIIEANAKBED
EEBETEBEBIZA S ERE 2SI
FE 4 o

HEBOLEBE(R2017F95 148 4 E 5
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Business Review

EBESR

Yichang Port Group (51% owned)

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$34 million (2017:
HK$37 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year. Its
total logistics services, though having a lower profit margin,
captured the growing demand of multi-modal transportation
and storage successfully boosted the cargo throughput and
revenue during the year.

Yichang Port is situated on the Yangtze River near the Three
Gorges Dam in Yichang, Hubei Province. Yichang Port Group is
principally engaged in transport logistics and minor properties
investments, providing transportation, cargo loading and
discharging, storage, as well as container services in its
62.4%-owned Yunchi terminals, shipping agent, cargo agent,
port logistics and port equipment rental services and
commaodities trading in Yichang Port.

Annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 increased by 19% to about 10 million
tonnes (2017: 8.4 million tonnes). Its annual container
throughput decreased by 4% to about 160,000 TEUs (2017:
167,000 TEUs).

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)
Jiangyin Sunan contributed an operating profit of about HK$11
million (2017: HK$10 million) to the Group, which was
benefited from the increased container throughput during the
year. On the other hand, a one-off write-off of premium on
land acquisition rights of about HK$18 million (2017: Nil) was
shared by the Group, which resulted in a net loss by Jiangyin
Sunan of about HK$7 million attributable to the segment’s
operating result.

Jiangyin Sunan is situated at New Harbour District of New
Harbour City in Jiangyin City and occupies a land area of 0.49
sg km, shorelines of 589 m long at outer port and 1,090 m long
at inner port with 11 berths. It is principally engaged in
containers loading and discharging as well as the storage,
maintenance, washing and leasing of containers.

Annual container throughput of Jiangyin Sunan in 2017
increased by 14% to about 541,000 TEUs (2016: 476,000
TEUs).

HEEBEKEE (HEE51% &)

FAN BEERBEEAASHBEBEE R L
3,4008 87T (2017 : 3,700BET) - BEE 2R
MAERBKAREBENFBEER BEEBEKEENDIE
BT2ABEBERAFAZERENB R ZHE
REREBAEDELE RKA -

HEEBEMURKRIRE BRAOWILEEEET=
AR - HEEABKEEITEEEEENEESY
mMRLEMERE RHEEH BRI -2
fF URREFAA%ER 2 ENTHHEZE
KERYE MmpRE BERE - BOWRK
BOAREBHERY  UREMES -

EEABKEBEHE2018F3A3IBLFEZE
VIFBRLE EF19% Z= 41,0008 1 (2017 : 840
EHE)  c HERMBAME B 4 4%ZE160,0001E
AR (2017 £ 167,000 EZHE4E) -

TREHAFAERERRE(HEI0% )

FR - ZXEREREERL =N IR&EEA
REBER&ERMNEH1,1008 % T (2017
1,0008 8 7T) e Z—FH  REB#GEYE i
UTRERE 2B BIEE 2 — R IEM$5 491,800 8 4 7T
(2017 1 ®) B IRHHEL A B 2EE
XEBEFHEHNTIEETT °

IkEHEUNIEMEBENET SR G
049F FRE  INEHEEHZKRE A589K + W
EELRE /100K B NEBMN - HEZE
NEERMAEN BRF #E FARHEES
HERAER -

207 T EREBELEREFS

H £ 1 I114% & #7541,000 fF 12 % 45 (2016 :
476,000 EZ24) o
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Business Review

ERER

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port contributed about HK$8 million
(2017: HK$12 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the
year. Its operating result was affected by drop in foreign trade
containers throughput having a higher profit margin.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port is situated at Nanhu District of
Jiaxing City and occupies a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass
of 326,000 sg m. The port has 10 berths which are principally
engaged in loading, discharging and storage of containers. The
port also features a range of integrated logistics supporting
services such as examination, quarantine, storage and
information services, etc.

Annual container throughput of Jiaxing International Feeder
Port for the year ended 31 March 2018 increased by 13% to
about 186,000 TEUs (2017: 164,000 TEUs).

LPG, CNG and Logistics (100% owned)

The LPG and CNG distribution and logistics businesses of
Minsheng Gas achieved an operating profit of about HK$1
million (2017: breakeven segment result). However, accelerated
depreciation and amortisation in value of LPG fueling station
assets (including LPG plant and machinery and related intangible
assets) in total of about HK$69 million (2017: Nil) were charged
to distribution and selling expenses and an impairment write-
down in value of its LPG storage-tank farm of about HK$148
million (2017: Nil) was made during the year. This resulted in a
net loss by Minsheng Gas of about HK$216 million (2017:
breakeven result) attributable to the segment’s operating result.

EERATEREE (HEEI0% Exw)

ERBEANTEERBEARND B2 L LHEN
B B #8008 & 7 (2017 : 1,2008 78 7T) » A &
BNMEBERZNEEEMTEERD  AREL

FERATERBEUNZEME AR FEE
570K R (5 #532.6 & ¥ 77 K - BB B 10 @ AR
VTEERFERBROREFMER - ZBAN
RHtmE BE ERIAREARBS - R
BUHEYIR SE R o

HE2018F3A31H L FE » 5 80 BRI
S EREFAL S IN13% E 4 186,000 &2
EFE (2017 164,000 E1Z4E4E) -

BIELAHR BEXARRYR(EEF
100% # 7 )
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Business Review

ERER

Currently, Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest LPG
storage-tank farm and a river terminal in mid-stream Yangtze,
and has eight LPG and five CNG automotive fueling stations in
Wuhan City. Five LPG fueling stations had been transformed to
CNG in prior years with a view to improve profit margin. The
aforesaid charges and write-downs on LPG business related
assets during the year reflected the current market conditions
and the necessity to plan for the conversion of all of the
remaining LPG fueling stations into CNG in the near future to
strengthen the profitability and sale performance of Minsheng
Gas. Minsheng Gas is also considering its options in exploring
new market opportunities in line with the nation-wide
promotion of liquefied natural gas.

Ports Development

Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

The Group’s 9.9% equity interest in Yangkou Port Co did not
contribute dividend income to the segment’s operating profit
for the year (2017: Nil).

Yangkou Port is an offshore type deep-sea harbour along the
South East Coast of Jiangsu Province, which declared soft open
in October 2008. Strategically located near the mouth of the
Yangtze River, Yangkou Port is ideally situated to become one
of China’s largest trans-shipment hubs for dry and liquid bulk
cargoes.

PYI continues to enjoy the future growth of Yangkou Port
through the 9.9% equity interest, which is intended to be held
for long-term investment purpose and is classified as an
investment in equity instrument. As at 31 March 2018, the
investment in Yangkou Port Co was stated at fair value of about
HK$405 million (2017: HK$359 million).

BAT REAMEALZERTFHRANR
fthmREEREL R — BRI BRI AENE
mHEAENERIEABRARIERERARTE
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HAMNMSHE ZERY B2 EMHERERL
RARR L

BORRE

FHEOEB(HEEII%EZE)
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Business Review

ERER

Engineering Business

Paul Y. Engineering (48.2% owned)

Paul Y. Engineering contributed about HK$15 million (2017:
HK$29 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year
ended 31 March 2018. Its performance was being affected by
the increase in staff costs and legal and professional fees.

During the year, Paul Y. Engineering recorded a revenue of
about HK$6,800 million (2017: HK$6,954 million) and secured
new contracts of about HK$9,844 million (2017: HK$9,657
million) in aggregate value. As at 31 March 2018, the total value
of contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was about
HK$31,538 million (2017: HK$27,227 million) and the value of
work remaining was about HK$15,090 million (2017:
HK$11,424 million). Paul Y. Engineering will continue to explore
new development opportunities in overseas markets and to
expand the local construction business by using cautious
tendering strategies.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated
to providing full-fledged engineering and property services, with
operations in Hong Kong, the Mainland, Macau, Singapore and
Malaysia. For 70 years, Paul Y. Engineering has been at the
heart of some of the most challenging and impactful
construction projects that have shaped the iconic skylines of
Hong Kong and many other cities. Its projects include
commercial and residential buildings, institutional facilities,
highways, railways, tunnels, port works, water and sewage

treatment facilities etc.
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Business Review

EBESR

Property

The property business recorded an operating profit of about
HK$95 million (2017: operating loss of about HK$10 million) for
the year. The operating profit was mainly attributable to the net
gain on fair value changes of investment properties of about
HK$128 million (2017: HK$2 million), before the relevant
deferred tax charges of about HK$61 million (2017: credit of
about HK$1 million). The operating result included provision for
doubtful receivables of about HK$32 million (2017: Nil) and net
development expenses for resort project at Xiao Yangkou of
about HK$11 million (2017: HK$8 million).

The Group has 11.5 sg km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou,
which is under development as a regional tourism site of
national standard with hotspring and recreational facilities. As
at 31 March 2018, about 6.89 sq km (2017: 6.88 sq km) out of
the 11.5 sq km land bank had reached the developing stage or
the developed and serviced stage. The development status of
the 11.5 sq km land bank was summarised as follows:

Area (sq km) Stage of development

UES

FAN - YEEBESLERFA9,5008 % T
(2017 : L E BB L1,0008 B 7T) » &£ & %5 D
FTEARBEVEZLATFEELHREZFEY
1.28(8 %70 (2017 : 2008 B L) T8 AT A
B 2 IE LR 18 3 i 496,100 8 75 70 (2017« # A
HI1008HB L) - EEEBR BB REREEL
3200887 (2017 - |) RN/ NFOERIER 2
Fi % & A F % 41,1008 % £ (2017 : 8008 /&
TT) °

REBRNFOEBNSFEFHARABEZ L0
% ZEEERAEREERLAR RKBEEREZ
B K AR [ I3 M iR 92 Bh o 7201843 A31H » 11.5
FHRRABz T REEFH6.89F 7 AE (2017
6.88FHANE)EEERBEPRNE FHENLIREE
e ZNMSTEHREZ T MR8 2 B &k i
R

Classification

HE(EFHFLAR) PR 2E

0.88 Developed land Investment properties
[ i KEME

2.00 Land under development Investment properties
2R L KEME

2.09 Developed land Stock of properties
B MEFE

1.89 Land under development Stock of properties
2R L MEFE

0.03 Developed land Prepaid lease payment
[ i TEfH A & FRIE

4.61 Pending development Project under development
Sk BRERHPIEAR

11.50

nn') REEBEER AR 2018 Fif

17



1 8 P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

Business Review

ERER

The investment properties of about 2.88 sq km are measured at
fair value of about HK$ 1,076 million (2017: HK$844 million)
and recorded a net gain on revaluation of about HK$134 million
(2017: net loss of about HK$3 million) for the year.

As at 31 March 2018, certain stock of properties amounting to
about HK$627 million (2017: HK$559 million) was stated at net
realisable value.

As at 31 March 2018, a gross floor area of about 6,000 sq m of
“Nantong International Trade Center”, a commercial and office
development in the central business district of Nantong City,
had been rented out for hotel operation and were classified as
investment properties. The investment properties recorded a loss
on fair value change of about HK$10 million for the year (2017:
Nil). The Group also holds a gross floor area of about 13,000 sq
m of “Nantong International Trade Center” for sale. The
building contributed rental income of about HK$5 million (2017:
HK$7 million) to the Group during the year.

In the main urban district of Yichang City along Yangtze River,
the Group holds certain commercial, residential and industrial
properties with gross floor area of about 133,000 sq m (inclusive
of commercial shops of about 5,000 sg m) through Yichang
Port Group for rental and were classified as investment
properties as at 31 March 2018. The investment properties
recorded a gain on fair value changes of about HK$4 million (2017:
HK$5 million) and contributed rental income of about HK$10
million (2017: HK$7 million) to the Group during the year.

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of
Bingjiang, Hangzhou City, the Group holds jointly with Paul Y.
Engineering an office building known as “Pioneer Technology
Building”, which has a gross floor area of about 20,000 sq m.
The building generated rental income of about HK$12 million
(2017: HK$12 million) during the year and its occupancy
reached about 90% as at 31 March 2018.
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Business Review

ERER

Securities

The securities business contributed about HK$14 million (2017:
HK$7 million) to the Group's operating profit for the year. The
operating profit of the current year was mainly attributable to
interest income from investments in debt instruments held for
trading acquired during the year, whereas the operating profit
of preceding year was mainly attributable to fair value gain from
investments in equity instruments held for trading.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's portfolio in securities
business mainly consisted of (a) the investment in debt
instruments held for trading amounted to about HK$320 million
(2017: Nil), equivalent to about 4% (2017: Nil) of the Group's
total assets; (b) investment in equity instruments held for trading
amounted to about HK$36 million (2017: HK$52 million),
equivalent to about 0.4% (2017: 0.6%) of the Group's total
assets; and (c) unlisted convertible securities amounted to about
HK$184 million (2017: Nil), equivalent to about 2% (2017: Nil)
of the Group’s total assets.

The Group will continue to monitor its portfolio of investments
in diversified securities products to achieve satisfactory return in
the coming year.

&5
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Business Review

EBESR

Treasury

The treasury business contributed about HK$1 million (2017:
HK$13 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year. The
operating profit of the current year was mainly attributable to
interest income from loans receivable of about HK$19 million
(2017: HK$8 million), while a provision on a loan receivable of
about HK$21 million (2017: Nil) was made during the year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's portfolio of (a) high-yield
loans receivable amounted to about HK$373 million (2017:
HK$62 million), equivalent to about 4.6% (2017: 0.8%) of the
Group's total assets; and (b) interest-bearing borrowings to an
associate of about HK$75 million (2017: HK$32 million),
equivalent to about 0.9% (2017: 0.4%) of the Group's total
assets.

The management has reviewed and repositioned the operations
of this business segment with a view to enhance value to our
shareholders, as well as exploring for business and investment
opportunities to enhance the overall return in this area.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 14 September 2017, the Group disposed of 45% equity
interest in Nantong Port Group at a consideration of about
RMB 1,667 million (equivalent to about HK$1,966 million) and it
ceased to be an associate of the Group.

Apart from the above, the Group did not have other material

acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no major subsequent events occurred since the end
of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.

20 P{IP) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

E%

FR BEEEFANER ZLEEMERL 100
BAET(2017 11,3008 7T) c AFE 22 %
MHEZHRERERZFI B U A L1,900 8 %
70 (2017 1 800&E B L) - MM EFEAREEFTIRT
U B R 2 R E B 492,100 8 78 7T (2017 © 4)
FT B -

M2018F3A31H AEEH@Qm EEXRAE
2 FE MR R # /3.7318 8 7L (2017 16,2008
BIL) MERAEERE E H46% (2017
0.8%) X (b) & W Bt & A ] 2 51 B 5K 1B 497,500 8
I (2017 1320088 T) BERAEEHEE
E#0.9% (2017 : 0.4%) °

EEEORARB B 2RLETRTREH
B URFTBREE YTRREBEKREZ
Bl EURSUHESZBROR-

EXRBREE

MR2017F9R 148 REBURBOARE
1667 L (BBER 1966 B ) HERE R
BOEE24%KE MTHEAASOSEETEAR
REEZBE QT -

B EXARE S AEERE AR hEX
WEREERBAR  BEATRAELEY
8 -

FHREHRZEER

BERABREHTHEAEARSEAHL A EE
EERBKRERE-



Business Review

EBESR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of about HK$624 million (2017: HK$554
million), representing an increase of about 13% from last year.
The growth in consolidated revenue was mainly attributable to
higher contribution from ports and logistics business segment.
After taking into account of (a) the gross proceeds from
securities trading and (b) the share of revenue of associates and
joint ventures, the total revenue and gross proceeds were about
HK$4,325 million (2017: HK$4,413 million), representing a
decrease of 2% from last year which was mainly due to the
disposal of Nantong Port Group during the year resulted in the
decrease of its revenue shared by the Group.

The Group's gross profit increased by 14% from last year to
about HK$196 million (2017: HK$172 million), which
represented a gross margin of 31% (2017: 31%) of the
consolidated revenue. Overall improvement in gross profit of the
Group during the year was mainly attributable to the increase in
interest income from securities and treasury segments as
benefited from the enlarged portfolio of investments in debt
instruments held for trading and loans receivable.

During the year, the Group disposed of 45% equity interest in
Nantong Port Group at a consideration of about RMB1,667
million (equivalent to about HK$1,966 million) (2017: Nil).
Nantong Port Group ceased to be an associate of the Group
and a disposal gain of about HK$848 million (2017: Nil) with a
tax charge of about HK$155 million (2017: Nil) was recognised.

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses increased by
140% to about HK$120 million (2017: HK$50 million), mainly
due to accelerated depreciation and amortisation in value of
LPG fueling station assets (including LPG plant and machinery
and related intangible assets) of about HK$69 million (2017:
Nil), while an impairment write-down in value of LPG storage-
tank farm of about HK$148 million (2017: Nil) was charged to
income statement during the year, reflecting the current market
conditions and the necessity to plan for the conversion of all of
the existing LPG fueling stations of Minsheng Gas in Wuhan,
Hubei Province, the PRC into CNG fueling stations in the near
future to strengthen the profitability and sale performance of
Minsheng Gas.
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Business Review

EBESR

During the year, the Group recorded a profit before taxation of
about HK$714 million (2017: loss before taxation of about
HK$23 million), which was composed of:

(i)  net gain of about HK$15 million (2017: HK$29 million) in
Paul Y. Engineering Group mainly engaged in
management contracting and property development
management businesses;

(i) net gain of about HK$710 million (2017: HK$121 million)
in ports and logistics business;

(iii)  net gain of about HK$95 million (2017: loss of about
HK$10 million) in property business;

(iv) net gain of about HK$14 million (2017: HK$7 million) in
securities business;

(v) net gain of about HK$1 million (2017: HK$13 million) in
treasury business;

(vi)  net corporate and other expenses of about HK$68 million (2017:

HK$120 million), which included acquisition-related costs
of about HK$23 million (2017: HK$21 million) and net
exchange gain of about HK$30 million (2017: loss of
about HK$28 million); and

(vii) finance costs of about HK$53 million (2017: HK$63
million).

Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of PYI was
about HK$477 million (2017: net loss of HK$34 million) and
basic earnings per share was HK8.8 cents (2017: basic loss per
share of HKO.7 cent). The restoration of remarkable profitability
from the net loss in last year was mainly attributable to net
effect of (a) a net gain after tax on disposal of 45% equity
interest in Nantong Port Group of about HK$693 million (2017:
Nil); and (b) charging a one-off accelerated depreciation and
amortisation and an impairment provision in value of LPG
business assets of Minsheng Gas in total of about HK$209
million (2017: Nil) after crediting deferred tax credit of about
HK$8 million (2017: Nil) during the year.
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Business Review

EBESR

Review of Financial Position

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at 31
March 2017, total assets increased by 4% to about HK$8,119
million (2017: HK$7,782 million). As at 31 March 2018, net
current assets amounted to about HK$2,660 million (2017:
HK$792 million), whereas current ratio deriving from the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities strengthened to 4.11 times
(2017: 1.49 times). Such improvement in liquidity position was
mainly attributable to the net proceeds received from disposal
of Nantong Port Group during the year. After taking into
account (a) the net profit of about HK$477 million; (b) the
decrease in carrying amount of equity investments not held for
trading of about HK$60 million recognised in investment
revaluation reserve; (c) the Renminbi exchange surplus of about
HK$144 million arising from translation of foreign operations
net of reclassification adjustment upon disposal of an associate; (d)
the net proceeds from placing of new shares of about HK$139
million; and (e) the proceeds from exercise of share options of
about HK$3 million, equity attributable to owners of PYI
increased by 18% to about HK$4,712 million (2017: HK$4,009
million), and number of shares in issue increased to about 5,520
million (2017: 4,587 million), representing HK$0.85 (2017:
HK$0.87) per share as at 31 March 2018.

Net cash outflow from operating activities was about HK$787
million (2017: inflow of about HK$18 million), which was mainly
to (a) the acquisition of debt instruments held for trading and
other financial asset of about HK$493 million (2017: Nil) and (b)
the advance of loans of about HK$332 million (2017: Nil) to
borrowers in treasury business during the year. Net cash inflow
from investing activities was about HK$ 1,507 million (2017:
HK$141 million), which was mainly derived from the net
proceeds from disposal of Nantong Port Group of about
HK$1,735 million (2017: Nil). Net cash outflow from financing
activities was about HK$669 million (2017: HK$253 million),
resulting from net repayment of bank and other borrowings of
about HK$714 million (2017: HK$212 million) during the year.
Consequently, there was a net increase in available cash and
cash equivalents of about HK$51 million (2017: net decrease of
about HK$94 million) during the year.

A summary of financial key performance indicators of the Group
is set out in the section of “Financial Highlights” on pages 4 and
5 of this annual report.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total assets of HK$8,119
million (2017: HK$7,782 million) which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of credit
facilities were maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure, which bore
interest at market rates and had contracted terms of repayment
ranging from on demand to nine years. The Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi. During the year, no financial instruments had been
used for hedging purpose and no foreign currency net
investments are hedged by currency borrowings or other
hedging instruments. The Group adopts a prudent funding and
treasury policy and manages the fluctuation exposures of
exchange rate and interest rate on specific transactions.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's total borrowings amounted
to about HK$1,247 million (2017: HK$1,866 million) with about
HK$539 million (2017: HK$1,325 million) repayable on demand
or within one year and about HK$708 million (2017: HK$541
million) repayable after one year, which comprised (a) bank and
other borrowings; and (b) amounts due to non-controlling
interests that were interest bearing. Borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong dollar of about HK$130 million (2017: HK$702
million) bore interest at floating rate and about HK$1 million
(2017: HK$1 million) bore interest at fixed rate. Borrowings
denominated in Renminbi of about HK$562 million (2017:
HK$597 million) bore interest at floating rate and about HK$538
million (2017: HK$566 million) bore interest at fixed rate.
Borrowings denominated in United States Dollar of about
HK$16 million (2017: Nil) bore interest at fixed rate. The Group's
gearing ratio was 0.26 (2017: 0.47), which was calculated based
on the total borrowings of about HK$1,247 million (2017:
HK$1,866 million) and the Group's shareholders’ funds of about
HK$4,712 million (2017: HK$4,009 million).

During the year, a total of 915,470,000 new shares have been
placed by a placing agent to not less than six independent
placees at the price of HK$0.156 per share. The net proceeds of
about HK$139 million had been fully used for working capital
of the Group.
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Cash, bank balances and deposits of the Group as at 31 March
2018 amounted to about HK$607 million (2017: HK$500
million), of which about HK$345 million (2017: HK$311 million)
was denominated in Renminbi, about HK$259 million (2017:
HK$186 million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
about HK$3 million (2017: HK$3 million) was denominated in
other currencies. The balance of about HK$31 million (2017:
HK$0.1 million) had been pledged to bank to secure general
credit facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had a net debt position (being bank borrowings net of
cash, bank balances and deposits) of about HK$437 million (2017:
HK$1,193 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no contingent liability (2017:
Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, certain property interests, property, plant
and equipment, bank balances, debt instruments and securities
account of the Group with an aggregate value of about
HK$1,010 million (2017: HK$924 million), as well as the
Company'’s investments in certain subsidiaries of about HK$279
million (2017: HK$445 million) were pledged to banks and
financial institutions to secure general credit facilities granted to
the Group.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had expenditure contracted
for but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and
equipment and properties interests in a total amount of about
HK$48 million (2017: HK$11 million).

MR2018F3A31H  AEB 2B RITET
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#4.3718% 7L (2017 : 11.93BHE L) °
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND COMPLIANCE
MATTERS

Environmental Policies and Performance

We aim to operate our business with good environmental
protection practices which comply with applicable laws,
regulations and standards and we endeavour to:

V' Apply practices which minimise, lessen or remediate the
impact of our activities on the environment including
potential air and greenhouse gas emissions, wastewater
discharges, land contamination as well as generation of
wastes;

v" Use raw materials, energy and natural resources as
efficiently as possible and strive to improve that efficiency;
and

v Adopt measures to mitigate the negative effects of
environmental incidents.

The aforesaid principles are enshrined in our Environmental,
Social and Governance Policy adopted in June 2014. PYl is
committed to managing all business operations with sensitivity
to environmental protection. We will review our environmental
protection practices from time to time and will continue to apply
eco-friendly measures and practices in our operation.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers and Other Stakeholders

PYI has committed to responsible practices by adopting three
guiding core values: Genuine; Exceptional; and Involved as
expressed in our Code of Conduct. Operating with integrity,
being ethical and treating others with respect; creating
exceptional experiences that delight our stakeholders; and
inclusive, open and actively engaging our stakeholders and
serving communities. In essence, we adhere to integrity, respect,
responsibility, competence and safety in carrying out our
business. The following principles, which are enshrined in our
Environmental, Social and Governance Policy and Code of
Conduct, are being adopted:
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Employees

v" Providing a healthy and safe working environment;

v Adopting and maintaining a positive safety culture and
behaviour;

v" Instituting occupational and community health/hygiene
programmes with an aim to eliminate or mitigate safety,
occupational and community health and hygiene hazards;

v" Offering suitable training and development opportunities;

v" Providing equal opportunity throughout the Group and
treating employees fairly; and

v" Providing fair remuneration.

Customers and Suppliers

v

Providing efficient and courteous services with good value
of money to customers;

Offering products and services with high standard of
safety, quality and reliability and accepting the social
responsibility for improvement;

Promoting fair and open competition for procurement
procedures through providing an environment of mutual
trust and impartiality to suppliers and contractors; and

Prohibiting bribery and corrupt practices and promoting
responsible and ethical business practices.

Information about the major customers, the credit terms of

customers and the Group’s management on new customers and

credit monitoring are set out in Notes 7, 29 and 44b(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively in this annual
report.
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Community Involvement and Other Stakeholders

v" Building and maintaining good relationships with the
communities and other stakeholders associated with our
operations;

V" Working with local authorities, governments, inter-
governmental and non-governmental bodies and other
relevant stakeholders to develop projects that benefit the
communities connected to our operations in a sustainable
manner,

v' Minimising the negative impacts of our operations on the
communities where we operate;

v" Investing in charitable and educational contribution;

v Supporting the community as a whole, especially those
communities in which our offices are based; and

v" Supporting and encouraging our employees for their
charitable and community involvements.

Further discussion on PYI’s environmental policies and
performance and the account of key relationships of PYI with its
stakeholders are contained in a separate report “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” (“ESG Report”), which can be
found in PYI's official website.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee (a board committee of PYI) include
general oversight of PYI's compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements of its business operations. Significant
non-compliance with laws and regulations, if any, will be
investigated by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee and escalated to the board as necessary. During the
year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group was
noted.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is affected by a number of risk factors, some of
which are likely to affect the performance of businesses
generally. Some risks are particular to the Group’s operations.

As stated in the Risk Management Framework of the Corporate
Governance Report, key risks facing the Group have been
identified, assessed and prioritised according to the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact on the
business of the Group. Moreover, risk management measures
are in place to manage the risks to an acceptable level. This
section sets out a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, based on our risks assessment
outcome. They are categorised under “Strategic Risks”,
“Qperational Risks” and “Financial Risks” and are not set out in
priority order.

Risk categories Risk description

[ B2 38 5l | B 4 3k

TERBREAHBARE

AEEZIFZRBREAZRNTZE  Hfh — LR
Mﬁﬁégémﬁﬁﬁﬁ B LR B AR RIS
AEENEBERE -
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ZKEIEQWIEHF&T%%I§ZEL
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LdERREVERER WEIFERZD
Risk change
during the
reporting
period* Key mitigating measures
2 B A 4R
HANRE* FEEHRBE

Strategic Risks
KR

Concentrated investment
in Mainland China
REGEEF KA ER M

PY!I's key operation and assets are
conducted and located in China.
Accordingly, the investment,
business performance, financial
position and future prospects of
PYI may be adversely affected by
unfavourable changes in the
political, social, economic or tax
policies of the Chinese

government.
RENTLXBRIBZEEGH
mE-RF RENKRE K2
FE - MBAARMKRKA R Tw
SRREMNBOS  HE - KHES
0 165 B3R ) 2 1 2 B S A B9 *2
2o

»  Establish mechanism to
assess and closely monitor
any changes in the political,
social, economic or tax
policies of the Chinese
government. Relevant
measures are also put in
place to deal with such
changes.

> RS DA RS R ) B
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Risk categories

[ B 38 5l

Risk description

| B 4 3k

Risk change
during the
reporting
period*

BB R 3R
LiIAR: Vg -

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Operational Risks
EER R

Environmental, health
and safety laws and
regulations

RE RERT2ZEEER

As a substantial part of PYI's
operations are in China and are
related to ports development and
logistics businesses, we are subject
to various inspections,
examinations, inquiries and audits
by relevant PRC regulatory
authorities in accordance with
applicable PRC environmental,
health and safety (“EHS") laws and
regulations, in which the outcomes
form part of the conditions for
obtaining, maintaining or renewing
various licenses, certificates and
permits required for conducting
our businesses. As the PRC EHS
laws and regulations continue to
evolve, such changes may bring
additional compliance challenges
and costs to PYI's businesses.
RERKRIH B EBHEF EM
BREOZEREYMRER B
BIERERNFEIRE - RN
ZR2([EHS])EREREZX TR D
ME- B ERME ER
BE HEIEFTREFRMOE
BHENSEZR FEMTA
FE PRI &M - BEE P BIEHS
ERERN TG TR ZSEE
g rRRESENEKTERE
SNE)E R B BR BRI R R ©
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©

> Group legal team has been
working closely with
operation units to assess the
impact of those promulgated
environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations.

> EENZEERELEAR
RIEEmEE  FIEDB|MmER
R BEREEEEERD

B2 488
Ao

> Policies to minimise the
impacts from operations
have been formulated and
updated regularly by
reference to the aforesaid
laws and regulations.

> HIEARBIEE LR A R
ERA BN RE L EE
EIRETEHER -

For more discussion, please see the PYI's
“2018 ESG Report” available on PYI's
website at www.pyicorp.com.
EEZNRBFL2RAERREZCERH
(www.pyicorp.com) AR ZE #) [ 2018 3% 3% »
rERERRE] -
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Risk categories

[ B 38 5l

Risk description

| B 4 3k

Risk change
during the
reporting
period*

[ B A 3R 5
LiIAR: Vg -

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Environmental/safety
incidents
RBE T2FH

Environmental or other accidents
happen at or around the operating
site may cause losses on corporate
assets, employees’ morale,
customers’ confidence and
goodwill and may incur extra costs
to the Group.

IR 5% ok E M B 2 3R 5 s B R E’J$
WA ENECENEE - B
T&= %JE%/D%D%%E’UE% '
ARSNGB BEBEINIK AR

©

> Appropriate operational
procedures and controls are
put in place and all relevant
employees are provided with
relevant information, training
and supervision to reduce
and manage those incidents.

> IR T EENRERRERE
flEmBEERABHEBET
RETHEBEN  HJIME
ENERIDMEBERE LS
BTHEo

> Reporting systems have been
developed and all our
operating units are required
to report promptly of any
significant environmental/
safety incidents.

> RUERBER RAALERA
7] #B 2 7 B W fa] & KIR
B/ REEMW-

For more discussion, please see the PYI's
“2018 ESG Report” available on PYI's
website at www.pyicorp.com.
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(www.pyicorp.com) R R 2 £ [ 201818 35
e kERmE] -

nn') RELB AR AR 2018 F3R

31



32

Business Review

EBESR

Risk change
during the
reporting
Risk categories Risk description period* Key mitigating measures
[ B A 3R 5
2 B 3 B [ B 4 4k MR TEEMER
Pricing of goods PYlis exposed to the risks > Set up pricing system to
EmEk associated with pricing of goods (—) analyze product/service prices
resulting from factors beyond PYI's and their costs.
control, such as market fluctuation > BYTFTEBRZRZ HOWNERS
and price control prescribed by BR 5 B A8 J HBAS o
governing authorities. For example,
PYI's LPG and CNG retail > To explore the advantages of
businesses are subject to a certain our products/services and
degree of price control and target customers in order to
competition which limits PYI's explore other revenue
pricing flexibility. streams.
RESERHRE TR > FRRER/MEMNELME

EMELEBmTERBENR

B MK RIREERAM
EHIHER - flm: RENRIL
AHRNBBERARTE XK
2ET -ERENEBEBRE S MK
FMRETREEETETENE
Ja M e
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Risk categories

[ B 38 5l

Risk description

| B 4 3k

Risk change

during the

reporting

period* Key mitigating measures
2 B A R

AN TEEMBIE

Financial Risks
B 7% = B

Change of foreign
exchange rates

ExEt

As a substantial part of PYI's assets
and businesses are located and
conducted in China, the
fluctuation in the exchange rates
of RMB may adversely affect (i) the
value of PYI's investments and
monetary assets denominated in
RMB when they are converted into
Hong Kong dollar, and (ii) the
repayment of RMB loans with
funds denominated in currencies
other than RMB.
REMNREDEEMEFRE - %
BRRE D MR AEET AR
HE BB 3R 0% B AT BB B AR ZE () BA
ARBHABONRENREEEEE
BRABTRHRMAFARBEESER
NARBHEBHNERKEETT

B2 488
="

* e where risk remained broadly the same.

Certain financial risks and uncertainties are also set out in Notes 4,
5 and 44 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual

report.

> Establish mechanism for
(—) regularly reviews of the

balances of assets and
liabilities and the currencies
in which the transactions are
denominated so as to
minimise exposure to foreign
currency risk.

> BUTHRIEERAES
BRI 5 B B AL AL
SRR 2R FTE S 2 IMNE
[2LBg

For more discussion, please see Note 44b(a)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements” on
page 230 of this annual report.
BENUMAELRAFERENE20E
2 4R A BT 2 BT 5 44b(a)i) ©

* 9 BB R A BARR o
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Board of Directors

EER

MR LAU TOM KO YUEN
gmRRE

Chairman and Managing Director

FERAEE

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 67, is the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. He is also a member
of the Company’s Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Share Repurchase Committee, and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lau
has over 40 years of international corporate development
and management experience in infrastructure
developments as well as construction and engineering
services involving road, rail, port, power,
telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in the
Asia Pacific Region. He joined the Company as an
executive director in 1993 and was appointed as the
Deputy Chairman in 1995. Mr Lau was also appointed as
the Managing Director of the Company in 2005 and has
been responsible for the Group’s corporate development
strategy, and overall performance. He had been
re-designated from Deputy Chairman to Chairman since
26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the deputy chairman
and an executive director of South Shore Holdings
Limited (formerly known as The 13 Holdings Limited)
(0577.HK) and the deputy chairman and a non-executive
director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited
(0310.HK).
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MR SUE KA LOK
BRRELE

Executive Director

HITEF

Mr Sue Ka Lok, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in April 2017. He is also a
member of the Company’s Nomination Committee. Mr
Sue has extensive experience in corporate management,
finance, accounting and company secretarial practice. He
holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from The
University of Sydney in Australia and a Master of Science
in Finance Degree from the City University of Hong
Kong. Mr Sue is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a certified practising
accountant of the CPA Australia and a fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr Sue is an executive director of PT International
Development Corporation Limited (0372.HK) (a
substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Interests and Short Positions of
Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in the Directors’
Report). Mr Sue is also an executive director and the
chief executive officer of China Strategic Holdings
Limited (0235.HK), an executive director of EPI (Holdings)
Limited (0689.HK), a non-executive director and the
chairman of Courage Investment Group Limited (formerly
known as Courage Marine Group Limited) (“Courage
Investment”) (1145.HK) and a non-executive director of
Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (2309.HK). The
shares of Courage Investment are also listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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EER

MS WU YAN YEE
LR g

Executive Director

HITEF

Ms Wu Yan Yee, aged 27, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in May 2017. She
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance Degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Ms Wu is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst
designation. She had worked for an international
accounting firm and a reputable asset management
company and has experience in auditing, accounting,
direct investment and asset management.

MR r L GRFE275) R2017F5 A EZ T AARF]
MITEE WIFEFEEIAEBZEHRERIEE
BELT BN - AR ARTEQHMATEMETME
BARBTVBOMA 2 &R - R — MR A
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MR CHAN SHU KIN
BRIGER K&

Independent Non-Executive Director

BUIFRNTEF

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2004. He is also the Chairman of the
Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee and Share Repurchase
Committee. Mr Chan has over 41 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management services.
He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, as
well as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr Chan is a partner
of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (0850.HK)
and GTI Holdings Limited (formerly known as Addchance
Holdings Limited) (3344.HK).
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EER

MS WONG LAIKIN, ELSA
EEBxt
Independent Non-Executive Director

BUIFRITEF

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
November 2012. She is also a member of the Company’s
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee. Ms Wong
holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in Law
from The University of Hong Kong, as well as a Master’s
Degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is a solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong and the Supreme Court of England
and Wales and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst
designation. Ms Wong has over 28 years of experience
in the legal profession, with majority years working as
corporate counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong
listed companies (including the Company during the
periods from February 1995 to January 2000 and from
May 2003 to December 2007). Ms Wong is currently
employed as Vice President — Legal of Henderson (China)
Investment Company Limited. She is also an independent
non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings
Limited (0310.HK).
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MR LEUNG CHUNG KI
RMBERE

Independent Non-Executive Director

BUIFRNTEF

Mr Leung Chung Ki, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
June 2018. He is also a member of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee. Mr Leung holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the De Paul University in the United
States of America. Mr Leung has over 20 years of
experience in banking industry. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (1387.HK).
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Senior Management
SREERE

MS YANG YAN
BEZE
Chief Representative — China

BHERRLFREEAEX —F

Ms Yang Yan, aged 50, joined the Group in 2003. She is
the Chief Representative of the Company in China and is
responsible for originating and monitoring the
performance of the Group’s investments in the Mainland,
and holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Yang has many years of experience in
corporate development and general administration and
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.

BERLZ T (RES0R) R2003FMAREE - BARQA
ZEBEBHERNFABEZERAR BwEXERAHN
REEASEETHEZAERERR  XREETAQA
ZEMBRABIZEFRU BRINERKLLEER 17
HEBTHEAZFER IHAIREREL B -
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MR WONG YIU HUNG
EEERE

Chief Financial Officer
BHEAHEE

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 53, joined the Group in
2004. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
and is responsible for all financial management and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr Wong holds
directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He has over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management in both
international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr
Wong holds a Bachelor's Degree in Chinese Law from
Peking University. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and a practising certified public accountant
in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Support Team

152 AR 75 B B

LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL
MR CHAN KAI Kl

Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM
Financial Controller

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH
Group Treasurer
INVESTMENT

MR ZHU YONG MING
Investment Director, China
INTERNAL CONTROL
MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN

Group Senior Manager — Internal Control &
Risk Management & Corporate Compliance

INTERNAL AUDIT

MR CHU WAI YEUNG

Group Internal Audit Senior Manager
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Operation Team
= E Rx

MR WANG WEI GUO
Chairman
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR WANG HONG
Director and General Manager
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN BAO XI
General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN
Director and General Manager

Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WANG JIN JUN
Director and General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR WEI WEN KUI
Director and General Manager

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MS TSANG SAU YING
Financial Controller
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN KAl
Deputy Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR LI YONG
Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR HUANG JIN HUA
Financial Controller

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PY| Corporation Limited (“PYI"” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold
high standard of corporate governance and maintain
well-established corporate governance practices for the benefit
of shareholders of PYI and other stakeholders.

In the corporate governance report published in PYI's 2017
annual report which can be viewed on PYI's website
(www.pyicorp.com), we reported that, save for the deviation
disclosed therein, PYI has applied the principles and complied
with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2017.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, PYI continued to
comply with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
the chairman and chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be
separated and performed by different individuals. Following the
retirement of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September
2011, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, the Manaqging Director (equivalent
to CEO) of PYI, has been appointed as chairman of PY|
(“Chairman”) and has performed the roles of Chairman and CEO
with effect from 26 September 2011,

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board” or the “Board of
Directors”) believes that it is appropriate and in the interests of
PYI for Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen to take up both roles at the
present stage as it helps to ensure consistent leadership within
the Group and enable more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board also believes that
the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the current
Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals
with not less than half the number thereof being independent
non-executive directors.
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In addition, to demonstrate PYI's continued commitment to
high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy, a summary of which is set out at page 50
of this report, in June 2013.

PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI directors as
well as relevant employees of PYI. After having made specific
enquiries, all directors and relevant employees of PYI have
confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Since the launch of the Code of Conduct of PYI (the “Conduct
Code”) in October 2009, all PYI directors, senior management
and staff have been under specific obligations to comply with
the ethics and principles under which our business is conducted
and have been allowed to report actual or potential violations of
the Conduct Code through stated procedure. Non-compliance
with the Conduct Code will result in disciplinary action. During
the year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with the
Conduct Code.

P{IP) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEERLEE
The structure below shows the key parties involved in our UTRERRIAEE L EEARAFTRLEABERRA
corporate governance practices and policies within the Group: SNy ETEAE

SHAREHOLDERS OF PYI

RERR

Approval of key .
corporate actions Reporting Reporting

BoEEB0ETH BE # & 4%

Appointment

OTHER BOARD OF DIRECTORS =
STAKEHOLDERS E=ER
OF PYI
REHMISHE
s I};\{ésgws Appointment  Reporting Appointment Reporting and/or
ZE M ¥ ZfE recommendation
UL 98 R/ IR B R
b
¢ Regulators
REH MANAGING DIRECT BOARD COMMITTEES
e Customers s y Review EESEEe EXTERNAL
BE = Ll AUDITOR
e Suppliers e Corporate Governance and
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E Supervision Reporting E )
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EITEE

Communication
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders

As part of corporate governance, PYI is committed to
safeguarding shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PYI has
established a Shareholders’” Communication Policy (which can
be viewed on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com)) setting out
various channels of communication with shareholders and
investor community for ensuring effective disclosure of the
Company'’s performance and business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for PYI
shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to
attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from
shareholders. Also, simultaneous translations in English and
Cantonese are arranged during the meetings to ensure that the
shareholders understand the content of the issues discussed
during the conduct of the meetings.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, PYI held two general
meetings. Voting on resolutions put forward at the general
meetings has been taken by way of poll and the poll results
have been published and posted on the websites of PYl and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEx"). All
resolutions put to shareholders were passed at the said general
meetings. The resolutions and the percentage of votes cast in

favour of the resolutions are set out below:

REE2018F3A3THLEFER RERTT
H&%K@E@R%%t’juhm
FRAER - FTERZENLERBCEREMNBEER
%&%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ7((E/K/\%Fﬁj)zzﬁ;ﬁu
HoMMARZERRASLREZETHES
BB -FRECEZEAERBHEZERZZEL

MRBRARE °

= HFMT

PYI'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
REBZ2018F3A3MALFERTHRERRAE

Special General Meeting on 25 August 2017
R201758R25 R BITHRREH KE

v’ Approval of the agreement in respect of disposal of 45% equity interest in Nantong
Port Group Limited
HEEHALERmBEOSRERRRFLS%KREZ HE

Annual General Meeting on 1 September 2017
R2017F9R1RBTHRREFAE

vy~ Approval of the 2017 audited accounts
BB2017TFRENKEZERB

¥ Re-election of Mr Sue Ka Lok as director
EEHRREEERES

¥ Re-election of Ms Wu Yan Yee as director
BRI L LT RES

v Re-election of Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa as director
BEREERULTRES

¥ Re-election of Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond as director
ERE—NEERES

v Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000 per
annum for all directors
BBETEREFTEETEBEF4000,000ETHEEES

vy’ Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to the
Board to fix their remuneration

BEZERY - BEROTSMTAREMEREEZRETEME

vy’ Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to issue shares
BTEFBTROBN —RREGERE

v’ Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to repurchase shares
BTEFOERG N — R REGRERE

¥ Extension of the share issue mandate to directors
BARTESEITRHDZEN

v’ Approval of the refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options under the share
option scheme
BOAEE IR BB AR SR LB 10% 2 REE

nnt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif

% of Votes Cast For
BERZgNE=R

99.9989%

99.68%

95.84%

99.68%

99.68%

99.68%

99.68%

99.68%

95.68%

99.68%

95.68%

95.68%

45



Corporate Governance Report
BEaHE

Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PYI also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders
through other channels such as publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars as well as news
releases (all in bilingual ) so as to provide extensive information
on the Group’s activities, financial position, business strategies
and developments to enable them to make informed decision
on matters relating to their investment and exercise of their
rights as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also available
on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) and HKEx's website.

Our website is an effective means of communication with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or
comments on what we are doing are most welcome to contact
us at any time through our website. We will try our best to
answer the questions in a short time.

At pages 69 to 72 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYl and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI as at the year end.

Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In accordance with PYI's bye-laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI's shareholders are entitled to
attend or be represented by proxy and vote at general meetings.
PYI's shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of PYI carrying the right of voting at general meetings
have the right to require a special general meeting to be
convened and propose transaction of business.

All PYI's shareholders have the right to propose person for
election as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing
a person for election as director of PYl is set out in the Letter
from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors and in
our Shareholders Communication Policy.

P{IP) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Board’s Role and Delegation

The primary role of the Board is to maximize long-term
shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing
effective and responsible leadership and control of the
Company, and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors
group-wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance
of the Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated to the Managing
Director the day-to-day leadership and management of the
Group. The senior management of the Group, on the other
hand, is responsible for the management and administrative
functions and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the
supervision of the Managing Director. The corporate governance
structure of PYI as disclosed in this report at page 43 shows the
detailed relationship between the Board, the Managing Director
and the senior management as well as other stakeholders.

Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for
the Board:

EERNREERZEES

ESRNACRENER
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B BRERTHRAMXEBEENEEREER
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SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD
EZSREEERNAEE

vy’ Financial reporting and control
SRS R BT

v’ Equity fund raising
BRERE

v Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions

BB R E A D IR E TR

v’ Notifiable and connected transactions under the Listing Rules and inside information under the Securities and

Futures Ordinance

(EMRADPAAE AT XM AMEER S R(EFRBEMRMD TR NTHEE

vy’ Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group
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Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
concerning its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 93 to 101 of this annual report.

Board Composition

As at the date of the Directors’ Report, there are 6 directors in
our Board consisting of 3 executive directors and 3 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors
represented not less than half of the Board members, thus
exhibiting a strong independent element which enhanced
independent judgement. Mr Chan Shu Kin, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EER

(as at the date of the Directors’ Report RZA~E = 5 R4 E H H)

3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin i E2 5 4
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa &4+
Mr Leung Chung Ki Z2FAZE S 4
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the
Board and senior management.

There was no change of directors and Board committee
members during the year ended 31 March 2018 except that (i)
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan resigned as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 25 April 2017; (i) Mr Sue Ka Lok
was appointed as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 25 April 2017 and was appointed as a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from
15 May 2017; (iii) Ms Wu Yan Yee was appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect from 15 May
2017; and (iv) Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa was appointed as a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 15 May 2017. Brief biographical details of each
director (including his/her age, gender, term of office,
professional qualification and experience) are set out on pages
34 to 37 of this annual report and also available on PYI's
website (www.pyicorp.com).

PYI has also maintained on its website and HKEx's website an
updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors.
Independent non-executive directors are also identified as such
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
directors of the Company.

Each independent non-executive director is required to inform
PYI as soon as practicable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may affect his or her
independence. No such notification was received during the
year. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation on independence
from each independent non-executive director. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

All Board members have complied with the requirement of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PYI and its associated corporations, if any,

during the year. Interests and short positions of PYI's directors in

shares, underlying shares and debentures of PYIl and its
associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
pages 83 and 84 of this annual report.
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Board Diversity Policy

As mentioned above, a Board Diversity Policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board was adopted in June
2013. Under the policy:

(@) the Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as
an essential element in achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company;

(b)  the Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying and selecting suitable individuals to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to the Board; and

(c)  selection of candidates for directorship with the Company
will be based on diversity of perspectives which can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional and
industrial experience, skills, knowledge and independence (if
applicable).

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the policy and review the policy, where necessary, to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in
steering the Group to do businesses in the interest of
shareholders, a schedule of Board and Board committees
meetings to be conducted within the next financial year is issued
well in advance to all members, thus well-facilitating more
participation by the directors in every meeting. Within the year,
11 Board meetings were held and the overall attendance of
Board meetings attained 95% while 100% attendance was
recorded for Board committee meetings.
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The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than
14 days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each
meeting and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or
other reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues considered
by the Board where appropriate. In the event where
independent professional advice is required, the request for
seeking such advice was abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded
in sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a
reasonable time period after meetings for their comments and
were kept in the minute book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his/her
interests or potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed
transactions or issues discussed by the directors at Board
meetings. Any director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Board approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she is materially interested nor shall he/she
be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.

Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI's bye-laws, all directors (including
non-executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at
least once every three years and seek for re-election at annual
general meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being shall retire from office. Any new
directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board during the year by the Board following
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee are subject
to re-election by shareholders of PYI at the next following
general meeting after their appointment.

All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered
into letters of appointment with PYI for a term of three years
subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting.
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In the 2017 AGM, Mr Sue Ka Lok, Ms Wu Yan Yee, Ms Wong
Lai Kin, Elsa and Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond, who retired from
office in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, were
re-elected as directors of PYI.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr Leung Chung Ki will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Mr Chan Shu Kin will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The retiring directors, being eligible, seek for re-election and
their respective biographies are set out in the circular for
re-election of directors.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devoting sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PYI
the identity of public companies or organizations in which they
have held offices, and the number and nature of the offices, as
well as other significant commitments and are required to notify
PYI of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of biographies and
their time commitments to the affairs of PYI as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments on an annual basis.

Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of director’s duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Conduct Code, the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance
policies of the Group.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional
training for directors and management and believes that it is
effective to enhance corporate governance through regular
training within the Group. Apart from reading monthly
management updates, directors are encouraged to keep up to
date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings
and seminars at the expense of PYl on an ongoing and regular
basis.

P{IP) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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This year, our directors and management continued to keep
abreast of any updates on the governing laws and regulations
of the jurisdictions where PYI operates businesses and applicable
guidelines and rules issued by regulatory authorities and
attended seminars organised by professional bodies and/or had
been provided with materials of such seminars. Our Hangzhou
training centre is responsible for organising regular internal
training for management of the Group. In addition to regular
attendance at Board and Board committees meetings, directors
including independent non-executive directors have participated
in field trip to Macau in October 2017.

All directors and senior management are required to provide PYI
with their training records on an annual basis, and such records
are maintained by the Company Secretary for regular review by
the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee. The
training records of the directors and senior management for this
year were reviewed by the Committee in June 2018.

According to the records, PYI directors received the following
training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of

a director of a listed company in compliance with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year:

Directors

E=s

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTE

RAFE RMANESREEEEEZIRE
B EXxB o BB ERERBE  UREE
MELANBERESI KRB 2EH  WHFEH
EERBERR WA W NEREZEZH
ez PO mMNEIPLEEALRE
EEEELNRTHAREII - KRERLEES
BRREEFERZEGEHIIN EFBREBIIFH
TEEER2017F10 AR E HE L o

FMEBEEERaREEENESFRRERHEM
MrEIEsE MZELEHRAWEFE
NEGEEAREMZEGTHEN -ZE8]
ER2018F6 A EHMEZTRAREEENAE
E R ek -

RELE REEERAFECEITLAES
ETRARESFAC BERETZHI - AT
B(RETRDZ TRANRX EA6S5RZHE -

Type of Training
3% 31 28 5
Attending internal

Reading and external seminars
materials

or conferences
i FE A 30 R 3D

B MERER

Mr Chan Shu Kin g1t E2 52 4 Y Y
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa B4+ 4 v
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —if %4 v v
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2 R %4 v v
Mr Sue Ka Lok %z 445 4 Y Y
Ms Wu Yan Yee AR & &+ v 4

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif
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Board Committees

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI shareholders, the Board has established
five Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, and the
Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles,
authority and functions as detailed in the respective written
terms of reference which are available on PYI's website
(www.pyicorp.com). A majority of members of all Board
committees are independent non-executive directors.

The Board may also establish committees (including independent
board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve projects as it
deems necessary.

All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board
and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties. The Board committees will make recommendations to
the Board on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

EERZEESE

AXHRERREBREFSFAERRERME
H EEZREXNCVABEERZES  B1:
ExZER FTWZEE REZE
XEARERZEENRHDEZEE
iﬁ%%%%%@%@%%%?%ﬁuﬁ%
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BRE - REFMTE WERHRTEEERAE

TERE -EFERZESRSTEHREZREL
BE RIEERZEBGREARREERHIA
BR M A BE 1E i BE 3R

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
RBE2018F3AMNALFERTZERZHELR

BOARD COMMITTEES
EERZRE

Board Audit

EER B o

Remuneration

Corporate
Governance
and Share
Compliance Repurchase
EER
’BA ER

Nomination Shareholders

1R 13 2 8 83

Number of meetings held during the year
RERNBTEERY 11 3 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRI E2 % & 1M 33 33
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa* B8zt 1M 33 —
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —1i %4

(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018

E2018%6 1 HALEHE) 10/11 33 3/3

Non-Executive Director
FHITES
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan BRI A4
(resigned with effect from 25 April 2017
201744325 HAEEHT) 0/0 — —

Executive Directors
HITES
Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R %4 10/11 3/3 33
Mr Sue Ka Lok #fZR 445 A4 #

(appointed W/th effect from 25 April 2017

E201744/25 HALHEZE) 10/11 - —
Ms Wu Yan Yee #R#& 2+

(appointed with effect from 15 May 2017

2017454 15 HAEHEZE) 8/8 — —

Company Secretary
DRAWE
Mr Shing On Wai B¢ Z B 704
(resigned with effect from 16 April 2018
E2018%4 /3 16 HAEEHT) 11/M 3/3 3/3

2/2 212 0/0 2/2
”n 2/2 — 2/2

2/2 2/2 — 2/2

2/2 2/2 0/0 2/2

”n — — 12

212 2/2 — 2/2

L Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa were appointed as members of the Nomination Committee with effect from 15 May 2017.

B201755A 158 HREXERABRUTIRZERREZREEKE -
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TEERBRE
The following tables show the composition of the Board AR RBERREE2018F3 A31H 1L F[E H
committees, their respective roles and functions and a summary HEERZEemdK EACEBE AT
and/or report of the works performed by them during the year ERME N s iR

ended 31 March 2018:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FMzRS

Composition
#8 B

Independent Non-Executive Directors + 1 Executive Director
BYFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin [ ER 5= 4 (Chairman /%) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 215 R4

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —R 5 4

Role & Function* ¢y’
A & B e+

v

Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company

i 5 AN 2 B B BN

Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing a policy on such remuneration

R EEFHESRERBRNFMERLEE URRHNELZEFFMERRL—EERM
BEFERENRERF RMEFRIELES

Determines or makes recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment

AEKMEEREZEAINRTESTRAAETEBRNRETNES  2EEYHE - BIK
SRANREESE(BEAR FEE’EW”JJ:EHM%%%E%J*HH’]Eﬂ%ﬁ i)

Makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors

M EE BEZIFHTTE SN

Summary of v
work performed

Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2017 AGM

BREEERACHETE HRRE2017TFRRBFRG L4 E

THERHE ¥ Reviewed the share incentive schemes

T AT AR 10 B B 5T &l

¥~ Considered and approved the key performance indicators of Managing Director and Senior
Management for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018
ERRBAEREBZE2017F R2018F3A3NHEFEEARAE LS REEENETEZEAN
BT

¥~ Considered and approved the grant of additional incentive bonus
Z R RIER B FEINRE A

¥y Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the increase in the directors’ fees
EMRAEEREAATES NG

¥~ Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the remuneration package of newly
appointed executive directors
ERRAEEREZTEZENRTESTNETMNE

¥ Reviewed the remuneration packages of Managing Director and Senior Management for the year
ended 31 March 2018
RFBEESREEERBEE201843A31 R L& F RO WA

¥~ Approved the granting of discretionary year-end bonus for 2016 to Managing Director
B M ARE X I 2016 F E R BV 1B G R TEAL

¥y Approved salary increment of and grant of discretionary bonus to an executive director
HAEFA-—RRTESHF S LMEREBBEL

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

* BRAE—HFE  FRE LSRR ES I (www.pyicorp.com) Z HT & B S B EEHE -
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Performance-based Remuneration Policy

Director’s fee is determined with reference to factors including
prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, duties and responsibilities of a director, employment
conditions elsewhere and time committed by the director
concerned.

A performance-based element was considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and
has been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an
integral part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future
awards to employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy
include:

v/ to attract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v' to support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term
and long-term performance-based rewards will be
emphasized;

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will either be equity-based
and/or cash-based; and

V' equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in light
of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence on
the Group's performance and share price.

PYI effectively deploys an appropriate mix of its existing
equity-based reward vehicles, including the share option scheme

and share financing plan as well as cash bonus.

Details of remuneration of directors and senior management are
set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

P{IP) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZEE

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors + 2 Executive Directors

AR BYFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRIEIER %2 & (Chairman £ /) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen &I R 54
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —1f,5c 4 Mr Sue Ka Lok &RZR 4445 4

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa =& L+

Role & Function* y Reviews the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and

At B educational background, ethnicity, professional and industrial experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and makes recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes
ZEOEERIESRNER ABRZTH(BEETRNMER  F& XELRBEAE
BBk BERTEREZ&R Hit FHRBRBEDH)  URERABREESHRES
ISEirge 4=

v’ Identifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or makes
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for dlrectorsh|ps

g%ﬂﬁé\éﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂé ERETEZRKE  IBLANEZRREEZFABALLAE

¥y’ Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors
MBI IEMITERHB LT

¥ Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and
the Managing Director
HREZZEUENZE UKEF(LEETREAAR ETAERNESRRELESR

vy~ Develops, reviews and recommends to the Board for adoption of measurable objectives for
achieving and improving diversity on the Board

REFMRAEEERKEBZLL  BlF] RILERINGERRTEZRERLEMR

y* Monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy (a summary of which is set out on page
50)
EREERNESTICBR (EBEHIINFES0E) HTIENR

ik

Summary of vy Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2017 AGM
work performed  REREEFE2017FRFBFRG FREET
THERE

vy’ Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of
independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

BEHUNAZBLFRTESRBCLETRADEI BEME R FEB LM ER X

vy’ Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board

BREEERORS  ABRARK

v’ Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
BN EERKEZ TR

v* Recommended to the Board for appointment of Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wu Yan Yee as executive
directors

HREERZEFZEAENBMBELLIRITES

v* Recommended to the Board for appointment of Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa as
members of the Nomination Committee

HBREERZIARXEALNERERALIRIRRZEGNKE

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.
* BHE— SIS - R E L H RN REBE (www.pyicorp.com) Z IR A E B G BIEHE -
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EEERRE

NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESS AND

CRITERIA

Nomination Committee
makes recommendations
to the Board on any
proposed changes

Nomination Committee
identifies individuals
suitably qualified to
become directors

REEF BREUAKRER

Nomination Committee
selects or makes
recommendations to the
Board on the selection of

The Board makes formal
invitation to selected
persons for appointment
to the Board

persons nominated for
directorships

B Z B g EmH b
EEBHREZHIED & EERA
et =%

EERMBEKEAL
BHEFEEEMNER
ﬂﬂﬁl—l

& BEZEekERN
HfE EERRLEE ke
ERALTREES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
EREEE

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors +
H B BYERITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin BRISER S A4 (Chairman /%)

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa & BE 42+

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —f 5 4

TEER

Company Secretary
NEMWE
Mr Shing On Wai ik 228k 55 4

Role & Function* y Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and makes

AGERE recommendations to the Board

HERBRIARAFTNCEEABERRTH YMESRRELER

¥y~ Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and
Senior Management
RN REREFHSATEENSIRFESERRE

¥y’ Reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and meets with the management of the Company to assess the
Company’s compliance policies, programs and procedures
BARERARAAEETZEZREERATITENBRRER TEHAQRANERERTE
# LA ARRINAERBER  FREKER

vy~ Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and directors of the Company
HE B ERREHERARARFAEEREZTNEATAEARERFM(E)

vy’ Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or potential
compliance violations that are reported to the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee
BT RAEBRACEE RN EREZEGRBNEMNERERIEEERER

y" Reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as contained in the Listing Rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
WA ARAEFCETRAIDAZKBEFADNERREBREE A RE) N H) B &

vy’ Reviews the Company’s compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as contained in the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report
BAAABEETRAIDAZCGRE HERELREEIDNBEARECGRE g kEn
HE) AR B R

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for

further details.

3 BRE 15 BRE L H N FRER L (www.pyicorpcomZ DEERRERETESHESRE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)
CREARERESS (H)

Summary of vy~ Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2017

work performed =g 5201743 931 B IEEE 2 (B EEARE)
IHERE
y* Reviewed updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries

EHARAREPEIZNBARNENER BN RS

vy~ Reviewed the report on recommendation of disclosure in the Directors’ Report (Business Review)
EREAHREREESRREE EBER) AMEREZ&RE

¥’ Reviewed the form for confirmation of directors’ participation in training provided by each director
in compliance with the CG Code

EHNSEFRUZEST2EBIIZ2ERRRE  REBT(RETAD

" Reviewed the policy on disclosure and public relations

HEt B N A KB RR

¥~ Reviewed the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2017
EHEZE2017F3A3NBLEFECCRE L2 RERHRSE)

¥~ Reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy

T 5 B SR AR B

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE
BROEBEES

Composition Independent Non-Executive Director + 1 Executive Director
A B BYFHITES BTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin [Ri5E % 4 (Chairman % /&) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2|5 /R 44

Role & Function*  Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYI

AR in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda
BREBECETRED READMAUANRBREERZE TERIRRTEZREBRERN
7

Summary of vy’ During the year, no Share Repurchase Committee meeting was held.

work performed REAN TEARAKRNEOBZESEE -

THERE

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Share Repurchase Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

* BRI — S 508 5 LB R 2 Ak (www.pyicorp.com) 2 i {7 Bl i & B & B 40 ] -
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EEERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BREES

Composition
A E

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin* pgfsE2 5t 4* (Chairman /&)
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EZEBER 7+

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —if 54

#

Mr Chan Shu Kin is currently a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management services.

REBREERR - ZREGTN ERE SRV BEERE I AARALELR -

Role & Function* y
A @ B A+

Makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of external auditor

RN EZBMAESTRELES

Reviews the Group's financial information

EHAEEYHEER

Oversees the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems

EEASEMBERNE RREERAPEZERLS

Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to submission to the Board for approval
ERXEERYECH  EHREETRRANKERE

Reviews financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s external and internal auditors

=B Eﬁ%[#&ﬂ WEEEESEE - Wl AUk B B &AM R AR B INEZEA R A S & 5
B ER 15 B 28

Report on e
work performed

THHES

v

Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated financial
statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
EHAEERKERNPHEEVBREARCECNFEGAUBRE TEZESEH
Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group

BEHAKEABEELEREBER

Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit actions
implemented/planned by the Group
ERLEHNASEMETHASNOANNEE RREBERABET TIENERRS

Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

HENEZBMRECAREREZ2017F3ANNB L FEGAVBRRFAEZNREE

Approved the engagement and the review fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the review
of the Group's condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2017
HEZEIIEZHEMEEREMNAEBEZ2017F9A308 LA 2 ERALEE MBR
RITZZNEHNE

Reviewed connected transactions of the Group

BEHAKEZHERS

Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group's external auditor at 2017
AGM
BRER017TFRRBEFAGLENZERHD BERH AT RIS EINEZEED

Met with external auditor in the absence of executive directors of the Company

ERLBARRATESHESNBRT & LIMNS A

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

< EBE-SHE

55 BB R EE AR UL (www.pyicorp.com) 2 B R B S B EEE o
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Responsibility

The Board considers that sound risk management and internal
control systems are vital to the achievement of the Group’s
strategic objectives and acknowledges its responsibility to
establish, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis.

Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group to achieve the following business
objectives:

V' Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v' Reliability of financial reporting and non-financial reporting
v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aim to
provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has ongoing responsibilities to review the

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and to report to the Board.

R B B % 9 B BE 4R

Bt

EEZRAA/ R2ORBREEMABEZRSR
HERAKENBHEASEHER L ER
EREREHZFARNRE #ERRFTHE
BRMEEEE-
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REEMAMEERG NEHTARBKEIZ:

v BRBRABRENEE

v AT {ZRE Y B S BE R K% JE B S BE 4R

v O EBETEREERERRA
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The table below shows the roles of the key parties in our risk TRETEZABERMORARE RN AL
management and internal control systems: BEGAMEENAE

Board of Directors

BER

V' Sets strategic objectives V" Evaluates and determines the V" Provides direction on the
i € g B 12 nature and extent for the Group's importance of risk management

V" Qversees management in the principal risks and risk management culture
design, implementation and AHAKERFEERR R E HEREESEEMMNEARE R
monitoring of the risk HMEMEE AL T A

management and internal
control systems
EEEREYNRERERE RN
ERZGHR  BElfER

Audit Committee

Managing Director & Senior Management

BENBREEE BEREES

V' Assesses risks group-wide and develops v" Reviews the effectiveness of risk management
mitigating measures and internal control systems
P& B B8 e A T 1l & B A0 I I R B 4% 4R B EREEMAITEZERGNE R
i)

V" Designs, implements and monitors the risk
management and internal control systems Internal Audit

V" Provides confirmation on the effectiveness of risk v Supports the Audit Committee in reviewing the
management and internal control systems to the effectiveness of risk management and internal
Board of Directors control systems
HEREBNANEZZRSNBERERNESR T ERREEeHAREENNSE R RS Y
R IRE 75 3 e R

Operation Management
EEEERE

v" Implements and monitors the risk management and internal control procedures across business operations and
functional areas
EMREREXRELEMREMPINEREENMAIEZERT
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Risk Management Framework

The diagram below shows the risk management framework
adopted by the Group:

Strategy R R

Vision

Statement

=EH

RREEER
TERRAEERANEREBIER:

Risks are considered
when setting strategy.
T 5l FE SR RS By
ZREREZE -

Identify

w8l

Process B2
Risk
Management

Report
& 8
Process

t RBREERRRE l

Monitor

EEE

Elements JTE

Human
Resource
Mechanisms

AN EFHEH

Organization
Structures

AEZRE

Performance
Measure

RRER

Management
Commitment

EEE A

Communications
and Training

BERIE

Process applies standard
procedures, assessment
tools and market practices.

B2 ER TIZERET -
ST E R TISHUE o

Elements that are brought
together to support, promote
and drive risk management
throughout the Group.

PEE B S HF ~ R T ) B
EIJ—LB BIEFTENIITE °

Assurance

R
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Risk assessment is performed to evaluate the nature and extent
of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk assessment
process, the Group has identified principal and significant risks
facing the Group. The risks are prioritised according to the
likelihood of their occurrence and the significance of their
impact on the businesses of the Group. The risk assessment

results indicated limited changes in the nature and extent of the

key significant risks identified by the Group since last year.
Moreover, risk management measures are in place to manage
the risks to an acceptable level.

To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, regular training is
provided to our management to strengthen their awareness of
risk and capability to manage risks.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Group's systems of internal control were developed by
making reference to the Internal Control Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in the United States in 2013 and
the Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Business units are required to perform control self-assessments
annually to assess the effectiveness of their systems of internal
control. The control self-assessment performed is in the form of
a questionnaire that sets out key factors in each of the five
components of the COSO Internal Control Integrated
Framework. These five interrelated components are Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring.

During the year, the Legal and the Finance and Accounts
Departments of the Group have carried out reviews on
operational, financial and compliance controls of all operating
subsidiaries in China to ensure their compliance with the
Group's risk management and internal control policies and
procedures and the accuracy of relevant reports submitted to
the Group.
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Every year the Internal Audit Department carries out
independent audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and internal control according to
the approved three-year internal audit plan for the Group. This
audit plan was determined using a risk-based approach and is
re-assessed annually to ensure adequate audit resources are
deployed to achieve the objectives of the internal audit plan.

Finally, management has formulated remedial action plans to
address the gaps and weaknesses identified during control
self-assessments, internal control reviews and internal audits.
The PYI head office has conducted follow-up reviews periodically
to ensure remedial actions are taken on a timely basis, and has
reported the results of the follow-up reviews to the Audit
Committee.

The Board of Directors has assessed the scope and quality of the
Group's ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. Based on the results of the control
self-assessments performed by business units, reviews performed
by the Legal and the Finance and Accounts Departments of the
Group and independent audits performed by the Internal Audit
Department, the Board of Directors considered the risk
management and internal control systems effective and
adequate. The Board was not aware of any significant areas of
concerns that may affect the Group to achieve its strategic
goals.

Also, the Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget, and was
satisfied with the results of the review.

B AMEFHAIREELN=FHEER
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Procedures and Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

Proper measures have been taken by the Group to comply with
the requirements under “Part XIVA — Disclosure of Inside
Information” of the Securities and Futures Ordinance to ensure
that inside information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information has been properly approved, and
disseminate in an effective and consistent manner. Such
measures include establishment of the inside information
identification, reporting, and disclosure protocol and procedures.
An in-house refresher training on inside information was
provided to senior management and relevant officers at both
Group level and business units level in October 2017. Also, a
review of the procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information was performed by the
Internal Audit Department in April 2018.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit Department of PYI set up in November 2007 is
headed by Group Internal Audit Senior Manager who reports
directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an important
role in the internal governance of the Group. With the
assistance from external internal audit consultant, the Internal
Audit Department is primarily responsible for conducting audit
on the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management
and internal control periodically.

The Internal Audit Department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data required
in performing internal audit review. Moreover, the department

comprises well qualified and capable staff and is provided with

adequate resources to perform its duties.

Since 2008, internal audit assignments have been directed by an
internal audit strategic plan approved by the Audit Committee.
This strategic plan is developed by adopting risk-based approach
for every three years and reviewed annually. In addition, ad hoc
internal audit assignments are performed on request by the
management or assigned by the Audit Committee. In the past
ten years, the Internal Audit Department has executed three
three-year internal audit strategic plans and the first year of its
fourth three-year plan.
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During the process of audits, the Internal Audit Department
identified internal control weakness, made recommendations
for improvement, obtained remedial action plan of management
and followed up remedial status of the management action plan
and its timeliness. Besides, in order to ensure the continuity of
the 1ISO9001 certification for the Group'’s corporate support
centre in Hangzhou that provides in-house legal, internal audit,
financial (including accounting data backup) and in-house
training services to the Group’s business units, the Internal Audit
Department has performed internal audit review for the
corporate support centre in compliance with the ISO9001
certification requirements.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed
as the Company’s external auditor at 2017 AGM until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 21 June 2018 recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at
2018 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the
same view as that of the Audit Committee.

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
Group's consolidated financial statements, and only provides
non-audit services that do not impair their independence or
objectivity and are approved by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES
ENRENFEGNRBRFLBREME

EERES m%&%%ﬁ&%%ﬂ@%ﬁ%ma
RN ERZE DSHEEESTNRE
AR IiTﬁ@J"E’]EﬁZinE’J%ﬁER&E
ERRFMHEELDRE - WIN BTHERAEE
EMMOCELSEROMAEESEBENIR
HEARNEZE NBEHS VB (BESFHH
BB &R ED S I8 AR 75 4 48 % 151509001 R
HANPENDIEZCEIERPLETALD
Ei UEHHEISO00T REBEE KM HFA I -

S BS 4% B

mHeMEMR A SHMIT(EE]) BERN2017F
BRRAFARE LEEHNZTRARAINEZE
f-HEET—EREBEFASERALL  Bix
ZBER2018F6 A21B 2 @& F#& 12018
FREBFASLEFZTEYHARQFINE
R MEEZREBEZZEGCER -

RTRFEBIMN EHTEEE ?f$‘§l“
BV BHRREAZERE UK TEBEFERS

MM ERM IZ‘“EhﬁffZ;zAﬁTtt/EE’HEV
RS ©

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Services Rendered 1= 15 19 AR 75 FET FHET

Audit services 1% AR 75 3,139 3,318

Non-audit services A% HAR

Review of interim condensed consolidated EFPEGRHEES

financial statements B 75 3R 3% 1,154 1,352

Taxation advisory R A 58 58

Special engagements B E LI 2,022 12

Total #m 6,373 4,740
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws (in
both English and Chinese) are available on the websites of PYI

(www.pyicorp.com) and HKEX.

No amendments have been made to the bye-laws of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2018.

P{IP) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

MEERXXH

RRNBZHEBERRM RN E MR (P R
) b B R ZE (www.pyicorp.com) & & 7B X 5 Bt
ZHBuk o

REE2018F3A31H ILFEHRE » A AR
REEFTARMA -



PYI and Shareholders

REE R

The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018.

EERUNEAREREARERE  WHH
BEREEBRARZER -

R E

EEREHEATEZRNEE2018F3A31H
IHFEZRBKE -

FINANCIAL CALENDAR B % B 5
Event Date
B A HA
2017 final results announced 23/06/2017
EMH2017F REAELE
2017 PYI AGM 01/09/2017
017 FRERRBAFARE
2018 interim results announced 24/11/2017
FM2018F P i 4E
2018 final results announced 22/06/2018
BTMM2018F KEIHE A
2018 PYI AGM 07/09/2018
2018 FRERRAFAE
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SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings as recorded in PYI's register of members as at 31

March 2018 are as follows:

IR R

MR2018F3 8318

REFREBWMT :

Approximate

AC SR E IR ZEBRIR & i 2 B

Approximate

% of % of issued
No. of shareholders share capital
Size of registered shareholdings shareholders EBRERHEE No.ofshares {HEBRITRA
BLRRERE BREEA 2N B RGEA ZHBHNE DL
500 or below AT 340 58.22% 43,642 0.00%
501 - 1,000 34 5.82% 25,355 0.00%
1,001 — 10,000 115 19.69% 420,239 0.01%
10,001 - 100,000 63 10.79% 2,283,142 0.04%
100,001 - 1,000,000 20 3.43% 5,695,560 0.10%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 9 1.54% 21,333,114 0.39%
10,000,001 - 100,000,000 1 0.17% 11,259,933 0.20%
Above 100,000,000 A 2% 0.34%  5,478,519,587 99.26%
Total #&5t 584 100.00% 5,519,580,572 100.00%
*  The two shareholders were: ZMAARR D R A
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited EEPREEREAN)BRAA
Clearing Participants/ rEsmE/

Custodian Participants EmLEE 4,441,596,591 80.47%
Investor Participants REEPOFAA 41,308,449 0.75%
Hong Kong Securities Clearing EEPREE

Company Limited BRAA 576 0.00%

4,482,905,616" 81.22%
2 Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 18.03%
5,477,944,685 99.25%

The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC Nominees

Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS Participants
Shareholding Report (the “PSH Report”). The number of shares registered
in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the PSH Report is different

from that shown on PYI's register of members because some shares
withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS depository had not yet been

re-registered.
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SHARE INFORMATION B% 4 & ¥
Share Listing B b
PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange RERMBMNI1993FIA2IH EREE BB AT
on 21 September 1993. e
Stock Code B& 13 4K 5%
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 B AP 498
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW AR BB PYW
Board lot 2,000 shares BEBEBMN(EF) 2,000 f%
Securities in Issue ERTES
Shares ) ik
As at 31 March 2018 5,519,580,572 shares R2018F3 A31H 5,519,580,572 %
As at 22 June 2018 5,519,580,572 shares 7R2018%F6 A22H 5,519,580,572 %
== Share price (cum dividend)*
REGES )
== Share price (ex dividend)
RE(BRE)
HK$ 1.0
BT
0.8
———— —— e T
06
0.4 |-
0o L — S~ ——
0.0
N~ N~ M~ N~ N~ N~ M~ M~ M~ [ee) [o0) [o0)
) ) S ) 5 S S ) S S ) S
Al AN [eN] (aN) [eV) [aN] [aN] Al [a\] [eN] Al Al
3 S S 5 8 3 = = o 5 8 2
* Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI

shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
* RRECELIREZRERR 2R BRERMIEETS Lz H(1993F9 A21 BRI 2 RETIR B2 47
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MARKET CAPITALISATION

Total Market Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2018 HK$800 million
As at 22 June 2018 HK$900 million
Public Float Capitalisation*

As at 31 March 2018 HK$537 million
As at 22 June 2018 HK$603 million
* The information disclosed under this section reflects the market value of

PYI shares held by PYI shareholders with the shareholdings held by the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the directors

of PYI being excluded.
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Directors’ Report
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 March 2018 are set out in Note 53 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is set out on pages 10 to 33 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 102 of this annual report and in the

accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

No interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
declared during the year (2017: Nil).

The directors have resolved not to recommend for shareholders’
approval the payment of any final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Details of the distribution are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEMARERELEEEGR AR ([RE]JH[E
AANRERBRAR(HGBIAEE] FH=2018
FIANBULEFEZFREEEXZEAYBER
2{20

FEXEK

KRB B —RIEEZERKR QG -
AARSEFEMBAT BEAARALLE
R2018F 3 A31H 2 ¥BH I NG A M B REK
M 5ES3 ©

EBESR

EBBAHINAFHEI0EIBH -

EEBERFBED G
AREBEHZE2018F383MBIEFEZEB LA
NAIEE2018F3A3MB It FEZAE D E&H
AARFERBFINRBZEARTZRNES 2K
B EHRRMGE -

RERN RARWESTIRA 201843 A31H
IFEEZHPHRE (2017 : ) -

ZEEEZARATEZBRERMERMNE E=2018F3
A31HIEFE ZEMKEAKE (2017 : ) o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for less than 30% of the revenue of the
Group. The five largest suppliers and the single largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 36% and 18% of
the total purchases of the Group respectively.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors and their
close associates within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders who to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital, has an interest in any of the five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$1,246,756,000 with approximately HK$538,713,000
repayable on demand or within one year, approximately
HK$708,043,000 repayable after one year. Cash, bank balances
and deposits as at 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$606,680,000. The Group's current ratio (calculated as total
current assets divided by total current liabilities) was 4.11 and
the debt to equity ratio (calculated as total borrowings divided
by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 0.26 as
at 31 March 2018.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$75,686,000
in respect of the construction of ports and approximately
HK$16,957,000 on the other property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$7,649,000
on investment properties. All investment properties were
revalued at the end of the reporting period.

Details of these and other movements in the investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

M MREEE

RER - REB B O ERE B 475,686,0005
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

1. Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme") was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at its annual general
meeting held on 10 September 2012. A summary of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Purpose
To provide incentive or reward to the participants (as
defined in paragraph (2) below) for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of, the Group.

(2) Participants
Any employee (whether full time or part time),
executives or officers, directors (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”) and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue
(@) Mandate Limit — Subject to paragraph (b)

below, the total number of shares in the
Company, which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
issued shares as of 1 September 2017, being
551,958,057 shares.
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(4)

(5)

(b)  Overriding Limit — The Company may by
ordinary resolutions of its shareholders refresh
the Mandate Limit as referred to in the above
paragraph (a) provided that the Company shall
issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought. The overriding limit on the
number of shares in the Company, which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time.

(c)  As of the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares in the Company available for
issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
was 551,958,057 shares, which represented
approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company (that is, 5,519,580,572 shares)
on that date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period
granted to each participant must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue. However,
subject to separate approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting with the relevant
participant and his close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) (or his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) if the participant is a connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting
and provided that the Company shall issue a circular
to its shareholders before such approval is sought,
the Company may grant a participant options which
would exceed the aforesaid limit.

Option period

The period during which an option may be exercised
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, save that such period must not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.
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(6)

(7)

(8

9)

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it is vested

The minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it is vested, shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion. The 2012
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any
minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option and
period for acceptance

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be
accepted on or before a date as specified in writing,
being a date not later than 30 days after (i) the date
on which the offer was issued; or (ii) the date on
which the conditions for the offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant
of the relevant option but shall not be less than the
higher of: (i) such subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the
nominal value of the share of the Company.

Remaining life

The life span of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is 10
years commencing from 10 September 2012 and will
expire on 9 September 2022.
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Details of the movements in the share options, which REE2018F3A31H IEFE - RIFE20125 8
were granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, BEFERE CBREZESHFHFENAT :
during the year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of the share options

REREETEEREFRIT2ROEE

Exercised Lapsed
Exercise during the during the
price Asat year ended year ended As at Exercise
Grantee Date of grant  pershare  01.04.2017  31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 period
RBE RBE
Bk ® 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 i
ERA RiLAH fTEE 01.042017 LLFEFTHE LEFEXRR 31.03.2018 A
(Note fifi£2) (Note fifi£3)
(dd.mm.yyyy) HK$ (dd.mm.yyyy)
(B.A.%F) BT (B.A.5F)
Directors
=
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 27.06.2014 0.1624 15,000,000 — (15,000,000) —  27.06.2014-26.06.2017
G5 27.06.2014 0.1624 15,000,000 — (15,000,000) —  27.06.2015-26.06.2017
27.06.2014 0.1624 15,000,000 — (15,000,000) — 27.06.2016-26.06.2017
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000 29.06.2015-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000  29.06.2016-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000  29.06.2017-28.06.2018
Chan Shu Kin 29.09.2014 0.1720 4,500,000 — (4,500,000) — 29.09.2014-28.09.2017
FRAEHER
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 29.09.2014 0.1720 4,500,000 — (4,500,000) — 29.09.2014-28.09.2017
EER
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond 29.09.2014 0.1720 4,500,000 — (4,500,000) — 29.09.2014-28.09.2017
B}
Sub-total /]N&t 103,500,000 — (58,500,000) 45,000,000
Employees 27.06.2014 0.1624 14,454,400  (2,203,200)  (12,251,200) —  27.06.2014-26.06.2017
E8 27.06.2014 0.1624 24,502,400 (12,251,200) (12,251,200) —  27.06.2015-26.06.2017
27.06.2014 0.1624 24,502,400 (2,247,600) (22,254,800) —  27.06.2016-26.06.2017
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 — — 15,165,600  29.06.2015-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 — — 15,165,600  29.06.2016-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 — — 15,165,600  29.06.2017-28.06.2018
Sub-total /]Nat 108,956,000  (16,702,000) (46,757,200) 45,496,800
Grand total #5t 212,456,000 (16,702,000) (105,257,200) 90,496,800

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif 79



Directors’ Report

EERBESE

80 pn

Notes:

1. All share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
were vested on the commencement date of each respective
exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or capitalisation issues or other similar changes in
the Company'’s share capital.

3. In respect of the 16,702,000 share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average closing price of shares immediately
before the dates of exercise was HK$0.174.

4. No share options were granted or cancelled in accordance with the
terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
March 2018.

Share Financing Plan

This share financing plan, adopted by the Company on 14
February 2006, allows eligible persons (including
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares of
the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security, subject always
to connected transaction and other relevant provisions
under the Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was
provided by the Group under this plan.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Incentive
Schemes”, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company'’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$2,085,964,000 (2017: HK$1,510,156,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:
Executive directors

Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Chairman & Managing Director)
Sue Ka Lok (appointed with effect from 25 April 2017)
Wu Yan Yee (appointed with effect from 15 May 2017)

Non-executive director

Chan Yiu Lun, Alan (resigned with effect from 25 April 2017)
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Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa

Leung Chung Ki (appointed with effect from 1 June 2018)
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr Leung Chung Ki will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for
re-election as director at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's
bye-laws, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Mr Chan Shu Kin will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, will stand for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of each
of the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set
out below:

EERBESTBRAERK®D - HEE
BROOREF2EBERKXE

R2018F3A31H ARAISEEREBITH
ABRARFBZBH EHEBAROPIFELERN
BIB(EHF KRB EGROI)E2GEATUNETZ
& 50 A S AR R BT AR B M 8% - 9 BT B
TABEZETEFRHNEETAD((CGRESF
A MASTAE AR REEREXSHAAE
PRAFI(THERRT]) 2w AR EHINWT :

Number of shares/underlying shares held

BERG HBERGBE
(Note ff{z#1)
Approximate
Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests  interests Total share capital
BB EERTRA
THRABRR g% AR RKER AEEE HittER BEY z2HHPEIH
(Note [f1z#2)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner and 59,672,605 — 498,223,308 — 557,895,913 10.11%
2= R interest of controlled  (Note ff5%3) (Note [f1354)
corporation
BERERE AR
R EE
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond  Beneficial owner 1,125,102 — — — 1,125,102 0.02%
E—m BEREAA (Note fffz£5)
Notes: st
1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the 1. FRARBROREEROD ZERARETFE - R

Company were long positions. None of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2018.

2. Based on the Company'’s issued share capital of 5,519,580,572 shares as
at 31 March 2018.

2018F3A31H  ARAEERERITHRABEE
RARBBRMD ERAABARDPBEEMAE -

2. LARA 201843 A31H 25,519,580,572 K A A 7] B %
TTIRA B EAE -
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3. Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen comprised:
(i) 14,672,605 shares; and

(i) a total of 45,000,000 underlying shares in respect of share options
granted to him on 29 June 2015 pursuant to the 2012 Share
Option Scheme, further details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Incentive Schemes” above.

4. Such interests were held by Rally Praise Limited (“Rally Praise”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Empire City International Limited (“Empire City”) (which
was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited (“Affluent
Talent")). As Affluent Talent was wholly owned by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen
(“Mr Lau"), Mr Lau was deemed to be interested in these shares held by
Rally Praise.

5. Such interests held by Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond comprised 1,125,102
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2018, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

follows:

TERR HEALTZRBRAR

R2018F3A31H AR AEEREZRITH
ABFTA TERE HMATREARARRNG
MEBROTHBELERBIB(ESF RBEK
BIYE3CIKRAETHF2ERMRZER AR
LU

Ry rEEE
(Note fffzz5)

Pr1i

"
L4

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as 1) EERRK
(1) Substantial shareholders

Number Approximate

of shares/ % of

underlying the issued

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital

BERD HOBITRE

BEREHE g% HERGOGHEE 2Z2#lEsk

(Note fffz#1)  (Note ffzt2)

Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 23.65%
TR P EE
(Note fff3%3)

Ace Way Global Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 23.65%
S EE R
(Note K17£3)

Ace Pride Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 23.65%
S AE R
(Note fifzE3)

PT International Development Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 23.65%
Corporation Limited R EE R
REHBERTGEFR A A (Note f17E3)

Treasure Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 23.65%
Sy EEE
(Note [f17%3)

Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,305,311,695 23.65%

BEmEEA

(Note fif7£3)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner 59,672,605 1.08%

=R EmEA A

(Note K1t4)

Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%

Y REEEABRAT 2018 E£if
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(2) Other Persons 2 HEMAL
Number Approximate
of shares/ % of
underlying the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares  share capital
BERG HEBRTRE
IR R A B g4 HEARMHEE MBI
(Note fffz1)  (Note ff3t2)
Affluent Talent Limited Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
REEEEERS
(Note [f17#5)
Empire City International Limited Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
REEEER
(Note [f17%5)
Rally Praise Limited Beneficial owner 498,223,308 9.03%

BEREAA
(Note Hfi+5)

Notes:

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Based on the Company'’s issued share capital of 5,519,580,572 shares as
at 31 March 2018.

According to the disclosure forms filed on 26 May 2017, Hollyfield Group
Limited (“Hollyfield"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Treasure Investment
Holdings Limited (“Treasure Investment”) (which was, in turn, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of PT International Development Corporation Limited (“PT
International”)), owned 1,305,311,695 shares in the Company.
Accordingly, Treasure Investment and PT International were deemed to be
interested in the said 1,305,311,695 shares held by Hollyfield. Ace Pride
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ace Way Global Limited
(which was, in turn, wholly owned by Mr Suen Cho Hung, Paul (“Mr
Suen”)), owned approximately 68.63% of the issued share capital of PT
International. By virtue of his deemed interest of approximately 68.63% in
PT International, Mr Suen was deemed to be interested in these shares
held by Hollyfield.

According to the disclosure form dated 20 March 2018 filed in respect of
PT International, on 16 March 2018, the deemed interest of Mr Suen in PT
International was approximately 33.23%.

Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen comprised:
(i) 14,672,605 shares; and

(ii) a total of 45,000,000 underlying shares in respect of share options
granted to him on 29 June 2015.
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5. Rally Praise Limited (“Rally Praise”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Empire
City International Limited (“Empire City”) (which was, in turn, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited (“Affluent Talent”)), owned
498,223,308 shares in the Company. Accordingly, Empire City and
Affluent Talent were deemed to be interested in the said 498,223,308
shares held by Rally Praise. As Affluent Talent was wholly owned by Mr
Lau Tom Ko Yuen (“Mr Lau”), Mr Lau was deemed to be interested in
these shares held by Rally Praise.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company
had not been notified of any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2018, the
Group employed a total of 1,432 (2017: 1,486) full time
employees. Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well
as performance-based bonus. In appreciation of continuing
support of the Group’s employees, a bonus payment to
employees was made during the year.

Under the Group's existing emolument policy, pay rate of

employees are maintained at competitive level with reference to

the merits, qualification and competence of the employees
while promotion and increments are based on performance of
the respective employees.

5. Empire City International Limited (TEmpire City ) ( & &
Affluent Talent Limited ([ Affluent Talent)) 2 & & Hf
B A &l) z & & K B A &Rally Praise Limited ([Rally
Praise]) # & 7 A ©)498,223,308 1% A% 1 o & 1t -
Empire City & Affluent Talent # 12 /4 5 Rally Praise 3%
B 2z £ it498,223308 % o h EA o X
Affluent Talent (R Bl s REE([RIEED 2 EHA -
2% AR B Rally Praise i B 2 ZER DT HH
R o
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The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to various factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of a
director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time
committed by the director concerned.

Further, the Company has implemented various share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff in both
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on page 56 of this annual
report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group's retirement benefit schemes is set
out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 41 to
68 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Company'’s performance in various environmental and social
aspects during the year is set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, which is available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at least 25% (that is, the prescribed public float
applicable to the Company under the Listing Rules) of the issued
shares in the Company were held by the public as at the date of
this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Other than the disposal of 45% equity interest in an associate
as set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS' INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Changes in directors’ information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out
below:

Mr Sue Ka Lok (“Mr Sue”) has stepped down from his
position as the chief executive officer of EPI (Holdings)
Limited (0689.HK) with effect from 17 January 2018.

Mr Sue resigned as a non-executive director of Tianli
Holdings Group Limited (0117.HK) with effect from 17
January 2018.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

(1

(2)

Pr1

Advances to entities

As at 31 March 2018, advances to entities did not
individually exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

Financial assistance and guarantees given to
affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of the
financial assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated
companies (as defined under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) did not exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31 March
2018, there was no guarantee given by the Group for
facilities granted to its affiliated companies.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s bye-laws provides that the directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their offices,
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any wilful negligence, wilful default, fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any directors. A directors’
liability insurance is in place to protect the directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against
the directors.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$500,000 (2017: HK$500,000).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
Details of the principal properties held for development and/or

sale and for investment purposes are set out on page 268 of the
annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no major subsequent events occurred since the end
of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 102 to
266, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics

for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

FARFLER

REBRMANDEXZHE BAREZFEASEMT
BRAMGEMBBRRTREZNFTE - LM
ERERBEAMBHRRNMA LK ER SRR
HEER MIAERBEFEHEREFERER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN ELKNNEEREEREE

Valuation of land being formed and formed land
classified as investment properties (the “Land
Under Development and Developed Land”)
FERREYEFEF L HREFELH ( [HHRFL
WREMELH ] ) HEE

We identified the valuation of Land Under Development
and Developed Land as a key audit matter due to its
significance and the significant degrees of management
estimations involved in the valuation.
BMEBRER T HREREL MO GERTE /SERE
EZFEE RARZHEEBEEARMEIREREE
HEIREMAET -

As described in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2018, the Land Under
Development and Developed Land aggregately
amounted to approximately HK$1,075,837,000 with a
net increase in fair value of HK$134,431,000 recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 March 2018, aggregately representing 13.3% of total
assets of the Group and 18.8% of profit before taxation
of the Group.

BInER A BRI E18FT 4 - 20183 A318 -
FEmh i B % La 4 %1,075837,000%
JT v 134,431,000 TR R FEBEEMNFEE RN E
E2018F3ANALFENFERERTER & H
h BEEEREEMI33%E BESEBERFARFH
18.8% °
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
valuation of Land Under Development and Developed
Land:

ZMEsEERT L REME LN HERITUTIE
% :

o Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer’'s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. AEBUIAERBEXRGEMONER RILKETH
{53

o Discussed with the management and the valuer for
the latest updates in relevant property market, status
of investment properties and methodologies and
assumptions adopted in valuations;

o Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations;

. BERMODERGAEMBEOMET S RRIE
EHREE  FEERRIAANTEREE L
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Key audit matter
HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN ELNNEERREEREE

In order to support their estimation, management took
reference to independent qualified professional
valuations in respect of all Land Under Development and
Developed Land situated in Jiangsu Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Management is
required to make estimates in certain inputs in
valuations. For determining fair values of Land Under
Development and Developed Land, it involves significant
judgment and estimations including valuation
methodology, saleable land discount on comparable
lands, certain costs to be expended for completion of
land development, etc.

AYRBEELNNMGG EEEC2ZHBUNRPEA
RAMBE((HED IHEN 2RI L REHE
THHBYSEREXGLE EREBRACETHER
HETHABBELGG REERER LM RERM
B ATEE HEPREBEGERE ATLER
ZETHEBEEEENE TR IWHEEREENE T
PR FE N &K H T R Ak 5t o

o Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended for completion of development by
reference to formed land;

J KR2EE TR RETH TR EME £/ #E
— AN EEMN

o Checked the validity and relevance of the comparable
samples used; and
. REMBAALRERNF R RA@EY &

o Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
valuations.
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Key audit matter
HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN ELNNEERREEREE

Assessment of net realisable value of stock of
properties
FEYEFENTEEFHE

We identified the assessment of net realisable value of
stock of properties situated in Jiangsu Province, the PRC
as a key audit matter due to its significance and the
significant degrees of management estimates involved in
the assessment.
BMESURFEIHEAMEFEN A ZRFAET G
BMERAREZEE RAZSZIEHBEERRIGY
RERIEENEREME -

As described in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2018, properties under
development for sale and completed properties held for
sale amounted to approximately HK$1,179,235,000 and
HK$448,021,000 respectively, aggregately representing
20.0% of total assets of the Group.

iR S B IR AR MY 26 Pl - 20183 A318 ¢
HHEERYERETIFELENESNOR
1,179,235,0007% 7t % 448,021,000 7t * & H1f E%
EEEEN20.0% °
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment of the net realisable value of
stock of properties:
BMERDEFEENAERFENEERFEHITAT
R

o Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. TEBUAEREEMEMNNER EHIRESR
M

o Discussed with management and the valuer for the
latest updates in relevant property market and
methodologies and assumptions used to calculate
net realisable value of stock of properties;

. B IR JE K {4 (B AD 57 3R A B8 1) 3 Th 5 ) AR B BE
Nt EMEGENAEE FEMBON T ERRR

o Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations; and

. BERMODBERGEBEMENMET S RRE
EHAES FEERESMANSEAREEN &

e Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
assessment made by management.

o HEEEEMMFFENTBERBMERE-
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Key audit matter
HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN ELNNEERREEREE

As described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in order to estimate the net realisable value
of stock of properties, management took reference to
the information on fair value of market comparable
samples and adjustment factors on comparable samples
from an independent qualified professional valuer. The
assessment is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require subjective assumptions and significant
management estimates, including adjustment factors on
comparable samples used in valuation of properties
under development for sale and completed properties
held for sale, further costs to be expended for the
development of properties under development for sale
and discount rate used in net present value calculation
of stock of properties.

Wi E M mAM T4t R GV EFENAE
RFE BEEC2ZRUGEARISEMEMD AN
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IHELEMEHEMAAELEERANFARREE
FREHRLEERMEMEENE - THKARGAEDE
FERBEFHEMANIRE-

We further performed the following procedures in relation
to management’s assessment of the net realisable value of
stock of properties that are under development for sale:
BMEE—PRELEERYEFENAEZRFENE
BEMEHMITATREF

o Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended by reference to completed properties;

. KBZETIMEZSEANE - THNEANEE
{53

o Checked the validity and relevance of the market
comparable samples used in valuation; and

. REETHERMATSAIALRERNERIE
MABREE &

o Checked market data to assess the appropriateness
of discount rate.
. REMSBBEATGERENEE L -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZEMBES

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

AR
1172 N = | ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HLFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 3 FER FAT
Revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries Zx A &) K& £ i & 2 71U A 6 624,400 553,977
Gross proceeds from securities trading of ARABIREWNBARES
the Company and its subsidiaries B ESIEARE 6 59,041 12,197
Share of revenue of associates and BEBE RN RNEELE
joint ventures WA 3,641,620 3,846,593
4,325,061 4,412,767
Group revenue SBIWA 6 624,400 553,977
Cost of sales 35 € B A (428,301) (381,816)
Gross profit EF 196,099 172,161
Other income E A A 8 8,826 11,586
Administrative expenses THER (145,548) (143,122)
Distribution and selling expenses SHENIHEE A (120,139) (49,623)
Other gains and losses H ek kg 1B 9 (19,804) (29,408)
Other expenses Hi & A 10 (33,709) (29,135)
Finance costs B E A 11 (53,455) (63,288)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—AEE ARz ls 43 847,628 —
Impairment loss on property, plant W ik EREZRE
and equipment E1E 17 (148,049) —
Net gain on fair value changes of investment & MEAFBEEE 2
properties W &= 0% 58 18 127,759 1,697
Share of results of associates b g RN | 52,183 101,140
Share of results of joint ventures BEe2hRER 2,429 5,291
Profit (loss) before taxation B & AE R (B18) 13 714,220 (22,701)
Taxation T8 14 (212,461) (1,318)
Profit (loss) for the year FEREHM (EE) 501,759 (24,019)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: AT A+ 1G5 = % A
(B#E) :
Owners of the Company KRR A 477,390 (34,143)
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS 24,369 10,124
501,759 (24,019)
HK$ HK$
BT T
Earnings (loss) per share GlREN (EE) 16
Basic earnings (loss) per share FRERNER (EBE) 0.088 (0.007)
Diluted earnings per share FREERT 0.088 N/A 3@
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31BIEFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Profit (loss) for the year FEmA (EE) 501,759 (24,019)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Huz2mkz(FEx)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss #§ T & E# > E A8 .2 B H
Change in carrying amount of investments in  #z T B8 & 2 REE & &)

equity instruments (60,352) (62,352)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to AR E# E# 548 518 %

profit or loss ZIHEH
Exchange differences arising from translation BREBINEBMEEZ

of foreign operations PE H =% 249,318 (164,136)
Share of exchange differences of associates HBEBERNANEELELZ

and joint ventures E 5 =58 100,740 (79,129)
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of HE—FHBE R Z2ESRE

an associate (126,471) —
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEHEM2ENKE (Fx)

for the year 163,235 (305,617)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FE>AWE (FAX) B8

for the year 664,994 (329,636)
Total comprehensive income (expense) UWTATEEEE2EY T

for the year attributable to: (AX) % -

Owners of the Company KAFHE A 561,367 (292,780)

Non-controlling interests JEPE AR RS 103,627 (36,856)

664,994 (329,636)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARRR

At 31 March 2018
201843 A31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 3 FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L Y NS 17 1,358,358 1,414,065
Investment properties E Y 18 1,350,540 1,089,605
Project under development KRB IFE 19 186,297 171,200
Prepaid lease payments JENMHEERE 20 342,192 281,110
Other intangible assets Hihmpae 21 8,460 43,146
Interests in associates Bt & N A RE S 22 734,328 1,747,635
Interests in joint ventures EETEER 23 96,201 85,304
Investments in equity instruments R TEEHE 24 436,826 451,816
Other non-current assets HUIEREEE 25 91,232 83,097
4,604,434 5,366,978
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments FENFAE A 20 4,766 4,510
Stock of properties MEGFE 26 1,627,256 1,464,070
Inventories of finished goods BHaEE 11,384 23,399
Loans receivable U E & 27 372,700 62,100
Dividend receivable from an associate JFE Y — FRI B & DRI AR B — 16,061
Amounts due from associates i ASNGIE O] 28 79,710 32,648
Amount due from a joint venture Féuﬁsz‘Ej/\**ﬁﬁ 36 7,619 161
Trade and other debtors, deposits and BEH5RE 11@&‘ I BR 5K -
prepayments SSEEDE:N 29 265,108 260,166
Investments in debt instruments HEBEEE a“%I LG &
held for trading 30 320,174 —
Investments in equity instruments FIFEERATARE
held for trading 31 35,964 51,700
Other financial asset HthemEE 32 183,539 —
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITER 33 30,557 113
Short term bank deposits WHRITIER 33 248,276 184,079
Bank balances and cash RITHFRE® 33 327,847 315,571
3,514,900 2,414,578
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRRR
At 31 March 2018
7201843 A31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FERT FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other creditors and accrued B hEMEMNBKRR RES
expenses S 34 286,364 263,721
Amounts due to associates FET B &N BTV IE 35 17,400 36,666
Amount due to a joint venture B —EE & ERE 36 — 254
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE IR IR AR A 25 5K 1B 37 2,478 2,257
Taxation payable S F 1A 11,965 8,306
Bank and other borrowings — due within —FRAEFZRITR
one year H & 3K 38 536,235 1,311,705
854,442 1,622,909
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,660,458 791,669
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HWEERABERE 7,264,892 6,158,647
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEME
Bank and other borrowings — due after —FRBNEZIRITR
one year H &5k 38 606,432 446,222
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE 1 JE 15 P % 0IE 37 101,611 94,808
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 39 843,707 726,330
Deferred income PR AE U A 40 77,925 58,617
Other payables H b EAERK 34 22,425 24,064
1,652,100 1,350,041
5,612,792 4,808,606
m') REEBEBRAE 2018 Fif
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR R
At 31 March 2018
M2018F3A31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FHERT FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRHE

Share capital R& 7 41 551,958 458,741
Reserves 5 4,159,856 3,550,433

Equity attributable to owners of RABHER A B #ER
the Company 4,711,814 4,009,174
Non-controlling interests JEE IS A 25 53(b) 900,978 799,432
TOTAL EQUITY 4R 2 5,612,792 4,808,606

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 266
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:
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Lau Tom Ko Yuen
gsR
Chairman and Managing Director
FREHFAEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARRBEBAZELES
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation Other  payment Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve profits  Sub-total  interests  equity
[i47) Bx RE MR XA+ EX RE FER £
BRA e i EHERE HteRE FERE i g Nt i ot
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FErT TEX TEL TER THT TErT FEx TEx THT TAn
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 718 457,736 494,694  (95,368)  (145,214) 85,700 4,970 259,035 3,238,023 4,299,576 823,579 5,123,155
Exchange differences arising R & 89N £ 74T
from translation of foreign ~ E4 7 EHE#
operations — — — — — —  (117,377) —  (117,377) (46,759) (164,136)
Share of exchange differences #{EHL A A KA
of associates and joint PEZERER
ventures — — — — — — (79,129) — (79,129 — (79,129
Change in carrying amount of # % T AR E Z R
investments in equity EZY
instruments — — — (62,131) — — — — (62,131) (221)  (62,352)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EE) RN — — — — — — —  (34143)  (34143) 10,124 (24,019)
Total comprehensive expense  FE2HH ¥ 4%
for the year — — — (62,131) — — (196,506)  (34,143)  (292,780) (36,856) (329,636)
Share of other reserves of ~ #{EBE AT 2 Efty
associates = — — — — (142) — — — (142) — (142)
Issue of shares under share 1R IR BB AR iE 5T 813517
option scheme & fn 1,005 846 — — — (220) — — 1,631 — 1,631
Recognition of equity-settled 32 1% ik 1 45 & LA ik
share-based payment B FERL
expense — — — — — 889 — — 839 — 889
Transfer of reserves of BEMBARZRE
subsidiaries — — — — 1,398 — — (1,398) — — —
Dividend distributed to mFERER DR Z
non-controlling interests & — — — — — — — — — (145) (145)
Cash contribution from FrREGE RS
non-controlling interests HE — — — — — — — — — 12,854 12,854
At 31 March 2017 #H2017F37831H 458,741 495540  (95,368)  (207,345) 86,956 5,639 62,529 3,202,482 4,009,174 799,432 4,808,606
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBEX

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HZE2018F3A31ALFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AARREAZEEES
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation Other  payment Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve  profits Sub-total  interests  equity
) X k& BB XM B RE FER £+

BA - #E  BE EEREE RtRH RERS WHE A hE LIt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TErT TRz TET  TAx TEr TRz TExT TAx TET  TER TERT

At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A1E 458,741 495540  (95368)  (207,345) 86,956 5,639 62,529 3,202,482 4,009,174 799,432 4,808,606

Exchange differences arising from [ # & § 5N E BT E

translation of foreign ECERER

operations — — — — — — 170,000 — 170,000 79,318 249,318
Share of exchange differences of B {EB L DA RAE

associates and joint ventures CEVERES — — — — — — 100,740 — 100,740 — 100,740
Reclassification adjustmenton  HE—RBERFZ

disposal of an associate EREE S — — — — — —  (126,471) —  (126/471) — (126,471)
Change in carrying amountof ~ E@m T AR E ZRE

investments in equity B

instruments — - — (60,292) - - - - (60,292) (60)  (60,352)
Profit for the year EERT - — - - - - — 477390 477390 24369 501,759

Total comprehensive income FE2EYE(RY)
(expense) for the year B — — — (60,292) — — 144,269 477,390 561,367 103,627 664,994

Release upon lapse of vested ERBEREAUR

options A& — — — - - (2,222) — 222 — — —
Share of other reserves of BiEBERRZEM
associates =11 — — — — (680) — — — (680) — (680)
Issue of shares under share option 1R i B & ## 5 8] 3¢ 17
scheme Bt 1670 1,406 - - - (364) - - m - 2m
Issue of placing shares BORERM 91,547 51,266 — — — — — — 142,813 — 142,813
Transaction costs attributable to 31T E & & {7 FE 16
issue of placing shares SHA —  (3,701) — — — — — - (3,701) —  (3,701)
Disposal of an associate (Note 43) 11 & — B & A A
(MiE43) - — — — (30,345 — — 30,345 — — -
Disposal of investments in equity tHE# X T ARE
instruments — — — 11,087 — — —  (11,087) — — —
Recognition of equity-settled RIRRELEE AR
share-based payment expense {3 X AR T — — — — — 129 — — 129 — 129
Transfer of reserves of subsidiaries £ & i B 22 7] 2 & & — — — — 2,752 — — (2752 — — —
Dividend distributed to mIFERER DKL
non-controlling interests % 8 — — — — — — — — — (2,081)  (2,081)
At 31 March 2018 R2018438318 551958 544511  (95368)  (256550) 58,683 3182 206,798 3698600 4,711,814 900,978 5612792
The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair BERNBBEASEMPBEHRELQR 2 BIMES
value and the carrying amount of the underlying assets and BhaoHBEERBE A FEERKEER
liabilities that are attributable to the additional interests in ZEB-AMEBHNLENE AR 2 EiH N
subsidiaries acquired by the Group. The amount would be HAEE(UREERE)KBREB GNP -
charged to retained profits upon disposal of interests in the . ) ) B
subsidiary or the relevant assets, whichever is earlier. REEMHBEENIERRIETRRAFE
B AHEtEARENER T AKREZREE
The investment revaluation reserve represents the changes in g
carrying amount of investments in equity instruments designated . L
as fair value through other comprehensive income since its initial & F ZHERIRREA KK ME ([HE])
recognition. ERASTE P B 37 2 B B A B2 BR B AR i R
HETHPIRIEATERHE RBEBREARRS
Other reserves mainly represent statutory reserve which is the BhEZHMEE -

appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation of
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the

“PRC") as pursuant to the PRC regulations and share of other
reserves of associates and joint ventures.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HZE2018F3A31HILFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
Notes FET FAET
B 5 (g E5))
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETEH
Profit (loss) before taxation & B4 B s A (& TE) 714,220 (22,701)
Adjustments for: BNFIIEE ETHE
Finance costs BB A 53,455 63,288
Loss on disposal of property, plant and REYE MW NERE
equipment 18 328 4,478
Share of results of associates BAEE 2 RN RIER (52,183)  (101,140)
Share of results of joint ventures BEEEhEER (2,429) (5,291)
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBEMNAERE 5,606 5,486
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hh A A 33,205 1,481
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME B REREBEZITE 88,164 54,964
Share-based payment expense UM REBE AL 129 839
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments REBMNMBEEZE 2 W (60) —
Net unrealised exchange (gain) loss AREDE S (W ah) B 1R FH (31,024) 9,538
Gain on disposal of investment properties BEREWE 2 W= (597) —
Impairment loss recognised for property, plant Y2 - M R R B 2 RE
and equipment E B R 17 148,049 —
Gain on disposal of an associate HE - g A E 2 e 43 (847,628) —
Gain on changes in fair value of investments BHIEESERIAKEY
in debt instruments held for trading ARRLE b€ (2,355) —
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of BIEEEHED Iﬂ&éz
investments in equity instruments held for ANFBEZSHEE (W)
trading 8,350 (5,724)
Gain on change in fair value of other financial HihwmEE s A FEE
asset BB (8,539) —
Net gain on fair value changes of investment REMERNFEBEEE 2
properties Y 25 5 58 18 (127,759) (1,697)
Bank and other interest income HRAT R E A F B A (4,910) (7,191)
Impairment loss recognised on a loan receivable  EUWE X 2 @z@;@is R 21,000 —
Net impairment loss recognised on trade and B 5 Kk H At B KBR R Z R (E
other receivables &5 18 F 5B R R 31,874 3,163
Operating cash flows before movements in RETEEEEHF 2K E
working capital EBHenE 26,896 (457)
Increase in stock of properties LEX AR bl (9,539) (13,516)
Increase in loans receivable JE W B K38 0 (331,600) —
Decrease in inventories of finished goods EmEER D 14,306 19,812
Increase in trade and other debtors, deposits B NEMERER 712
and prepayments Ko 78 4 5K I 12 hn (13,987) (4,091)
Increase in amounts due from associates JRE LS B 4 A A) FRIE S 0 (4,062) (2,137)
Increase in amount due from a joint venture FE U — P A 41 % 2 TE 432 (7) (161)
Decrease in investments in equity instruments BHEE Eﬁgﬁlﬂ&ﬁ/ﬂz >
held for trading 8,080 12,197
Increase in investments in debt instruments BIEEEGEBIERE N
held for trading (317,819) —
Increase in other financial asset Hibh & m & EEm (175,000) —
Increase in trade and other creditors and accrued & 5 K H b & < BR 3% 2 FE 51
expenses i 2 32 0 34,758 17,544
(Decrease) increase in amount due to a joint BN —RHEEDENRE
venture Om ) 1800 (254) 136
Decrease in amounts due to associates FE < Bt 2 A B BRE DR (7,354) —
Cash (used in) generated from operations (AR K g Ks ZEEJE (775,582) 29,327
The PRC tax paid, net ENPBRIE FE (11,175) (10,921)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING (AR XBEEETFH 2
ACTIVITIES REBE (786,757) 18,406
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEHERER
For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
Notes FHET FAET
Bt 5 (r &%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REETH
Net proceeds from disposal of an associate & — A AR TS A
FEE 43 1,735,150 —
Dividend received from an associate 2 —EEE R A RE 16,061 50,566
Bank and other interest income received 2 U R 1T R B A ) B A 4,933 7,684
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEWE W&
plant and equipment Fri8 %18 4,008 4,277
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments HE#ERE T ARSHE 2,000 —
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties fz & & W15 28 773 —
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments 5 & 78 (< 18 & 3% 18 A 18 X8 125 —
Release of pledged bank deposits ABEEBRITER 113 152,176
Payment in relation to property, plant and BEME  BWEREB AR
equipment (116,549) (64,104)
Additions to equity instruments BT BN (47,319) —
Advance to an associate ) — R B & AR EK (43,000) —
Increase in pledged bank deposits B R R 1T 13 )35 A0 (30,557) (113)
Additions to prepaid lease payments T8 7 & FRIA G N (7,834) —
Advance to joint ventures MEERERK (7,435) —
Additions to investment properties wEWEELM (3,071) (4,660)
Payment for project under development BEPIEE 21X — (5,202)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREFTH 2HESEE 1,507,398 140,624
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7l & T B
New bank and other borrowings raised TG ER 1T R H At 8 K 45 1,334,963 2,588,119
Repayment of bank and other borrowings B IR1T R H M {8 5K 45 (2,048,578) (2,799,977)
Proceeds from issue of placing shares BITE &R TS FIB 41 142,813 —
Proceeds from issue of shares under share option 1R #& & j% # =1 & 2% 17 I 19 P 15
scheme I8 2,712 1,631
Interest paid B 5 B 45 (81,344) (83,336)
Repayment of advance from an associate BE—[HBERRIER 45 (12,014) (59,808)
Transaction costs attributable to issue of placing 2% 77 c & fx 170 fE (h X 5 B A
shares 41 (3,701) —
(Repayment of) advance from amounts due to  (f&38) E 5 &5 F& 7 JE 122 IR 1 25
non-controlling interests ZRIA 45 (2,478) 88,036
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of ERTHE R R IR ER
subsidiaries B & (2,081) (145)
Contribution from non-controlling interests =LA — 12,854
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ARBMEZBEZ2REFE (669,708) (252,626)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= IE%/]ILE%

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
FExT FET
(&E75))
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND CASH B4 RERESZHIER
EQUIVALENTS R FH 50,933 (93,596)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES #h %< [E == ph s 5/ & 25,540 (15,905)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT BeREBSEEER
FORWARD 2 Bl 499,650 609,151
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED HeREBSEEER
FORWARD weE 576,123 499,650
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND HeREBESEEEBEESH
CASH EQUIVALENTS vk
Short term bank deposits MEIRITFR 248,276 184,079
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRS 327,847 315,571
576,123 499,650
note: For the year ended 31 March 2018, the net unrealised exchange gain of st NEE2018F3A31BLEEE  BLLUERER

approximately HK$31,024,000 arisen from amounts due from (to) group
companies is considered as an adjustment to cash flow from operating

activities for a more appropriate presentation. As such, the comparable
figure of net unrealised exchange loss of approximately HK$9,538,000
included in the effect of foreign exchange rate changes of cash and cash
equivalents previously reported in the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been reclassified to net cash
from operating activities for consistency, resulted in restatement of effect
of foreign exchange rate changes of cash and cash equivalents from
approximately HK$6,367,000 to approximately HK$15,905,000.

23 H R $%§Eﬁ<«%/é§32ﬁé” EEP
KEEK(ER SER IEZERHEEERM&
/?§§%731,024,000/%7E1)Fﬂjﬂ§k At BREF—

B REE2017F3ANBLEFEZHRE

Beng

%ﬁqfiﬁmfﬁ’f&;ﬁiiﬂ SEEH 2 HMNEE Rk
BrEER REREABEFEZAILEHT
Z’39538000,%7&%% THEEREBKE TS
FEOMRSLERSSEEAIEER S
£ £ B /H 46,367,000 T & ¥l /& £715,905,00075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

112 en

GENERAL 1.

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in AR EEREFHRZLATREER

Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The NA-HBROEEEBMEXSMBRAA

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock ([BtxzFrl) Fe RQAR 27 =5 A

Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the RETFTELLWBINAKERIATEE]

principal place of business of the Company are disclosed — S ERIEE -

in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual

report. meaMBmRUBT(ET 23 BT
MARRBZNEEEE

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the ARRR—MEREZERRAR -HEXZMNE

functional currency of the Company. DA BERRREELECEBFBH
FIRAP EES3

The Company is an investment holding company. The

activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures are set out in Note 53.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EAHIIREBIE BB R

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

EREA(TEEMBREER D

RAFEER NEEERERHELEES

o

ERIREMBHmELED

BRGERETR WEFE

(#1B3T)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative BEASHEAFE 129 AEREEER
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax (&1BET) EEFIBE E
Assets for Unrealised Losses HEEVBWMELER  {EFR2014-2016%F
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual F1258 (&1IE85]) BEREUBRSE
Improvements to HKFRSs AERIF B 2
2014-2016 Cycle — &

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the Group'’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows
from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.
Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii)
changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in Note 45. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has
not disclosed comparative information for the prior year.
Apart from the additional disclosure in Note 45, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

P 3 E] R AEMEE] & B B 3% 3R
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 22
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Amendments to HKFRS 4
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

1 14 P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

2018 Annual Report
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEAFHIT R KB E BB KR
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING LEA(EBHBHREELD)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) (¢8)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EEMERER ZHT REERT

not yet effective (Continued) ERMB®REER (&)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 1 R2018F 1 ATHS ARz 2F M4
4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

? 2019 1 AMB SN HB 2 2F HM4E

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 Y
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 2021 F1AVB SN ARz 2F8HHA4E
determined 4

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
is early adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on 1 April 2014. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

¢ REFHEEANRZEAGEZ2FHELE
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BEMB®REERFIN (20145F)
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FR 2009 4F 78 115 2 T 75 B 75 3R 5 E B B 99%
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TE o 2014 M 2 BB ISR E ERE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014), other than those
relating to classification and measurement of financial
assets covered in HKFRS 9 (2009) which have been early
adopted by the Group with 1 April 2014 as its date of
initial application (i.e. the date on which the Group has

reassessed the classification of its financial assets in
accordance with requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009)), are
described below:

"
L4

In addition to the requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009),
debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount of outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI.

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

®» PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 (2014) requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors
of the Company anticipate the following potential impact
on initial application of HKFRS 9 (2014) (excluding the
scope of HKFRS 9 (2009) that has been early adopted by
the Group with a date of initial application on 1 April
2014):

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS
9 (2014) will result in earlier provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s
financial assets measured at amortised cost and other
items that subject to the impairment provisions upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 April 2018 would not be significantly
different as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKFRS 9 (2009). It is also expected that
the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) in future may not have
other significant impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities based
on the Group's existing business model.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

1 18 P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue of
the Company and its subsidiaries recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

120 P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

P ET R AEEE] & B M 3% 3
%%UE%M&%%%%D

BEREMBREENFISH/KEF
FERZRAIE)

R2016%F - ER G R GBMGE BB
HELBBISHBMBRBOE  F5E
ANEREBRE R ERFHEDZBE -

PE
H
=

bl

RRREFEAY NERERTEMBR
ERABISHALERFLESHE A
M- ARREFEHERBENBREE
AT e HERREPHERAR
ALEMBRARIMAZERREBBEEAXN

B2 488
A

BRMBRELERF 16K/ EE

ERVBHREERF 1R BB ANLEAR
AEANHE RS RS EIE S| A—E4
BEA - EFBUBHRELEF16RER
B IR BB G ERE17R/EE R
HEA R R o

BN B REENF16RARIEMBSNEE
ELHEFENRESDHERRBALD -
BRERHEREEEERESN K2R
EHENEZRaABEAGHRETBLK
YHEABABLAEHERAEREEE
LEEAENEAENR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16. As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$27,701,000 as
disclosed in Note 48(a).

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$3,099,000 and refundable
rental deposits received of HK$3,526,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would
be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("Cco").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 (2009) or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

126 P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, with certain exemptions.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose, and land under development for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, the carrying amount of the property
at the date of transfer is at fair value.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

An investment property carried at fair value is transferred
to properties for sales when there is a change in use
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale of the relevant properties. The fair value of the
property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost of the
property for its subsequent accounting in accordance with
HKAS 2.
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130 en

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

Land under development for rentals and/or capital
appreciation as investment properties are recognised and
classified as investment properties upon the
commencement of land leveling process after the intended
purpose of the land development can be determined and
transferred from project under development. Construction
costs incurred for development are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the land under development. Land
under development is measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between the fair
value of the land under development and its carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing
cost capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project
under development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties under development for sale or
property, plant and equipment or investment properties,
as appropriate, when the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined upon commencement of
land leveling process.
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Stock of properties

Stock of completed properties is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and stock of properties under
development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to complete. Cost of stock of properties
is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale proceeds
received after the end of the reporting period, or, if not
yet sold after the end of the reporting period, by
management estimates based on prevailing market
condition. The relevant costs include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties.

Stock of properties is transferred at fair value to investment
properties upon the commencement of a lease as evidence
for a change in use.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or
a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (2009). The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at
the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal or partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

T BUR (&)

RBELAARGELEEZRE (H)

EAKERIERNBLERRRALELEL
PrEEmEASEEERBEDER
AEBBBEEREMEE KR ERZI
SmHER REROAEEER ZABLL
PlEFHHTBERZ(HZKam B EKE
HEHREEXRERENDBEERD) -

4
ﬂﬂl

o

ﬁ AEEEBEAREZBERAIHE
BERENTRZWMHESHTIAEE) &
%%%QT&A“ﬁ%ﬁﬂx%%FEZ
BoEeafMBEARNAELR IR
SEASEEENERLT  TE@EAEH

REMIBHRER -

Hth B EE

XBEEHUWEBZEREE
EBAHMRBZENEEB LN EEE
R ARBEAHZAFEEENTER
(ERBEZKA) °

MNEERR XAt REMSEERSF
HIBRZ BV EERKAR R #H R E
MR RMEBEINK - EFRFHERZE
FEEGRNEERFMAREREER
BN EBAFRBASAEEER
ERFHRZBELEERKARIMERR
AAREERIIKR(ERTXEBET LEF
BEREBBRZEFER) -

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
any subsequently accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") and
compressed natural gas (“CNG") for sales, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

On initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial
assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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138 en

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method and net of any
impairment loss, if:

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise,
on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that

form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those classified as financial
assets measured at amortised cost are classified as
measured at fair value, with all changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss, except as stated below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group may elect at initial recognition, on an
instrument by instrument basis, to present gains and losses
in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). For such
investments measured at FVTOCI, gains and losses are
never reclassified to profit or loss, and no impairment is
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends earned from such
investments are recognised in profit or loss, unless the
dividend clearly represents a repayment of part of the cost
of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and FVTOCI, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other debtors, loans receivable,
amounts due from associates and amount due from a joint
venture, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amount(s) due to associates/a joint venture/non-controlling
interests and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

FTESTHBERE)

€I A (&)

THREERERZ TR

HEEERBETZES MED TAKEAR
UZAKREME URkeREERER
TEAZEEDERTRHABELARE TR -

EHITAH
BaITARTRNENRAEEMEBER
mm%$%léﬁﬁﬂ%%*z ORIV
NREIT R T AR KREZ AT RIE
(MBREEEITHAR) BR

BRI BR
ERANEENHESRABZHEREAR
RERMBBEOMNERZTE - BEHN
XNHEFREAN RS (BEAKER
MEAKRET D 22 EBANIAEER X
GRA UREMEERTR)ZSRE
EZEMFER  BEHE(HER) BEK
BRREVSHERAR ZREFEZNE -

MBS HHIRERN B EERER -

TEMEE

TRABEEREZ REMBEMNER &

NEERE,/ —Heghx FEhkEa

,nIELA&ﬂ% TREMEF)GRERNE
ERERABBEXANTE -

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such cost are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from distribution of LPG and CNG is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised
upon the execution of binding sales agreements and
delivery of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are included in
the current liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Income from port, port logistics and supporting services is
recognised when the respective services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense or capitalised in contracts in progress,
where appropriate, when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/loss before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period/
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve. When the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of

disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties
As described in Note 3, for the purpose of measuring
deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of

"
L4

)

fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

Based on the above basis, the directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the deferred tax consequences in
respect of investment properties are assessed based
on the best estimate of the tax consequence upon
sale of the properties directly or sale through entities
holding these properties or consume substantially
over time.

For the leasehold land and buildings which were
classified as investment properties, these properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on the leasehold land
and buildings, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the
developed land and land under development are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or
sale through entities holding these properties. For
those properties which would be subject to the PRC
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"”) upon disposal,
deferred tax on the temporary difference between
the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND 4., FESTHHEHRTABEBEMGFTZ
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION FERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
EREBREZ2EEHE (&)
Crit.ic.al judgm.ent in applying accounting () REEWE>AFEESETE
policies (Continued)

RZIELEHIEE & (&)

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of EETR T HIZEENR 2MABESED
fair value adjustments on investment B EMHEERBELEHEBEEE - R
properties (Continued) 201843 HA31H » B M % i & f &
The relevant amount of potential PRC LAT had been Rty HIEERSRE AL
recognised as a deferred tax liability based on the 263,689,0007% 7T (2017 : 203,203,000
above judgment. The amount of PRC LAT of BT e
developed land and land under development as at
31 March 2018 is approximately HK$263,689,000 (b) BEHIEHE
(2017: HK$203,203,000). ZRPEEZCERAABE(NE

RIHEEERARBTERNZEE

(b) Project under development A - T EERIEE BT A B AR
Development costs of project under development T IEEFAREET  ER%RE
include, where appropriate, relevant development KABIREEED JEBEESNEFE
costs and borrowing cost capitalised. Upon MEmmE(EZVERER —KE
commencement of land leveling process, the BEREPEE) QWE &R
intended purpose of the land development can be B (EZYERBERR) HE)EEW
determined and relevant project development costs 2 (EZDELABEFEEEE/HENR
will be transferred at the carrying value to (1) 18(F) o

properties under development for sale if the
properties are for sales purpose during the ordinary
course of business; (2) property, plant and equipment
if the properties are for own use; or (3) investment
properties if the properties are held for rentals and/
or capital appreciation.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(c) Judgments on the completion date of
construction-in-progress
The construction of port facilities involves various
points in time and different parts of the construction
projects to complete and reach to its intended use.
The Group transfers the construction-in-progress to
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment
upon the completion of respective parts of the port
facilities and obtains approval from the authorities
for the rights to operate. If there are significant
changes from the approval date by the authorities
and the date that reach to its intended use, the cost
of the property, plant and equipment and the
relevant depreciation may change. Management
considers the approval by authorities for the rights to
operate is an activity necessary to prepare the
qualifying assets for its intended use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

(a) Fair value measurements and valuation
processes
Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. Management of the Company
works closely with the valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a) Fair value measurements and valuation
processes (Continued)
The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs which are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Notes 18, 24, 32 and 44c
provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.

(b) Provision for stock of properties
In assessing the net realisable value of stock of
properties, the Groups engages qualified professional
valuer to provide information on market comparable
samples used in the assessment. Management of the
Company applies adjustment factors on market
comparable samples used in valuation of completed
properties held for sale and properties under
development for sale; estimates further costs to be
expended for the development of properties under
development for sale by reference of development
costs expended for formed land; and determines
discount rate used in net present value calculation of
stock of properties.

The Group recognises provision for stock of
properties according to net realisable value of the
stock of properties. Provision for stock of properties
is required to be recognised when there is sign
showing that the net realisable value is lower than
the carrying value. Recognition of net realisable value
involves judgment and estimation.

If the result of new estimation differs from current
estimation, such difference will impact the carrying
value of stock of properties for the corresponding
period.

4. TEEFHERFABBEMIZ

FERR (&)
THE M 2 EERIF(H)

(a)

(b)

NFEETERGERES (&)
AEEFEABECHFERTERT
% B 2 AR 2 A E T - (A E
ETHEASMIAZAFEE: M
1824 32 R4AcEHBERAREEZE
BEATEBEZHERN - @ AR
REBEREZZFHE-

WEFEBERE
RFEMERFEZAIZERFEE
AEEZEAEREXRMGEMEHR
AERERTmSEAELREARAZE
Bt ARRIEEEMETEETHNEF
HEMEEREHEERYEEER
FIER MG ELBREAEAR
EERX 2RETRELIMMELEZ #
BRRAGHERUDEEEZYER
TELEZE-TKRA  YEEFTEY
ETE2FREMERZBEE-

AEBEREMEFENAERFE

BRMEFERERE EFETR

B R 3R E K BR (B R R

RYEFERERE - AIRERFEN
BE KA R A5 o
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158 en

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c) Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment
In assessing the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment, the Group engages an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform
the valuation in the assessment. The valuation is
dependent on inputs that involve both the directors’
and the independent qualified professional valuer’s
judgments, including forecasting of future operating
cash flows of the property, plant and equipment and
determining the discount rates, which subject to
uncertainty. Note 17 provides detailed information
about the recoverable amount calculation.

PRC LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC which has
been included in income tax expense of the Group.
However, the Group has not finalised its LAT returns
with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. Accordingly, significant

(d)

judgment is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover the
carrying amount of its assets.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expense and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. As at 31 March
2018, the carrying amount of LAT provision (included
in deferred tax liabilities) was approximately
HK$465,384,000 (2017: HK$392,094,000).

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

4. TEEFHERFABEMITZ
EFEZRIR ()

THE M 2 EERIF(H)

(9]

(d)

W BERREZRESRE
REFEWE B kRG22 RE S
BE ASEZE-R2BILAER
BEEXGEMETHEPNMGEE K
BEERRIREZERBUYAGERE
EEERMHE 2 AR BREER
ME BMERBIARAREEXHAR
EREYEERBEX  HFETHEE
M ME17TRHAETRESE
HHER -

B + 4 1E 8

AEBR T BEAMMA LT IBER -
ERRSEBEaRAKEZMAEN
ERAA- AN AKREHRREET
WERMBRB RREHETK L
AR R - B - HEE D IBER
HBHec BB EFEANZH
B - A B EXBERETEABERL
BIH - AEBEERZLBER AKX
SEEMRNREN AT RLEZE
ERHEEZTAMELEZHALER

WMZEEENREBREERERY
SR BETR BFHEEZEEBTE
MEETHAZAEHEBRAMET
FRIE B - 720183 A31H L
EERBERENECHREERE
N ) 2 BR T {8 4 /& 465,384,0007% 7T
(2017 : 392,094,000 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e) Deferred tax asset
At 31 March 2018, no deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses of HK$911 million (2017:
HK$879 million) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to
unpredictability of future profit streams of those
subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future profits
generated by those subsidiaries are more than
expected, a material deferred tax credit would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which the tax losses are utilised.

(f) Estimated impairment of loans receivable and
trade and other debtors
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition, where applicable). Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2018, the
carrying amounts of loans receivable and trade and
other debtors are HK$372,700,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HK$21,000,000) (2017:
carrying amount of HK$62,100,000 with no
allowance for doubtful debts) and HK$192,042,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$37,092,000) (2017: carrying amount of
HK$200,322,000, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$3,450,000) respectively.

4. TEEFHERFABBEMIZ
EFERIR (F|)

THE M 2 EERIF(H)

(e)

®

BEEHIELE

R2018F3A31H HRMEBEARZ
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i 7% B 1891118 78 7L (2017 : 8.7918
BT EERBEEYERASER
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the
borrowings disclosed in Notes 35, 37 and 38, net of cash
and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of

5. EXERERE

REBEEBREER UBREAIHELE
X AREBBLEKXEERAYE &

ERFMZ AR SR - NEE 2 BERKE
EFER -
AREBZEARBAENBERENASSE

EEBEBEENWEIS 378382 EH K

the Company, comprising issued share capital and various

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider

ARBIFEAEAZEERD(BREDSEHITR
AR ZIEFHR)
ARAEFEHRMITEARRE - ERS
Z—HD BEFEEEARARERETE

EARZRER - AEEERBRMNKE - %
THRD EETHEXERRAEER  F

the cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The fE E R B E R o
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the

payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

6. REVENUE AND GROSS PROCEEDS

Revenue and gross proceeds are analysed as follows:

6. WARFFEREALE

WARBRIBABZONTWMT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Sale of properties HEME 10,782 867

Sale of LPG and CNG products HERELABA R

R4 KRR E M 161,547 167,325

Income from port related services B EEERB KA 405,295 365,306

Property rental and related income MEBE RAERYA 11,482 9,952

Interest income from loans receivable EWE R F B WA 19,227 7,985
Interest income from investments in debt BEESEEKIAEREY

instruments held for trading B U A 15,747 —
Dividend income from investments in equity F{FEEHZ T ALK E

instruments held for trading B 8 A 320 2,542

Group revenue SBERA 624,400 553,977

Gross proceeds from securities trading BEBEMERBEE 59,041 12,197

683,441 566,174
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments of the Group are determined
based on information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (the Managing Director of the
Company) for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and its
performance is evaluated through organising business
units with similar economic characteristics into an
operating segment.

In respect to the enlarged business in the investment and
trading of more diversified securities products, the previous
operating and reportable segment of “Treasury” segment
has been split into to the segments of “Securities” and
“Treasury” in reporting to the Managing Director of the
Company, consistent with how performance of each
business is assessed. As a result of the changes to
reportable segments and segment presentation, the
segment revenue and results and other information for the
year ended 31 March 2017 and segment assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2017 has been restated to
conform to the current presentation.

KEIZ BN BEAKBEEEZER
RE(KRRABHIBREE2/ZER /T
BRDERRBFEMERE -

ZEREARETREXBEMLZIREE
ER#BR MEAXRRDBBAKELAREL
BRENRGEMAEKKEE D B2 7
ity o

EREEZTHESFERIRERETED
WA ERAARAAIREZ &Hj BAEKLE
RuBENEIEKIS»HEDIFAIES]
MIEBHIDE  WEFESEFRRAZE
BARAX—H -BRAUBRED RS T
WRBEMEY  WEE2017F3A/83181EF
EzaBBRAREEREMER - LER
2017F3A3NB N HMBEERABHKE
FIARFEBRIT 20 8mA R e
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER(E)
The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as AEEBZKERAIREDEWAT -
follows:

RERZEEE — BFEHE LAKRTE-

Paul Y. Engineering — Building construction, civil BRER BEERE-
Group engineering, development B LEEEEERG
management, project KMERE
management, facilities and asset
management services and EOER — BOREREOEE
investment in properties MEZERE
Ports development — Development of ports facilities B0 YR — &0 kA HBE LR
and ports related properties BARARELNALD
TMET 2 &8
Ports and logistics ~ — Operation of ports, LPG and CNG
products and logistics businesses 3 — FWEME BEREL
- BB AR 4 b R B B
Property — Development, investment, sale FIEE 2B -1KRE -
and leasing of real estate HENREE
properties, developed land, land
under development and projects Febs — BFRERER
under development
&5 75 — EHEERB R
Securities — Investment and trading of B EIR
securities
EORYMRSBMYESBERE — LR
Treasury — Provision of credit services and FESAZER TN ZEBERE  ARal4
cash management HRREGHEER —EEBNEKEL -
REFDBME BN SLEFNER
Both ports and logistics segment and property segment B BABREAEERMRS 2 EE EEMN
include a number of different operations in various cities B CEXEEBSER ERY IR
within the PRC, each of which is considered as a separate EHEURESIBIERER I RED
business unit by the Managing Director of the Company. NEEEBZHEML T o

For segment reporting purpose, these individual business
units have been aggregated into reportable segments
according to the nature and similarity of their products
and services, the customer type or class, the method of
products distribution or providing services, and the
regulatory environment, which give rise to a more
meaningful presentation.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of earnings or loss before interest expense and
tax (“EBIT or LBIT”) and earnings or loss before interest
expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA or
LBITDA").

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2018

7. 7HEH (&)

RARBBEERERAFNEREZRMIEA
A 22 F 8 &5 48 (TEBITELLBIT]) & & 51 &l B
MY BB -TERBENRANNER
([EBITDASKLBITDA]) 2 &5t & + PAGEff & &
BNz RR -

L ONES
PRES S FONES ¢ d-) Okt

DEE D2

HZE2018F3A31BIEFE

Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group development logistics  Property  Securities  Treasury consolidated
RE BOKR aWEF
BEXEE BOBRRE b L/ES &F E#% R&&
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THERT TER TET TERT THET TET
REVENUE WA — —_ 566,842 22,264 16,067 19,227 624,400
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM ~ ®# % BE TSR E
SECURITIES TRADING Fk] — — — — 59,041 — 59,041
- —_ 566,842 22,264 75,108 19,227 683,441
EBITDA* EBITDA* 15,418 — 826,694 100,421 13,899 923 957,355
Depreciation and e R
amortisation** — —  (116,160) (5,196) (6) (7) (121,369)
Segment results —EBIT 73 &f £ 45 —EBIT 15,418 — 710534 95225 13,893 916 835,986
Corporate and other N E MR
expenses*** (68,311)
Finance costs BB Bk A (53,455)
Profit before taxation & B AR F 714,220
Taxation BB (212,461)
Profit for the year FEE A 501,759
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (restated)

7. 7HEH (&)

2R K EE (&)

HE2017F3A31BILEE(KEY)

Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group development logistics Property Securities Treasury consolidated
R BOR ABAH
EEEE BOER iR ES # 5 B iR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FAET
REVENUE KA — — 532,631 10,819 2,542 7,985 553,977
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM % B & T8 1E
SECURITIES TRADING Pk — — — — 12,197 — 12,197
— — 532,631 10,819 14,739 7,985 566,174
EBITDA (LBITDA)* EBITDA (LBITDA)* 29,015 — 171,035 (2,919) 7,516 12,997 217,644
Depreciation and W& R g x
amortisation** — — (49,636) (6,741) — (68) (56,445)
Segment results — EBIT 43 8 % 45 —EBIT (LBIT)
(LBIT) 29,015 — 121,399 (9,660) 7,516 12,929 161,199
Corporate and other R H MR S rer
expenses* * (120,612)
Finance costs B A (63,288)
Loss before taxation B AER (22,701)
Taxation 1A (1,318)
Loss for the year EFEER (24,019)

* Gain on disposal of an associate of approximately HK$847,628,000
(2017: Nil) and impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$148,049,000 (2017: Nil) have been
recognised in the ports and logistics operating segment during the
year.

*x Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of other intangible assets.

*** Including acquisition-related costs for potential projects of
approximately HK$23,012,000 (2017: HK$21,354,000) and net
exchange gain of HK$30,197,000 (2017: loss of HK$28,139,000).
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating and reportable segment:

At 31 March 2018

7.

7 EE R (&)

THEERARE

NTRAKSHEEENBBEREERARE
DEE D2

M2018F3 HA31H

Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group development logistics Property  Securities Treasury consolidated
REE B0 AEWEE
BESEH BOBE R L/ES #H BE#% kRixéE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET THET THERT THERT TERT THET
ASSETS &
Segment assets DEEE 516,795 405,204 2,379,708 3,499,062 540,387 763,683 8,104,839
Unallocated assets RKOREE 14,495
Consolidated total assets 43 & 48 & &= 8,119,334
LIABILITIES aE
Segment liabilities DEEE — — 1,158,580 1,197,381 15,866 121,674 2,493,501
Unallocated liabilities AN =R 13,041
Consolidated total LARERE
liabilities

2,506,542
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7.

166 e

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 March 2017 (restated)

Paul Y.
Engineering Ports
Group development

R

BREE BO#ERE
HK$'000  HK$'000

7. DWER (R
PTHMEERAE (B
201743 A31 8 (K E7)
Ports Segment
and total and
logistics Property Securities Treasury consolidated
e DEbA &
37bin LUES 2 [ % S

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET FHET FHT FHT FHT FHET
ASSETS &E
Segment assets D EE BE 554,369 358,916 3,374,608 3,100,606 54,301 324,353 7,767,153
Unallocated assets RKOWREE 14,403
Consolidated total assets 43 & 48 & &= 7,781,556
LIABILITIES X
Segment liabilities HDEEE — — 1,157,660 1,131,743 1,447 669,611 2,960,461
Unallocated liabilities AOBLEE 12,489
Consolidated total CAEEE
liabilities 2,972,950

Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and liabilities
of the operating subsidiaries, as well as interests in
associates, joint ventures and investments in equity
instruments that are engaged in relevant segmental
businesses. Accordingly, segment assets exclude corporate
assets which are mainly bank balances and cash and other
receivables, and segment liabilities exclude corporate
liabilities which are mainly other payables.

For the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance, deferred tax liabilities are allocated
to segment liabilities but the related deferred tax credit/
charge are not reported to the Managing Director of the
Company as part of segment results.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EER(E)
Other information HiaER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s other TRARKERARE DI RANERH
information by operating and reportable segment: &R Z o HT
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE2018F3A31HILFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group development logistics Property Securities Treasury Consolidated
RE B0
EBXKE BOBR )&/bi mE #E E#% o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Amounts included in the A REBES DY
measure of segment results BESEIHE:
or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets 3% 8 3 7= &) & &
other than finandial instruments (4 78 T B[4 4h) — — 83,181 24,633 156 156 108,126
Release of prepaid lease payments 3 # Y8 (1 f &€ 1A — — 5,578 28 — — 5,606
Impairment loss recognised ona  fEUE i 7 FiEE B
loan receivable ! — — — — — 21,000 21,000
(Reversal of) impairment loss B 5 N H h JE U R
recognised on trade and other ZREEBERER
receivables (B [E) - — (496) 32,370 - — 31,874
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, [z & ¥ % - # 4 & &
plant and equipment -l 210 &) — — 458 (130) — — 328
Impairment loss on property, plant % % « # 45 K % & 2
and equipment RIEEE — — 148,049 - — — 148,049
Bank and other interestincome  $§ 77 Jz E fh % 2 Uk A - —_ 2,983 527 - 1,389 4,899
Unallocated interest income KOBFEWA 1
4,910
Interests in associates RNl vy 485,523 — 248,805 — — — 734,328
Interests in joint ventures SRR — — — 96,201 — — 96,201
Share of results of associates BEMA NG EE 15,417 — 36,766 — — — 52,183
Share of results of joint ventures (5 & & ¥ ¥ 4E — — - 2,429 - — 2,429
Losson changes in fairvalue of ~ #{EEERZ T AR
investments in equity B ATEEES
instruments held for trading & Té _ _ _ _ 8,350 _ 8,350
Gainon changes in fairvalue of ~ H{EEEEHK T AR
investments in debt instruments & Z TEEEE
held for trading U 3% _ _ _ _ 2,355 _ 2,355
Gain on change in fair value of HMeRmEEZAT
other financial asset BEZeHKE — _ — — 8,539 — 8,539
mt) REEBABR AR 2018 FH;
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EER(EF)
Other information (Continued) HaE R (HF)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (restated) HZE2017F3A31BLLFEE (EED)
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group  development logistics Property Securities Treasury  Consolidated
RE w0
EXEE BO¥RE &bl S EH B ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET TET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the FAPREES S Y
measure of segment results BESE HE
or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets 12 EE JEE B L E
other than financial instruments (BT ERBRIN) _ _ 37,725 12,290 — — 50,015
Release of prepaid lease payments 8 # 78 1+ 1 & 518 — — 5,486 - - — 5,486
Impairment loss recognised on %%&ﬁﬁﬁf’él&m
trade and other receivables ZREBEER - — 3,163 - — — 3,163
Reversal of bad debt written off 3 [B] B #i $4 7 = R — — 648 - - — 648
Loss on disposal of property, plant iz & 4] 2 - # & 3%
and equipment w2 ER — — 2,186 2,292 — — 4,478
Bank and other interestincome  $R 4T R E M K 2 A — — 1,346 728 - 5,106 7,180
Unallocated interest income KAOEAEKA "
7,191
Interests in associates BENAER 461,900 — 1,285,735 — — — 1,747,635
Interests in joint ventures AEbERER — — 85,304 — — 85,304
Share of results of associates b N 29,015 — 72,125 — — — 101,140
Share of results of joint ventures {5 & &> ¥ 4E — — 5,291 — — 5,291
Gainon changes in fairvalue of ~ H{EEEEFZ T AR
investments in equity Bz REBEE
instruments held for trading B _ _ _ 5,724 _ 5,724
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC other than Hong Kong.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical market based on location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

7 EE R (&)

i & & R

AEBZEBTBZUREERTE(TE
BEE) -

TERR/AEBRARET S E D (R
EPHMAEME - T E /R R M)
Z o

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FAET

Hong Kong a5 28,841 7,135
The PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TBRERE) 589,426 543,760
Others Hib 6,133 3,082
624,400 553,977

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets excluding financial instruments, analysed by
the geographical location of assets:

NWTRIRBDEEREEREE ZMEM
BED (TEBEERIAE) Z0H:

Non-current
assets excluding financial

instruments
(RBEE(FEESMIEA)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Hong Kong a8 489,952 466,368
The PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TBRERE) 3,677,656 4,448,794
4,167,608 4,915,162

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there is no
customer who individually contributed more than 10% of
total revenue of the Group.

TREFZEHR

NEE2018F K2017E3A31HIFEE -
MEBANEPHEAEBE ZEZKRABRA
10% °
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170 en

OTHER INCOME 8. HitWt A
Other income includes: Hag A8 45
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Bank and other interest income HRAT R CH A F) A 4,910 7,191
Rental income from short term leasing of RHEEMERECHSBA
stock of properties 2,942 3,283
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HitlmkEHR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Gain on changes in fair value of investments FIEEEBHE T AKE 2 A F
in debt instruments held for trading BEEZH K= 2,355 —
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of BFFEEERIAREZAYF
investments in equity instruments BEEE2H (FE) ke
held for trading (8,350) 5,724
Gain on change in fair value of other Hith & MEEL A VEEE
financial asset Wz 8,539 —
Impairment loss recognised on a loan & W E B2 R B B R HE R
receivable (21,000) —
Impairment loss recognised on trade and B 5 Rk E M W EIE 2R E
other receivables EIEER (31,874) (3,163)
Reversal of bad debt written off BB B ME 2 EER — 643
Net exchange gain (loss) 5 W= (E18) F5 30,197 (28,139)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEEYE BEWRNMEREZEER
equipment (328) (4,478)
Gain on disposal of investment properties EEREWE N 597 —
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments g & 8 1 78 & 318 2 W 2 60 —
(19,804) (29,408)
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10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Hb & A
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Acquisition-related costs for potential B U BESE T 18 B MHREE 2 A A

projects 23,012 21,354

Net development expenses for resort project FEERIEE v F 3% & B %5
in the PRC 10,697 7,781
33,709 29,135
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11. FINANCE COSTS

11. @& R A&

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Borrowing costs on: EERAK :
Bank borrowings IRITE K 67,756 77,437
Amounts due to associates iANR: A WNCIE ] 102 1,474
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE T FE PR AR HE 25 TR IE 5,195 1,001
Imputed interest expense on other payables E b EM R 2 HEE R B H X 990 1,079
Other borrowings H & 3K 2,824 2,475
76,867 83,466
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BIEBRERWE - R
construction in progress (included in REAZEZIREER
property, plant and equipment) 2 EEE (8,730) (8,601)
Amount capitalised in respect of BERsRNMERE2#
properties under development for LETEMEBLR 8
sale (included in stock of properties) (10,152) (8,375)
Amount capitalised in respect of BUERZEPREMEER
investment properties under pl
development (4,530) (3,202)
53,455 63,288
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing BREAZEERAETENEEREL

costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds
were specifically invested in the project and properties

during the year.
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12.EE BS1THRAEREEM
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS o

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments

() EERBEITBRAEMS

ERSEMNERQ017: AER)ES
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ZFAZBELT :
seven (2017: five) directors are as follows:

FABBIMNESTHAETANE

None of the directors has waived any emoluments (2017 : #) »
during the year (2017: Nil).
Salaries Retirement Share-
and benefit based
other Discretionary scheme  payment
Name of directors EEpg Fees  benefits bonus**  contribution  expense Total
AR 12
DY BAEAN ZAHE
e HiEd BETEAL* &It 2% &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER THER THER THER TER
2018
Executive directors HITESE
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2eR 440 5,520 10,550 552 64 17,126
Sue Ka Lok* BRR 4L~ 362 - — - - 362
Wu Yan Yee* HRR & > 105 370 80 14 — 569
Non-executive director EHTES
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan* PR R 25 — - - - 25
Independent non-executive BIEHTESE
directors
Chan Shu Kin R f5f B2 824 — — — — 824
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HER 589 — — — — 589
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond®* e 626 — — — — 626
2,971 5,890 10,630 566 64 20,121
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12. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12.EE BSTHRAEREEM

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

= (%)
() ESERESITHRAEME (F)

Salaries Retirement
and benefit Share-based
other Discretionary scheme payment
Name of directors EENA Fees benefits bonus** contribution expense Total
AR
Rk BRER  ZNRE
we HMEH  BISEaL FTEIHK b3 G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAET FAT FAT FAT FHET
2017
Executive director HITES
Lau Tom Ko Yuen EI=NE 437 5,281 629 528 430 7,305
Non-executive director FHTES
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan* Peg 2 At 364 419 — 6 — 789
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Chan Shu Kin R £ B2 788 — — — — 788
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EHEE 536 — — — — 536
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond** B 599 — — — — 599
2,724 5,700 629 534 430 10,017

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
are for their services in connection with management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’'s and independent

non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
are for their services as directors of the Company.
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company (which is
equivalent to Chief Executive) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chairman and Managing Director.

# Redesignated as non-executive director with effect from 22

July 2016 and resigned with effect from 25 April 2017.
# Resigned with effect from 1 June 2018.
* Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2018.

*x The discretionary bonus is an incentive based on individual
performance which has been determined and approved by
the remuneration committee.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included one director (2017: one director) of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out
in Note 12(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four
(2017: four) highest paid individuals, who are
employees of the Group, are as follows:

12.EFE BETHAEREESTH

% (

(a)

(b)

&)

ESERESITRAEME (&)

FERAEENMB/ARBEFERAE
(HEREZSTTHRAR)  EXMHEE
BeMEeBRREFEREIFRAEIIRE
IR 2% -

# FAERIIENITEE - B20166F7H22
A#EA s BB E MN2017F4A825
B4 -

b H2018F6 A1 HBEIT -
* REE2018F3831B I FEEZT -

o BB TR R @ B K B M E 2
B WRHMEZ R eEE RAE -

BEME

AEERAFERURSHFABR
BARA —RBEFQ7: —BE
£) EMEFBM EXHE126)PT
?ﬁo

HHpBASERE 2mM% (2017 : M@
F)BBHABZEAMEWT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FBT

Salaries and other benefits HehHEMEH 13,600 13,304

Discretionary bonus (note) B 15 TE AL (B 7F) 49,371 1,533
Retirement benefit scheme RIRFEFIE B

contributions 345 280

Share-based payment expense IBRGOZAFE RS 65 585

63,381 15,702
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

12.EFE BETHAERIEESTH
% (&)

(b) EEM<E ()
BEZMEHAIWMT -

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T — 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T Z 3,000,000 % 7T 1 —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7% 7T 2 4,000,000 7% 7T 1 —
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7% JT & 6,000,000 7T
(note) (B &E) — 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7% 7T £ 6,500,000 7% 7T
(note) (K1) — 1"
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 12,500,001 % 7T Z 13,000,000 % 7T
(note) (K1) 1# —
HK$44,500,001 to HK$45,000,000 44,500,001 % 7T Z 45,000,000 % 7T
(note) (B &E) 1 -
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

note: For the year ended 31 March 2018, an aggregate amount
of discretionary bonus to members of senior management
(excluding directors) of HK$46,099,000 (2017:
HK$1,196,000) has been determined and approved by the
remuneration committee.

# The above emoluments represent the remuneration paid/
payable to members of senior management (excluding
directors) classified by band of emoluments.
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13. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 13. R AIREF (EE)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit (loss) before taxation has been arrived B a0EF) (BB EMNE -
at after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & =
(note (a) below) (FXHiit(a) 33,205 1,481
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT B &
— Audit services — ZE R 3,139 3,318
— Non-audit services — IR BURT 3,234 1,422
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 2248 A 2 17 & A 113,628 137,436
Depreciation of property, plant and M MR EBEZITE
equipment (note (b) below) (FXHaE®b) 88,164 54,964
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KEHEMER
Land and premises T RETF 10,907 10,828
Plant and machinery A N 2R A5 1,967 2,089
Release of prepaid lease payments ABENBEENRE 5,606 5,486
Staff costs (note (c) below) B IRA (X)) 264,539 180,819
and after crediting: I 25 A
Dividend income from investments in equity ##{EEERHR T AKRE Y
instruments held for trading f% B U A 320 2,542
Rental income under operating leases in KEMEKEHREZHS K
respect of investment properties, net of A - BB X $84,207,000
outgoings of HK$4,207,000 (2017: 778 (2017 2,780,000/ 7T.)
HK$2,780,000) 7,275 7,172
Total interest income (included in revenue & F B8 U A (B 2R KA K
and other income) HEmkAA) 39,884 15,176
Government grants recognised 1 RBUT A BE (T XXM 3 ()
(note (d) below) 19,725 21,440

F
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13. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 13. BR#¥ AR R (B18) ()
(CONTINUED)
notes: Btat -
(@ Amortisation of other intangible assets (a) H b B
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHT
Amount provided for the year FEBRER 33,252 1,526
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties under & : BIEBR SR WEFE 2 HEE
development for sale (included in stock of EEMEER 2 HE
properties) (47) (45)
33,205 1,481
(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (b) ME BB REZNE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amount provided for the year FEBER 88,337 55,224
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties under & : B{EB SN MEFE 2t
development for sale (included in stock of HEEEYMEEARA A
properties) (125) (146)
Amount capitalised in respect of construction in BUERESRYE  H#H K&
progress (included in property, plant and BERNZEERIRER
equipment) ¢ — (66)
Amount capitalised in respect of investment BIEREFREMEER
properties under development pa & (48) (48)
88,164 54,964
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13. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

()

13. BRBLAE A (B 1R) (&)

(CONTINUED)
notes: (Continued) Mt (&)
Staff costs (0 B TR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12(a)) E=2Me (Fit12(a) 20,121 10,017
Other staff costs: Hfh 8 TR -
Salaries and other benefits (including bonus) FEREMER (RIEILLL) 240,052 171,713
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR R 1E F 5T S 4 5% 8,102 6,024
Share-based payment expense R DR E 2R 65 459
268,340 188,213
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties under & : B{ER SN MEFEZHEE
development for sale (included in stock of EEMEBEARZHE
properties) (2,504) (3,521)
Amount capitalised in respect of construction in BIERERYE EREZENR
progress (included in property, plant and ZHEEBIREARZHEE
equipment) — (2,067)
Amount capitalised in respect of investment BEREPREMEE RN 2 E5E
properties under development (1,297) (1,806)
264,539 180,819
The government grants mainly represent the cash government () BE#HUFEEFARSEIFEEER .

subsidies on operation cost of ports and property businesses of
approximately HK$19,725,000 (2017: HK$21,440,000) recognised
in distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses and
other expenses during the year. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or other contingencies attached to the receipt of the government
subsidies.

THRERAREMEBERAPERBRFTHRE O
EMEXEBRERARBNR S FZRD
19,725,000 7T (2017 : 21,440,000 JT.) ° Ffr
WE 2 B R B B AR ER G HH
ek R EIE -
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14. TAXATION 14. H1E
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Taxation charge (credit) comprises: MBS I (A B
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EEMNEH
Current year KEFEE 109 —
Taxation arising in the PRC excluding FE(TRERS) EE2MIE
Hong Kong:
Current year KEFEZ 167,829 13,899
Underprovision in prior years BEFEBREBIR 381 171
168,210 14,070
Deferred taxation (Note 39) TEEFLTE (72 39)
LAT T I (E R 33,298 (5,384)
Others HAi 10,844 (7,368)
44,142 (12,752)
Taxation attributable to the Company RAE R EKE AR EETIE
and its subsidiaries 212,461 1,318
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14. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14. $iE (&)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT

Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate for the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The current year taxation arising in the PRC excluding
Hong Kong includes an income tax charge of
approximately HK$154,369,000 (2017: Nil), which
represents the PRC income tax charged on the gain on
disposal of an associate (see Note 43 for details). The
capital gain derived from equity rights transfer by a non-
resident enterprise, representing the difference between
the transfer price and the cost of equity rights, is subject
to a tax rate of 10%.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (2 A R HANE + #h1g(E
TE 1 T{5f51) effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (Fr2E A R ANE + 18 (E
FRE1TIERME iE408)) effective from 27 January 1995 as

well, all income from the sale or transfer of land use rights,

buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of
the appreciation value as calculated according to the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and its Detailed
Implementation Rules.

WMIEEE 2 BBRNESH DR E G ERFE T
BB E165%EHE o

REFBEECEMSFEA(EEMERED KD
EMBPOEERAMA - B2008F1A1HE - K
SERFEZHBRARZHER25% -

BFE(TREEE)RAFEELEZHERRE
T 18 B¢ 3 #9154,369,0008 7T (2017 : ) - A
RHE—RHBEERARKRSHMIF 2 PREMEH
(FBEEMWEL3) - —HEBEROEEBEREE
EZERKE(REREEREKRANEZZ8E)
BT E10%HH -

RIEH1994F1A1HRBER 2R E AR KR
B R E R AT IRG) - A KR R 19954F 1 A 27
BREEBZ(REARLMBE L 2 EH LT
GOIERMAD  FAEKREHEEREREPE LM
FERAE ZEVEMEREZWMABIRIEGE
R E(hE AR L ME + 18 E 5 E 1750
REEMMBAGE) ABE30%E60% % 2 2
ER RN T EER -
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14. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14. B I1E (&)
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the AFEZMIEBEST HEGE KRR
profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated income A& A (B518) < $ERIA T

statement as follows:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR A (EE) 714,220 (22,701)
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable in 125 @ 5 A #E = @ B & 3
the respective jurisdictions RAE A 122,438 (975)
Tax effect of share of results of associates/  H{EHEE NG,/ BEDEEE
joint ventures BB (16,899) (24,1417)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 7£&{ 7 77 @ 7 A R A 2 2
purpose MG E 34,322 30,415
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ERBHEBERBRKAZ
purpose HiEw 2 (13,481) (5,621)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AEERABRGEE RIS & 5,545 10,921
Tax effect of other deductible temporary RAVEWER E A A 05k Be i = 58
differences not recognised 2R & 55,390 141
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B) B Al ;R HRZHRGERY
previously not recognised MET & (275) (5,493)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible ) F 5 Aif & #3522 £ b 7] 30
temporary differences previously not RREE BB E
recognised (95) (75)
Effect of (reversal of) LAT in respect of the (BB SIEEWE QN F B EE
fair value changes in investment properties  B)#E:2 I8 ER v £ 38,723 (2,655)
Effect of reversal of LAT in respect of stock B3t %17 5 2 + (g
of properties Mow2 (5,425) (2,729)
Effect of recognising LAT for stock of MYEFEER T IBEN 2
properties 2 216 17
Tax effect of LAT THIBER BB E (8,379) 1,342
Underprovision in prior years BMEFEREDTE 381 171
Taxation charge for the year AREFFREL H 212,461 1,318
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15.

16.

DISTRIBUTION 15.

No dividend was recognised as distribution during both
years.

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not to
recommend for shareholders’ approval the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
Nil).

7 K
B B R EFERERAD I -
ARATEE B R IR R

HZE2018F3A31 B IEFE 2T REPRR
B(2017 : 4®) -

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BREF (FH#E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per KRB BEANEBLEESREAREBER
share attributable to owners of the Company for the year F(EB) LA TSI EE T
is based on the following data:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to AT EEBRER R EE R
owners of the Company for the purpose of (J%ngzlz'xﬁfj XN
basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share FRER (B8 477.390 (34.143)

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif

183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 16. SRR &% (E#) (&)

2018 2017
Number Number
of shares of shares
RHEE M 2 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ALt E SR EAKXEF (F8E)
for the purpose of basic earnings (loss) per 7 & i@ [% hn4& F 59 i X
share 5,414,865,837 4,577,663,388
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in 5t 17 {5 B& i% #E 2 & £ #458
respect of share options exercised TER 2 TE 164,659 —
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 8 LA st & & i 5% & ) (E518)
for the purpose of diluted earnings (loss) 2 AR N RE T 1 RR &
per share 5,415,030,496 4,577,663,388
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year HE208F3A3MALFE ERESR
ended 31 March 2018 does not assume the exercise of the MZA BT EBEBRRITEARR ZBRE
Company’s share options which the exercise price of those T ERZEEREZITEESNRARA

options is higher than the average market price of the By 2 FHmE -
Company’s shares.
HE2017F3A3NAILFEZ2EREEE

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year BOAETERRITEARA 2 BRE
ended 31 March 2017 did not assume the exercise of the EgEygREERYD -

Company'’s share options which would result in decrease
in loss per share.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ B RFHE
LPG Furniture,
Port and CNG Motor fixtures
infrastructure  logistics and vehicles and Construction
Plant and Port  and related distribution and  computer in
Buildings machinery equipment facilities facilities vessels equipment progress Total
BILAAER
BOEER EBHAARY RER KA %E
BF BERRE BORE HERE RRDHRIE A REKRE HRIE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET THT FEL THT THT TR T FET TR
CosT A
At 1 April 2016 #R2016F4 711 162,394 8,452 92,718 368,944 518,775 141,575 54,049 625231 1,972,138
Exchange realignment ExBE (9,926) @77 (6,409) (24,791) (29,257) (7,725) (2,538) (29,510)  (110,633)
Additions nE 1,018 — 1,983 6,373 1,944 2,657 914 26,092 40,981
Transfers E4 42,305 — 66,072 223,147 — 8,586 5,693 (345,803) —
Transfer to investment BREERENE
properties (131) — — — — — — — (131)
Disposal RE (742) — (2,914) (3,410) (3,004) (3,970) (13,119 — (27,159
At 31 March 2017 #R2017F3 /8318 194,918 7,975 151,450 570,263 488,458 141,123 44,999 276,010 1,875,196
Exchange realignment [E A% 20,250 781 15,164 56,012 47,804 12,324 4,034 26,716 183,085
Additions nE 902 . 980 6,512 187 4,655 3,721 75,686 92,643
Transfers 1 23,535 — 11,460 1,812 — 5,481 493 (42,781) —
Transfer to investment properties & & Z % B % (169) — — - — — — — (169)
Transfer to prepaid lease EREEMNHE
payments B — — — — — — — (36,471)  (36,471)
Disposal BE (91) — (5,448) (400) (463) (25,399) (2,329 — (34,130)
At 31 March 2018 #H2018F3 8318 239,345 8,756 173,606 634,199 535,986 138,184 50,918 299,160 2,080,154
DEPRECIATION AND HERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2016 H2016F4 718 36,155 7,606 20,683 19,314 262,909 67,922 35,226 — 449815
Exchange realignment ERRE (2,135) (428) (1,289) (1,299) (15,044) (3,692) (1,544) — (25,431)
Provided for the year AEERHR 5,779 — 8,782 11,970 13,254 9,132 6,307 — 55,224
Eliminated on transfer to BRERENER
investment properties Egz:] (73) — — — — — — — (73)
Eliminated on disposal RERBLH (318) — (2,087) (197) (1,710) (3,510) (10,582) — (18,404
At 31 March 2017 #H2017F3 78311 39,408 7,178 26,089 29,788 259,409 69,852 29,407 — 461,131
Exchange realignment fE A% 4,674 702 2,849 3,558 34,094 5,740 2,589 — 54,206
Provided for the year AEER 17,038 — 10,191 13,667 32,235 10,458 4,748 — 88,337
Impairment loss recognised AEERRR
(note) i3) — — — — 148,049 - — — 148,049
Eliminated on transfer to BRERENER
investment properties Ef (133) - — - — — — — (133)
Eliminated on disposal RERKHH (23) - (4,105) (116) (256) (23,126) (2,168) —  (29,794)
At 31 March 2018 #H2018F3A31H 60,964 7,880 35,024 46,897 473,531 62,924 34,576 — 721,796
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2018 #H2018F3A31H 178,381 876 138,582 587,302 62,455 75,260 16,342 299,160 1,358,358
At 31 March 2017 #®2017F3A31H 155,510 797 125,361 540,475 229,049 71,271 15,592 276,010 1,414,065
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

17.

Pr1

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other

than construction in progress, are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the period of the
relevant leases or
fifty years, whichever
is shorter

10%

6%

Plant and machinery
Port equipment
Port infrastructure and
related facilities 2%-20%
LPG and CNG logistics and
distribution facilities 4%-10%
2.6%-20%
8%-20%
20%-33"3%

Motor vehicles and vessels
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment

note: Minsheng Gas, who operates LPG and CNG fueling stations and a
LPG storage-tank farm in Wuhan, Hubei Province, the PRC, had
successfully transformed five CNG fueling stations from LPG fueling
stations in prior years, which the CNG distribution business of
Minsheng Gas has delivered a more stable profit margin to
Minsheng Gas. During the year, the Group is devising solution to
strengthen the profitability and sale performance of Minsheng Gas,
with a decision that the remaining LPG fueling stations will be
gradually transformed into CNG fueling stations while the use of
LPG storage-tank farm will be changed from storage for its own
fueling stations to provision of storage and barging services to
external parties. In view of the transformation, the directors of the
Company reassessed the useful lives of relevant assets relating to
Minsheng Gas and considered that certain of the property, plant
and equipment and the intangible assets have shorter estimated
useful lives resulting in accelerated depreciation and amortisation
respectively. In respect of the LPG storage-tank farm, its recoverable
amount has been determined on the basis of its value in use by the
LPG distribution business of Minsheng Gas before the
transformation and provision of storage and barging services to
external parties after the transformation. Its recoverable amount as
at 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately HK$54,833,000 has
been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Its value in use calculation uses cash
flow projection covering the remaining useful lives of the relevant
assets at a discount rate of 11.25%, which the projection is
determined based on past transactions and the management’s
expectations for future changes in the market. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$148,049,000 (2017: Nil) is
recognised to profit or loss during the year in respect of property,
plant and equipment of the Group.

“) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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BOEZRBEREE 2%-20%

BB RRREHE  4%-10%

RARYR R D #H

TE R A e 2.6%—-20%

RAREE 8%-20%

B HE 20%-33"%

Hia RAER ARG E IS BRETELRILA
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EHZBEAARDHEEBEARERMA
EH—EAFBENENXE -RFR AEH
FHERARE  URaRERBZETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW*
Leasehold
properties  Developed Land under
in the PRC land  development Total
RPEZ
HEY¥ CHEZiH BMEHR Lt &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAET TAET FAET
(note ffita) (note fifsth)
FAIR VALUE NFEE
At 1 April 2016 R2016F481H 247,781 301,435 588,517 1,137,733
Exchange realignment I 5 & (14,196) (17,031) (33,274)  (64,501)
Transfer from property, plant = ERE VSR
and equipment, other intangible HmPEERBERN
assets and prepaid lease payments HEREEA 6,766 — — 6,766
Additions NE — — 7,910 7,910
Net increase (decrease) in fair value Rigalam & AER
recognised in the consolidated income A B {& 1% i (& 4*)
statement R 5,010 1,149 (4,462) 1,697
At 31 March 2017 M2017F3A31H 245,361 285,553 558,691 1,089,605
Exchange realignment (AR 24,265 35,358 54,155 113,778
Transfer from property, plant and B EE - M R R
equipment, other intangible assets HtmPEERERN
and prepaid lease payments HETBEEA 11,925 — — 11,925
Additions NE — — 7,649 7,649
Disposal BRE (176) — — (176)
Net increase (decrease) in fair value REEKREZRANER Y
recognised in the consolidated NEEEEMORD)
income statement HEE (6,672) 153,191 (18,760) 127,759
At 31 March 2018 201843 A31H 274,703 474,102 601,735 1,350,540
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

18.

188 e

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes:

(a) In prior years, the Group completed the reclamation of certain land
area and obtained the certificate of completion of land reclamation
(the “Certificate”) issued by qualified project engineering and
construction manager in respect of certain land area (the “Formed
Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Upon obtaining the certificate,
such Formed Land held for capital appreciation had been
recognised as land held under operating lease and classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

(b) In connection with the reclamation of certain land area in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but not yet completed,
the land leveling process (mainly representing the sand filling work
to achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land Being Formed"”). Upon
the commencement of land leveling process, the Land Being
Formed that held for rentals and/or capital appreciation as
investment properties had been recognised as land under
development and classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out as at those dates by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group.

In determining the fair value of leasehold properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
The comparison method is adopted under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted
prices of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are
analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital
values.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

In determining the fair value of Formed Land, the highest
and best use of the Formed Land is for tourist and resort
use, which correlates to the zoning of the area for tourist
resort by the government. The comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of
recent transacted prices of comparable lands is made.
Comparable lands of similar size, characteristic and
location are analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison
of capital values. Certain costs, including government
levies and all necessary fees and expenses associated with
the change of the Formed Land for tourist and resort use
to be charged by the government, which are the best
estimate based on the latest information available to the
management of the Company, have been considered in
arriving at the fair value of the Formed Land.

In determining the fair value of Land Being Formed, the
same highest and best use and the same comparison
method are adopted and valuation has been considered
for further costs to be expended for the development of
the Land Being Formed into Formed Land. Further costs
for completing the land leveling process and other
development works as at 31 March 2018 are estimated to
be approximately HK$476 million (2017: HK$90 million).

One of the key inputs used in valuing the leasehold
properties is the market price per square meter of
comparable properties which ranged from RMB432 to
RMB13,352 (2017: RMB411 to RMB13,939), using direct
comparison approach and taking into account of the
difference in the nature, location and condition. The
increase in the market price per square meter of
comparable properties would result in an increase in the
fair value of the investment properties, and vice versa.

One of the key unobservable inputs is the 20% of saleable
land discount on the comparable lands applied by the
valuer in valuing the Formed Land and Land Being Formed.
A slight change in the saleable land discount used would
result in a significant change in fair value measurement of
the Formed Land and Land Being Formed, while a slight
change in the unobservable inputs in valuing the leasehold
properties would have no significant effect to their fair
value.

18. REW = (&)

RETEFELM s AFEER BFE
TnsskREAERIKERERA
& ERBIBABZREREBIREE
BRE - FKABZHEBENAIE LR T2 &
MRREEMASERE - HEE  EE kit
BEEZAELRLMETON UL E
AEEEZBRRAFLE - HTRAREBA
BELABRFWRAC FRELWEEIER
RELEBREEBZABLTER LA
X(RERBEEARREEENRFES
fER 2 REMF)  HEEZRUBED
FELWAFER-

REEFER L AFEAER  KAHE
Bl&mkiERERERLEE  Ri#ETT
HERTEEFEFIMHMERAEFEL
MFTE AR — PR AR e T T FET
EREMERETIE ZE PR AR2018F
3A31H 4 A4.7618 78 7T (2017 = 9,000
g8 -

HEMERERAZEF - EHEZHAH
BRABLEBEMEAARKIRZTIZEAR
#13,35270 (2017 : ARBANMTTEARE
13939 ) N E 2 BFHRKMHER T
FTREEEERZEZ TERIHEE UER
MRz A JELBYE 2T FF KT
BEELEA BERREMEATFEAEL
FRZIRR -

RREFEL MR FEHALHMEERAZ
E AT EFAEREABERMGER
RAZRA BB L 220% A $HE LI
EoUHELHITREMNEIKSEHD
FTRIMWRFRERR I ATFEEFELD
REXEY MEEMEGEESTZIFTE
R ABBENESKTIEHAEQFEE
BREAZE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

18.

19.

20.

190 en

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

There has been no change from the valuation technique
and methodology used in the prior year. The fair value
hierarchy of the measurement of the investment properties
as at 31 March 2018 is Level 3. There are no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during the year.

For the Formed Land, the Group may have to obtain
certain appropriate certificates for the disposal. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no material impediment to obtain these
certificates for the Group.

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balances as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 mainly relate
to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement
of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying value
to properties under development for sale, property, plant
and equipment or investment properties, as appropriate.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments are analysed for
reporting purposes as follows:

18.

19.

20.

REW* (H)

FTEAB 2 EERN kG EEE T &
B EWMEFFEN2018F3A31AZA
FTEESHAE=ZMR -FRN REZHI
£:32 NI - i

HEFELIHNT  AEEXFTREET
BEEEANELE RENELER A2
AEERRAEERDGZETEERLE
BEREH -

BRRETIEHE

R2018F K2017F3A3NB 2B H
URHEIHECERIBEERR A& E
FHET I TEREZABRRE NI
FERIRMARE  AIET TR 2 EH
g WEEBEERRKNANIZERES
BESERBRYE WE EWHERRE
R EME(WER) -

RS HEERIE

A 8 2 T SRS I s A A
mT

2018 2017

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FETT

Non-current assets IERBEE 342,192 281,110
Current assets mENEE 4,766 4,510
346,958 285,620
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. HtwEREEE

Motor vehicles Club and
registration golf club  Premiumon  Rightsof Customer
marks ~ memberships leasehold land  operation base Know-how Total
gk
AE BEXR HELH
BRRE ERER ZnE KeE EFFER BWRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FiER TER TET TET TERT FEL
(note fifita) (note #fztb)  (note fifzEc) (note fifiFd) (note fifite) (note fifzte)
CoST BA
At 1 April 2016 R2016F471H 1,168 876 25,711 43,615 2,467 2,552 76,389
Exchange realignment ERRAE — (46) (1,356) (2,461) (139) (144) (4,146)
Transfer to investment BRZREME
properties — — (5,251) — — — (5,251)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A318 1,168 830 19,104 41,154 2,328 2,408 66,992
Exchange realignment JE % — 75 1,652 4,028 228 236 6,219
Transfer to investment BRZREME
properties — — (4,519 — — — (4,519)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 1,168 905 16,237 45,182 2,556 2,644 68,692
AMORTISATION B
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4A18 — 12 11,748 8,287 2,344 2,063 24,454
Exchange realignment ERAE — M (655) (482) (135) (121) (1,394)
Provided for the year KFEEEE — 45 279 838 119 245 1,526
Eliminated on transfer to BRZRENER
investment properties E3f — — (740) — — — (740)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H — 56 10,632 8,643 2,328 2,187 23,846
Exchange realignment e - 7 1,014 2,429 228 226 3,904
Provided for the year AEEHR - 47 219 32,755 — 231 33,252
Eliminated on transfer to BRERENER
investment properties Eag] — — (770) — — — (770)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H — 110 11,095 43,827 2,556 2,644 60,232
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 1,168 795 5,142 1,355 — — 8,460
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A318 1,168 774 8,472 32,51 — 221 43,146
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

notes:

(a) The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of the
opinion that the motor vehicles registration marks are worth at
least their carrying values.

(b) For the club membership in Hong Kong which has indefinite useful
life, the directors are of the opinion that it is worth at least its
carrying value.

For the golf club membership in the PRC, the amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful life of 17 years.

(o) The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in Wuhan
and Yichang, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through the
acquisition of the relevant business and the amount is to be
amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease payments
over 33 to 70 years.

(d) Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate LPG
business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the period of estimated
operation and the operation licence period of 50 years.

(e) Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship
acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The
amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

(f) Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for

motor vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation is provided on
a straight-line basis over 10 years.

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. HMEREE (&)

et

(a)

(b)

(e)

22. H

REBERBERUERFHN -EERARA
EERRBEERLHESNEREE -

RETRAEAFHNEEEMEHEns
EEZERREBEZLREKREE-

HRPEEMRREMEEMS  ITURERE
FEEAERFHIT7FH -

ZeBERRASETCKEEBRELTEHE
MRAPERETLREEMZAE L 2%
& DIZREREMRERBEER ZER
33E70G B -

KERRREPHERETLLR/LLO AR
K2Rz AFEE - BERTIAERZE
ERAKZ2HAREEFATEHRO0OFZR
S HIRI B -

EFERARREBUBEBMEBERLA
HREBEPHEEZATEE  NHAERE
FE10F N -

BRWMARERRABEARRRRE 298
BiRE 2z AFEE  TDAEHREEI0FA

NCTR

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in associates, & JF F H Bt & Q& Z A
less impairment MR IRE 411,854 845,423
Share of post-acquisition profits, other BEERERN EM2mE
comprehensive income and other reserves,  Ugzs & E M fEE - 0%
net of dividends received B Uk B 322,474 902,212
734,328 1,747,635
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the unlisted
investments include:

(i)  48.23% equity interest in Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”), a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of South Shore Holdings Limited (formerly
known as The 13 Holdings Limited) (“South Shore”),
which is engaged in building construction, civil
engineering, development management, project
management, facilities and asset management
services and investment in properties.

(i) On 14 September 2017, the Group disposed of 45%
equity interest in Nantong Port Group Limited
("Nantong Port Group”) (Note 43), which was a
sino-foreign joint venture enterprise registered in the
PRC. Nantong Port Group was principally engaged in
providing cargo loading and off loading, storage,
shipping agent, cargo agent, ship anchoring, ship
repairing, port machinery, shipping logistics and ship
piloting services in Nantong Port, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC; and

(i)  40% equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”),
which is a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise
registered in the PRC and operates the container
terminal in Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

The financial year end date of Jiangyin Sunan is 31
December and its latest financial information that is
available to the Group is in respect of its financial year
ended 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the Group’s share
of results and interests in the principal associate at 31
March 2018 and 2017 are determined based on the
financial information of the associate for the year ended
and as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 respectively. No
significant transaction or event is noted between the year
end dates of the associate and of the Group.

22. BrE N AR (&)

M2018%3 A31H &2017F3A318 - 3
tHREeE:

RREZEEEERAAI(RER
¥ 248 23% B AER LR A A
HEEEERAR (BT =56@2%8
RARD([EEEBR]) ZFE2ENE
DA NREEFRE TARIRE - B
RER HEERE [HELEEER
IR RYERE -

—
=

(i) M2017F9F 148 AEBLHEREH
BREOSEERAR(EBESEODSE
B ) (M 5E43) 2 45% Bx Az - f 3l
BOEBEAE—RXKRPREFEMZF I
AEPE BB IEETERNDH
IHEAEAANEREEME
T oHERE BEEK -ELOMMN
R - MMME BB E M
MHEERE RSIMES: &

(i RMIEHPBEREREBTARAARA
(TR & ) A Z240% M K 4
2 ZARRRPEEMzPINEE
TR EFEIHEIRELERR
FEHH R o

TeHme MBRFELEERA12A318
MAEBAGIEFMNBEENARSHE
2017F12A3IBILEHBRFEE 2 E R E
It REER2018%F R201743 A31 A #
EZEXTEMERNRCEERERZ DR
Bz E R R N E E2017F &2016F 12
A3BLEHEERRZEHH 2B ER
AE A REBE LR CTFHEBEEASE
CERBOBATESETNEARSHE
1 o
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

22,

194 en

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. BE N TR (F)
In prior year, the Group’s share of results and interests in RBEFERN REBER2017F3HA31H
Nantong Port Group at 31 March 2017 was determined B-mBE O EB2EENMESZ D RE
based on its latest financial information for the year ended BRE E2016F 128318 It F 8 MR
and as at 31 December 2016. The Group's share of results BE &AM BERGTE - ASERAK
of Nantong Port Group for the current year is determined FEBMLEBBEOSE 2 EE LN 2017
based on its financial information available to the Group FOAMMB(HEBE AEEABF 2B
as at the date of disposal on 14 September 2017. BEETE -
Particulars of the Group’s p.r|nC|pa| associates at 31 March A £ @ S L A 2 ] 20184 52017
2018 and 2017 are set out in Note 53(c). £38318 2 2B HES3)
Summarised financial information in respect of Nantong
Port Group and its subsidiaries based on financial AHEBENRERAMBRAREE
information prepared by management in accordance with 201749 A 14 H AL FF M & = 2016 12 A
accounting policies of the Group for the period ended 14 3\1 Bk ifg Z ﬁﬂmﬂ% A <gh—§ B
September 2017 and the year ended 31 December 2016 is BERASBEARRBRIVBAMN) R
set out below: I
31.12.2016
2016 4F
12H31H
HK$'000
FAET
Financial position: B T AR -
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,683,527
Current assets mBEE 717,113
Current liabilities TEEE (720,514)
Non-current liabilities ERBARE (276,788)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR R (64,365)
Net assets attributable to the owners BEARHEARGEETE
of the associate 2,338,973
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying HEEFEEBERAER
amount of the interest in the associate: BRI B 2 H R
Net assets attributable to the owners BEANRHEEAEBGLERETE
of the associate 2,338,973
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBGEE N HBEER 2L
interest in the associate 45%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REBBE QR R REE
in the associate 1,052,538
C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

22. BrE N AR (&)

Period ended Year ended

14.9.2017 31.12.2016
BZE2017% HZE20164

9A14H 12A331H
HHA R IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Results of the associate: NS
Revenue U A 699,841 1,001,032
Profit for the period/year M FE R T 97,007 138,090
Other comprehensive income (expense) RS, FEHMEE W
for the period/year (FAY%) 136,823 (138,712)
Total comprehensive income (expense) e/ FE2EKRE (AX)
for the period/year 48 =H 233,830 (622)
Dividend received from the associate HR/ FREWEEAFRE
during the period/year 16,061 50,566

Pr1i

"
L4

Y REEEABRAT 2018 E£if

195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. B AT RER (E)

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangyin BRI PLE £2017F &20164F 12
Sunan based on financial information prepared by A3BLEEZBAMBER(ERAERE
management in accordance with accounting policies of B AEHFSHKEREE ZHBEER
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and HHwT -

2016 is set out below:

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Rn2017F R 20164
12A831H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Financial position: B R M
Non-current assets IERBEE 158,465 224,836
Current assets MENVEE 489,371 407,756
Current liabilities mEafE (23,040) (21,477)
Non-current liabilities EnEBEE (2,783) (19,997)
Net assets attributable to the owners BERNREEARBGEEFE
of the associate 622,013 591,118
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying £ & & F B BB & A Al #E = R
amount of the interest in the associate: [EIREA-a )
Net assets attributable to the owners BERNREEABGLEEFE
of the associate 622,013 591,118
Less: Fair value adjustments upon acquisition J& : P W HE s 2 X (BB & — (51,636)
Adjusted net assets before fair NV BEAEINZEHBREE
value adjustments FE 622,013 539,482
Carrying amount of the Group’s ownership 7N & BB & A G A EE =
interest in the associate: ZBRHEE -
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBEHE R ARIHEBEER
interest in the associate Z el 40% 40%
Share of net assets before fair NEEEABRZBEEESF
value adjustments B 248,805 215,793
Share of fair value adjustments NFEEABEZ2ENIL D — 17,404
248,805 233,197
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HZE2018F3A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

22. BrE N AR (&)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
HZE2017% HZE2016%F
12H31H 12H31H
IEEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
Results of the associate: B2 N B 4R
Revenue WA 103,091 90,572
(Loss) profit for the year FE(HE) = (17,219) 25,025
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEEMEEmEZE (FAX)
for the year 56,623 (34,336)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FE2EW= (AX) B3
for the year 39,404 (9,311)
Dividend received from the associate FRE W ZRERE
during the year — —
'
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The financial information in respect of Paul Y.

and its subsidiaries based on financial information

prepared by management in accordance with

policies of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2018

and 2017 is set out below:

22. BrE N AR (&)

Engineering EHRERERHEMBRARNEE 20184

F2017F3A31HIEFE 2B B ER(F

accounting REBRERRBAESESHBERE CHE

BROESIWT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

Financial position: B AR
Non-current assets IERBEE 283,636 297,379
Current assets mEEE 4,756,610 4,127,763
Current liabilities mEEE (4,026,727) (3,461,306)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (6,836) (6,134)
Net assets attributable to the owners BERNREEARBGEEFE

of the associate 1,006,683 957,702
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying £ & & /FE BB & A Al R

amount of the interest in the associate: HEEZ R
Net assets attributable to the owners BENREEABLEEFE

of the associate 1,006,683 957,702
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRBE AR HEERER

interest in the associate sl 48.23% 48.23%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEBZBERARER Y

in the associate EmEE 485,523 461,900
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. BE TR (E)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Results of the associate: iR /NI
Revenue A 6,799,529 6,953,828
Profit for the year FEHRA 31,966 60,161
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEHM2E Y (%)

for the year 17,015 (11,144)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEAEKEEE 48,981 49,017

ii PSRN

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the
Group.

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of
losses of one (2017: one) of the associates. The
accumulated unrecognised share of losses attributable to
the Group (based on unaudited management accounts)
are as follows:

HFEL\

AILIREMBEFRNBESERER

SEFEEAEEEL 2 ERIBRNEE

NGB R RER S — (2017 ¢

=N

— ) Bt

BRAZER Rt AERAEEHBEE
BeRERREEREERRBOT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses Rt RER BB E N7 2
of the associates &8 (54,770) (54,770)

"
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. B LERER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures £ &R IE t A E D FEK K 86,663 86,663
Share of post-acquisition profits and other — B {5 U BE%E 2 %A M H 2 m|
comprehensive income (expense), net of Wa () MBRE KR E
dividends received 9,538 (1,359)
96,201 85,304
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 March 2018 REBZAZDEN2018F K201743 A
and 2017 are set out in Note 53(d). 318 2515 M sE53(d) °
The summarised financial information below represents T EERIENIXZBEELAR
the consolidated financial information of T XM B % H NE R EZENB R AN 58 R R 5 B
FRA @] and its wholly-owned subsidiary, #4825 5 7 ERARZHEAMBER ZZHBER
% FBR A7), which is prepared in accordance with iR AEE e HEEBTRK -

accounting policies of the Group.
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

23. §¥ b FEED (E)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial position: B i AR5
Non-current assets IERBEE 232,251 211,862
Current assets MENE E 7,061 5,326
Current liabilities BB & (22,105) (23,987)
Non-current liabilities ERDERE (24,805) (22,593)
Net assets of the joint venture BRENLELEFE 192,402 170,608
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying E & E /FEHE A S P EEFIR
amount of the interest in the joint venture:  ME1E 2 % ik :
Net assets of the joint venture SEEPEEBEFE 192,402 170,608
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7s £ B {5 & & (> 2 A E 2
in the joint venture Z Ll 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest TEEsEEDERERZ
in the joint venture FRE B 96,201 85,304
Results of the joint venture: SRETEESE
Revenue g A 12,084 12,136
Profit for the year FE R 4,858 10,581
Other comprehensive income (expense) FANHM2E M E ()
for the year 16,936 (9,773)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWFEE 21,794 808
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint AEPEURSKREFRBESERBRER
ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of EESEEAEEEE 2ERNBRAEE
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the 1 BB KR H o

Group.
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 24. EHETEARE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Listed equity securities, at quoted market FRAES  EREB2™
price in Hong Kong (note a) HE (Mfata) 31,272 92,469
PRC unlisted equity securities (note b) PR IE FT AR A (M 7Eb) 405,554 359,347
436,826 451,816

notes: Bfat -

(a) As at 31 March 2018, the investment in Hong Kong listed equity (a) R2018F3A31EH  RBEBLTRAZT.RZ
securities represents 4.47% (2017: 4.67%) equity interests in 1 EIEA.47% (2017 - 4.67%) G = = B RR#E -

South Shore.
(b)y R2018%F3A31H  EAFEMEINENI L
(b)  Asat 31 March 2018, the investments in unlisted equity securities TRAFESZIRE BT
are stated at fair value and include:

i) REAOREMEZREERERKZ

i) 9.9% equity interest in Jiangsu YangKou Port Development AEGFAOBKRERBEERAR(FED
and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou Port Co"), which is R A 29.9%MR # - 49405,204,000
engaged in the business of development of port and related AT (2017 : 358,916,000 7T) & M
infrastructures of approximately HK$405,204,000 (2017:

HK$358,916,000); and if) FERFTEORBERBCEEEBE
BERECABDIIEEBBEE]

ii) less than 20% interests in certain PRC companies held by KRARZIEZEMBRRAIHEZ
Yichang Port Group Limited (the “Yichang Port Group”), a ETHBERRZNR20%EE 4
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which are 350,000 7T (2017 : 431,000/ L) °
mainly engaged in port related services of approximately
HK$350,000 (2017: HK$431,000). AFBEZABBHNDRAZEKREZD

BROTEBERZHELEET -ARZFEZ

A reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by using valuation EREZHENEZREEEAREI(FERHE

techniques appropriate to the market and industry of each BEERHEBEEZATEMME) RHEE(E

investment. Valuation techniques used to support these valuations AERESERBRFAIELWEESER
include the asset-based approach which uses the fair market value CPHERSHESZEMBEER -

of its total assets minus its total liabilities, and the market approach
which uses prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or
businesses.
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HZE2018F3A31HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In determining the fair value of property assets of Yangkou Port Co
under the asset-based approach, the comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of recent
transacted prices of comparable lands is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are analysed in
order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values.

A key unobservable input being 20% of saleable land discount on
comparable lands of Yangkou Port Co to discount the fair value of
properties by approximately HK$3,539 million (2017: HK$2,971
million), has been applied in valuing the properties. A slight
increase in the saleable land discount used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value measurement of the properties
and hence of the unlisted equity securities, and vice versa. A 5%
increase in the saleable land discount (i.e. revised to 25%), holding
all other variables constant, carrying amount of the properties
would decrease by approximately HK$885 million (2017: HK$744
million), and fair value of the Group’s investment in corresponding
equity instrument would decrease by approximately HK$21 million
(2017: HK$19 million).

24, EETEHKRE (E)

Hfat - (&)

(b)

(&)

RIBEEEREZETFABRAAMEEE
ZATEBER  KANAELRLT 2 &I
BRRERERBEEZ LLBOE  SEE
BRMHBEZANELRYEETON A
HREREBEERAFLE -

MEGHERAZ —BEZ2FAEBETE A
BAEFOEBRRAAE LR LM Z220%0]
HELHITE UEMEZAFEBETZELY
35.3918 % 70 (2017 : 2971188 L) » Al 4 &
THITEE M A S ER W ERIELD
BAZBLE 2 AFEEFERREARD
RZIRR o 5 AT S L 35 5% (BN
FIE25%) MATEEMEHRFTTE - 8
Y ¥ BREEER L 48.858 %5 L (2017 -
TAMEE L) RAEBAEAERTARE
ZRAFEES D H2,1008 7% (2017 :
1,9008 % 7T) °
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25.

204 pn

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

On 8 March 2013, Yichang Port Group entered into an
agreement with a local government office to transfer
certain properties (the “Resumption Properties”) to the
local government for the development of a composite
project (the “New Premises”), which Yichang Port Group
will receive certain construction floor areas of the New
Premises as compensation (the “Compensation”) within
four years from the date of surrender. On 22 December
2017, Yichang Port Group received a notification from the
local government office that the Compensation shall be
received by first quarter of 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Resumption
Properties were transferred to the local government and
the fair value of the Compensation, estimated as
RMB74,420,000 (approximately HK$93,025,000), was
recognised as deemed consideration and was approximate
to the carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2018, the New Premises are still under
construction.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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FTHE(THEBEME]D UERESER
(B - MEEEBEE KRN ERZ
HEMFENEEZFTEM oG TREER
HREEAME([ZME]D - R2017F12 A
A EEABEEEEMITBNRAE
WA HER2020F F — = E A1 ERZE

s,
5 o

REZE2014F3A31B EFE » HEWRD
¥EBRXEENRT Z2HECATEER
({55t A AR %74,420,0007T (#793,025,000
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HZE2018F3A31HILFE

26. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

26. MEEFEE

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Properties under development for sale (note a) fft H&E E &YW % (A :ta) 1,179,235 1,056,262
Completed properties held for sale (note b) B T 1EH EWE (KfiFb) 448,021 407,808
1,627,256 1,464,070

notes:

Properties under development for sale are situated in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. They comprise (1) Land Being Formed which is
developed for future sale; and (2) Formed Land which is also
developed for future sale in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2018, properties under development for sale
amounting to approximately HK$386,512,000 (2017:
HK$340,802,000) are carried at net realisable value.

At 31 March 2018, properties under development for sale include
Formed Land of approximately HK$747,316,000 (2017:
HK$695,250,000) for which the Group may have to obtain certain
appropriate certificates for the disposal of the Formed Land. Based
on the past experience, the directors of the Company consider that
there is no material impediment to obtain these certificates for the
Group.

Completed properties held for sale are situated in Jiangsu Province,
the PRC. At 31 March 2018, completed properties held for sale
amounting to approximately HK$240,478,000 (2017:
HK$218,603,000) are carried at net realisable value.

At 31 March 2018, stock of properties includes an amount
of approximately HK$959,837,000 (2017:
HK$795,807,000) which is expected to be realised after
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

et

(a)

(b)

HHEERZYDEUNPERIIHE - KESRE
MBEERBEBREEZFER L RQRK
—REBBETRAEERBEBREEZ
SPELH-

201843 A318 X ELEMED
386,512,000% 7T (2017 : 340,802,000 7T )
R I FEYR -

MN2018F3A31TH - HHEEEREMEBRELN
747,316,000 7T (2017 : 695,250,000 7T )
ZEFELH MASEEREETAESR
EZPHEZD FE L - BIBUALER - K
ARAEERBAEBNRNEZEFERL
MmE AR -

ExIHELRENEMRPBRIIHS - R
201843 A318  ER IHELEDEY
240,478,0003% 7T (2017 : 218,603,000 7T )
Al I E A o

M2018F3A31H MEFEBREBEEK
R EHTAELBER T —EAERER S
¥ 49959,837,000% 7T (2017 : 795,807,000
HEIT) °
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27. LOANS RECEIVABLE

27. EWWE R

28.

206 en

2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$'000
FExT FET

The amounts, net of allowance, include: BEAZE(NBRER BIE
Fixed-rate loans receivable (note a) FEWEENRE (Kita) 304,000 —
Floating-rate loans receivable (note b) FEWOF B A = B (M 7Eb) 68,700 62,100
372,700 62,100

notes:

(a) The loans receivable bear interest rate from 11% to 12% (2017:
Nil) and are repayable within one year (2017: Nil). The amounts are
unsecured, except for an amount of HK$129,000,000 (2017: Nil) is
secured by a first fixed charge over assets maintained in the
borrower's securities account. Impairment loss of HK$21,000,000
has been recognised for this secured loan for the year (2017: Nil).

(b) The loans receivable are unsecured, bear variable interest rate from
5% to 6% over the Best Lending Rate of Hong Kong Dollar as
quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (“HKBLR") (i.e. 10% to 11%) and are repayable on
demand.

As for the unsecured loans of approximately
HK$243,700,000 (2017: HK$62,100,000), no recognition
of impairment loss was considered necessary since there
has been no past default history in respect of those
receivables.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand except for an amount of HK$75,000,000 (2017:
HK$32,000,000) which bears variable interest rate at 2%
over HKBLR (i.e. 7%) per annum and is repayable on
demand.
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JEREFANMEZ12[E (2017  8) 2 F| R
PR WAER—FANEEQNT7 &) -ZFE
R B EE R M S % 5129,000,0007% 7T
(2017 ) ZRBEIUERABEFOMR
%ZE?E% & E AR E R IF o FAE
Rt % K B 3k 2 R 8 /5 18 21,000,000 7T
(2017 : 4#) -

ERERABEET UEBELESELRITE
RABIZAETHREBREENR((ELIHESR
BEFE])MSEZE(NIOEENE) Z
FERRGE  WEREREE-

ZE FA49243,700,0007% 7T (2017 : 62,100,000

BIT) < EEAE K
BEIEIRLE  WEFER

B o

R 7% 55 e W IR
/ﬁ@)&ﬁ

FE Wx Bt & 1 Bl IR

ZECBHEAEER SR UEARERE
& 1 € %8 A75,000,000% 7T (2017 :
32,000,000 70) A T R EZEEF = N
2E(AN7E) 2 2B FEMEFRALBREK
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HZE2018F3A31HILFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS

2. EZRHMERER FTER

AND PREPAYMENTS A RKE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Trade debtors (note) B 5 W ERR (M) 100,146 105,901
Deposits and prepayments HERSSEE & 73,066 59,844
Interest receivable & U B 5,000 182
Advance payment and other receivables PO T 2 B R H M E IR
for port business AR 2,795 2,422
Advance payment and other receivables MEBEREEEZBR L EM
for properties development and sale JE Wt BR 3K 27,193 40,473
Advance payment and other receivables R EERER 2B R K& HA
for resort project in the PRC JE U8 BR 3K 6,278 6,176
Others HAh 50,630 45,168
Total Et 265,108 260,166
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29. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS

208 e

29.

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Included in the carrying amount of trade and other
debtors as at 31 March 2018 was accumulated impairment
losses of HK$37,092,000 (2017: HK$3,450,000) in respect
of balances which were past due at the end of the
reporting period and the relevant debtors were in financial
difficulties. The movements of allowance for doubtful

debts are as follows:

EZRHEMBERER FTER
A ()

R2018F3A31H B 5 K& H ith fE IKBR 3K
FEAECF ARBRERATERBHEH
2 2 & 8 {8 /&5 $837,092,000% s (2017 :
3,450,0007% 7T.) - ifn #8 B (& 5 A H B B X
- REEBBEHHWOT -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT TETT

Balance at beginning of the year F R 3,450 471
Amounts written off as uncollectible B8 7 e U [e] i #6082 Tk IE (105) (103)
Amounts reversed during the year FAREZHRIE (995) (332)
Provided for during the year FRNEAE 2 RE 32,869 3,495
Exchange realignment ME W3 B 1,873 (81)
Balance at end of the year EREH 37,092 3,450
note: The Group's credit terms for customers of ports and logistics Wi AREBBORY RSB rEE Y ZEH—

segment normally range from 30 days to 90 days. Rental income
for property business is receivable according to the agreements and
the credit terms granted by the Group to other debtors normally

range from 30 days to 90 days.
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29. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 2. ESREMERER TR

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) FEATEIE (8)
note: (Continued) Hiat - (&)

The ageing analysis of the trade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

NBERAMAEE NMEBEREEHBR EF
FEUWEANBERTERZRERITOT -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE&T

Within 90 days 0H K 82,625 73,428
More than 90 days and within 180 days Hi#E0OHEN180H A 17,271 17,336
More than 180 days 180 H 250 15,137
100,146 105,901

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade debtor
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$26,736,000 (2017: HK$20,751,000) which were past due at
the end of the reporting period for which impairment loss has not
been recognised. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have no history of defaulting on repayments. The Group
does not hold any collateral over the balances.

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not

HR2018F3A31H AEBE B R
XK B I 48 R | (B 426,736,000 T
(2017 : 20,751,000/ 7T ) Z FE W AR 3 - B B8
RIBRN S R AR 2 HE Y EERR
BEB - REBTEREZE S EWRERIT
EARENZLCE - AEBIERZSEH
BHTEER -

EEHMERTFREZE S BEVIRKKRR :

impaired:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET

Overdue: BHE
Within 90 days 0HNA 23,029 17,143
More than 90 days and within 180 days H#E0HEMN180H KN 3,457 3,069
More than 180 days H3®180H 250 539
26,736 20,751

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been a
significant change in credit quality of these trade debtors and there
is no recent history of default and therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable.

ARBEERR ZFEIRRERZEE
2R IBE R TR E o
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30. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT INSTRUMENTS 30 FEEEBKIARE
HELD FOR TRADING
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Listed debt securities, at quoted market EHEBES  EmB®RE
price in
Hong Kong a8 88,020 —
Overseas pegl) 232,154 —
320,174 —
As at 31 March 2018, debt securities of approximately MR2018F3 A31H & 5 4 495,654,000
HK$95,654,000 (2017: Nil) are pledged to secure a BT EBRESF(Q017 BB ARNEEFRT
borrowing facility obtained by the Group. BEERE ZEM-

31. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 3. FEFEERETARE
HELD FOR TRADING

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Listed equity securities, at quoted market FRAFS TS ERE

price in

Hong Kong B 35,964 44,687

Overseas AN — 7,013

35,964 51,700
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32. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET

2. Htt e mEE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Unlisted convertible bond measured at fair #ZAFEBESEZIE LTl
value fi% & % 183,539 —

As at 31 March 2018, the unlisted convertible bond issued
by a Hong Kong listed company bears coupon interest rate
at 10% per annum and is payable at maturity on 26
October 2018 or upon redemption by the issuer.

A reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by using
valuation technique appropriate to the market and
industry of the securities. Valuation technique used to
support the valuation involves the market approach which
uses prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable
assets.

In determining the fair value of the convertible bond,
binomial option pricing model was being used. The key
inputs used in the model include risk-free rate, expected
volatility, dividend yield and discount rate of 14.39%
being obtained by referencing to listed bonds with similar
rating.

A key unobservable input being discount rate has been
applied in valuing the convertible bond. A slight increase
in the discount rate used would result in a significant
decrease in fair value measurement of the convertible
bond, and vice versa. A 0.5% increase/decrease in the
discount rate, holding all other variables constant, carrying
amount of the convertible bond would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$419,000 and HK$422,000 (2017:
Nil) respectively.

R2018%3A310  BE LB ARAEFTL
FLEMARRESREEF N XRI10EF
B WR20185 10 526 B B B sk 31T A
f& [0 I 2 fF o

RFBEZEEGFIRABSFME RIT
XBERAZHENEEE ARXFZEML
BE2EETESRMSEEREREY
LERXAELREEZT SR IMEL
ZEAMERER) o

BErigaREsz 2 FEEREANR =
BEAAEEEER ZERARAZEEH
ASEBREERBRANE FEHKER KRS
EURKSERUIRZ ETEFEZ
14.39% Bh 35 & -

THRREFNEHEREERZ —EXE
TR R ARIEAMIE X - WA Z 8
BEMALA BERABRBRES AT
BEFEARRD  RZ2TA - BREME
Hfh & SR F A IR R G180 m
05% AT RESH 2 REEED IR
# 0 #9419,0007% T K& 422,0007 7C (2017 -
/) o
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33.
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PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM
BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$30,557,000 (2017:
HK$113,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities with maturity within one year from the
end of the reporting period and are therefore classified as
current assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed
interest rates ranging from nil to 1.95% (2017: 0.08% to
1.95%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from nil to 1.495% (2017:
Nil to 1%) per annum.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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34. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND 4. EFRHMENERREH
ACCRUED EXPENSES 53
The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors B NHEMEMERREFFAINRES
and accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period: TER 2T
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Trade creditors ageing analysis based on BREZEARCBEIRNEERZ

invoice date: BREe AT
Within 90 days 90H K 54,242 49,873
More than 90 days and within 180 days B0 HER 180 A 4,512 672
More than 180 days HBiE180H 16,305 14,876
75,059 65,421
Construction costs payables JE TSR K 20,818 32,982
Advance receipt from customers UGB & F 2 2k 7,648 6,621
Other payables and advance receipt for BB OEB s HMENER
port business 2 BT U 8 3% 50,434 49,561
Other payables for staff salaries, retirement 8 T ¥4 « Rk & i iEF 2
and other benefits (note) H b SRR AR (B at) 53,249 52,679
Other payables for properties development — ¥ ¥ 3 & K §8 & 2 H ith fE 1+
and sale BRI 32,866 26,683
Other payables for resort project in the PRC A Bl E {18 B 2 H fth fE 1~
AR X 10,693 10,431
Retentions held for construction works BEREIRLREBZRES
and equipment 16,639 15,466
Others Hib 41,383 27,941
Total amounts TRIE %R 308,789 287,785
Less: Amount due within one year shown B R —FERNE W] AR E
under current liabilities BEZHE (286,364) (263,721)
Amount due after one year —FRB 2 FR 22,425 24,064
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34. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

note: At 31 March 2018, the amount includes other payable of
HK$47,965,000 (2017: HK$47,505,000) which represents staff
salaries, retirement and other benefits of a port business. Based on
agreed payment terms, an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$22,425,000 (2017: HK$24,064,000) is to be paid after more
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period and is
determined using an effective interest rate of 4.56% (2017: 4.56%)
per annum.

35. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on
demand and in non-financing nature, except for an
amount of approximately HK$11,287,000 at 31 March
2017 which bore interest at 6.35% per annum and its
interest payable of approximately HK$625,000 were
repayable within one year.

36. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) A JOINT
VENTURE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand, except for an amount due from a joint
venture of approximately HK$7,435,000 (2017: Nil) which
bears interest at 6% (2017: Nil) per annum and is
repayable within one year.

37. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts are unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest
ranging from 1% to 5.35% per annum (2017: 1% to 5.35%
per annum), in which approximately HK$2,478,000 (2017:
HK$2,257,000) is due within one year and approximately
HK$101,611,000 (2017: HK$94,808,000) is due after
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
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38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

38. RITREMERK

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank and other borrowings comprise: RITREMERBE
Bank loans RITEXR 1,044,208 1,692,752
Other loans HmER 98,459 65,175
1,142,667 1,757,927
Analysed as: DA
Secured B 636,460 662,116
Unsecured 4 1 4 506,207 1,095,811
1,142,667 1,757,927
The bank and other borrowings are BITREMEREZREOT
repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand —FRIFEEK 536,235 1,311,705
More than one year, but not exceeding BiE—F  ETEmE
two years 341,668 177,891
More than two years, but not exceeding BimmE - B8R F
five years 140,848 132,891
More than five years BiEAF 123,916 135,440
1,142,667 1,757,927
Less: Amount due within one year or on B — F AR BESRE S E
demand shown under mEN B E 2 RIE
current liabilities (536,235) (1,311,705)
Amount due after one year —F % BB 7 RIB 606,432 446,222
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38.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$450,206,000 (2017:
HK$454,849,000) with approximately HK$323,378,000
(2017: HK$409,736,000) repayable within one year,
approximately HK$126,828,000 (2017: HK$45,113,000)
repayable more than one year but not exceeding two
years. The fixed-rate borrowings are carrying interest
ranging from 2.83% to 7% (2017: 4.35% to 6%) per
annum.

The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest
ranging from 2.99% to 6.37% (2017: 2.45% 10 6.37%)
per annum.

The above other borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$711,000 (2017: HK$3,543,000) with
approximately HK$55,000 (2017: HK$2,831,000)
repayable within one year, approximately HK$656,000
(2017: HK$56,000) repayable more than one year but not
exceeding two years, and nil (2017: approximately
HK$656,000) repayable more than two years but not
exceeding five years. The fixed rate-borrowings are
carrying interest at 3.5% (2017: 1.5% to 3.5% per
annum. The remaining other borrowings carry floating-
rate interest ranging from 5.25% to 5.5% (2017: 4.75%
t0 5.5%) per annum.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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39. DEFERRED TAXATION 39. RN I

ATEBRAFERAEFECRRBZE
BEEHEAME  AREBBER -

The following items are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

Fair value Fair value
adjustment Fair value  adjustment
on  adjustment on project
investment  on stock of under
properties properties development Others Total
REWEHE WEFE BEGEA
AP EE AFEE AFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET FHET
(note ff#t)
At 1 April 2016 MR20165F4 78 1H 384,098 265,687 90,790 42,198 782,773
Exchange realignment [E H 3% (21,655) (14,912) (5,119) (2,005) (43,691)
Credit to consolidated Falmix 2 BA

income statement (Ktat14)

(Note 14) (1,566) (4,467) (189) (6,530) (12,752)
Transfer i 1 316 — — (316) —
At 31 March 2017 ®201743A31H 361,193 246,308 85,482 33,347 726,330
Exchange realignment [ &A% 38,335 23,752 8,368 2,780 73,235
Charge (credit) to AWKz H

consolidated income (BN (Mtat14)

statement (Note 14) 61,109 (7,440) — (9,527) 44,142
Transfer 2 498 — — (498) —
At 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H 461,135 262,620 93,850 26,102 843,707

note: Included in the balance approximately HK$263,689,000 (2017:
HK$203,203,000) represents LAT arising from the fair value on

investment properties.

Bt 5t A & # 2 #9263,689,000/8 T (2017 :
203,203,000 L) R EME A FEBEEE
Z M EER -
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39. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$910,956,000 (2017: HK$878,918,000)
available to offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset in respect of the unused tax losses has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams on those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$459,139,000 (2017: HK$201,176,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$674,573,000 (2017: HK$634,976,000). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of stock of
properties arising from the transfer of Formed Land and
Land Being Formed from investment properties are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or sale
through entities holding these properties. For those
properties which would be subject to PRC LAT upon
disposal, deferred tax on the temporary difference
between the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.

21 8 P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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40. DEFERRED INCOME

The amount mainly represents the government grants
related to certain ports construction projects and will be
recognised in profit or loss over the useful lives of the

related depreciable assets.

40. IEE W A

ZETHRIBEAWETEORERAABZ
B YN AR THEEEZA
ERFEHARNEDTER -

41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. B
Number of
shares Value
g =] K-
HK$'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: SH0.10B T2 T -
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 201654 H1H
31 March 2018 201793 A31B R
20183 A31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 April 2016 20164 A 1H 4,577,360,572 457,736
Issue of shares under share option scheme 1R #& B8 & #E 51 21 35 17 A& 19
(note a) (Kizta) 10,048,000 1,005
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 4,587,408,572 458,741
Issue of shares under share option RIREE IR ET BTG
scheme (note a) (Kiita) 16,702,000 1,670
Issue of placing shares (note b) BTER SR (M &Eb) 915,470,000 91,547
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31H 5,519,580,572 551,958
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41.

42.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

notes:

(a) During the year, the Company issued 16,702,000 (2017:
10,048,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at the subscription
price of HK$0.1624 per share upon exercise of the share options
granted under the share option scheme of the Company.

(b) On 12 May 2017, a total of 915,470,000 new shares have been
placed by the placing agent to not less than six independent
placees at the price of HK$0.156 per share. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$139 million had been used for working capital
of the Group.

The 915,470,000 placing shares represent (i) approximately
19.94% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately
before completion of the placing and (ii) approximately 16.63% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the new shares.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 10 September 2012 (the “Adoption Date"”), the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward to any employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member
of the Group or any invested entity, who have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The 2012
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing after the Adoption Date.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is payable
by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of the
share option offer and an offer must be accepted on or
before a date as specified in writing, being a date not later
than 30 days after (i) the date on which the offer was
issued; or (ii) the date on which the conditions for the
offer are satisfied. The directors of the Company may at
their discretion determine the specific exercise period
which should expire in any event no later than the last day
of the ten year period after the date of grant of the share
options. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under the Listing Rules
from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares.

The maximum number of shares which may initially be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date, i.e.
455,849,357 shares. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the limit
may be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meetings of the Company held in 2013, 2015 and 2017,
the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the
respective dates of such meetings.

2. LR XAREBE2RZ (&)

RIZ2012FBIRHER & ARARZERE
REZHRAMARFXZMN1.00ETT
ZHBEAREERHEIATHRLB HE
Z30AA:BHZHTH: HMBHZ
GREZEKRZB)RZAAEEEZEM - K
RRAEFARNBEETHTITELR - EE
ERBEAT THBEERLEREES R
Bt tFHMRZKFE A -TEEHAR
RAEFET HTEERAEIR/TIME
FHESE: OVRELHTRITEAFFZ
RBE: MA2FRMZEHE -

PR $82012 4F B8 IR 5T 81 R AR 2 B AT R
MEMEMERESIEE 2ERESZH
BITERYLSTETIROBERET
BEARNRAINRMBEEITRODBRE 2
10% » BN455,849,357 f% » N J& 18 A 1 &) i%
REBRERE Lt ZRBEAEHARN
ARARRERREASG LI EZRE HTR
MBEZ210% - BE WML - RIB2012F 8
BE HE AT &) R AN R B4 fa) EL BB AR A AT BT
AR B RITE 2 FT A AR 2 BB 1T (0§
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42.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted to each Eligible
Person under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
those exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time unless such grant has
been duly approved by shareholders of the Company at
general meeting at which the Eligible Person and his close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible Person is a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules))
abstained from voting. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder and/or an independent non-executive director
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10%
of total number of shares in issue and have an aggregate
value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting in
advance.
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  42. URA XN REBE 22X 5 (&)
(CONTINUED)
BIBE2012FBREAEMBETAEEE T
Details of the share options granted to certain directors EENEECERERFAZSEREEZ
and employees of the Group under the 2012 Share Option BEFBEMT
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year
are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of the share options

RERERTEBERT
ARARDHBE
Exercised Exercised Lapsed
Exercise Fair value Outstanding  during the Outstanding  during the during the Outstanding
price per  per share at  year ended at  year ended year ended at
Type Date of grant Exercise period* share option 01.04.2016  31.03.2017 31.03.2017  31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2018

B  R2016E HE217F R2017F BZE2018F HZE2018F H2018F
SR BREZ 4F18 3AH31HLE 3H318 3A31HLE 3H31HL 3A31H

B RMAM  TEAME B AVEE HMATE FETE HATE FETE FEARX HRTHE
HKS$ HKS
BT BT

(i) 27.06.2014  27.06.2014-26.06.2017  0.1624 0.0218 39,502,400  (10,048,000) 29,454,400 (2,203,200)  (27,251,200) —
(i) 27.06.2014  27.06.2015-26.06.2017  0.1624 0.0218 39,502,400 — 39,502,400  (12,251,200)  (27,251,200) —
(iii) 27.06.2014  27.06.2016-26.06.2017  0.1624 0.0217 39,502,400 — 39,502,400 (2,247,600)  (37,254,800) —
(iv) 29.09.2014  29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 0.0167 13,500,000 — 13,500,000 — (13,500,000) —
(v) 29.06.2015  29.06.2015-28.06.2018  0.2504 0.0352 30,165,600 — 30,165,600 — — 30,165,600
(vi) 29.06.2015  29.06.2016-28.06.2018  0.2504 0.0352 30,165,600 — 30,165,600 — — 30,165,600
(vii) 29.06.2015  29.06.2017-28.06.2018  0.2504 0.0351 30,165,600 — 30,165,600 — — 30,165,600

222,504,000  (10,048,000) 212,456,000  (16,702,000) (105,257,200) 90,496,800

Exercisable at the end of the year PAF K] F17{E 122,670,400 182,290,400 90,496,800

* All the share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme * FTERIBE2012FHERETZNF LN EIRE
were vested in the relevant grantees upon the commencement EREHBETEHEORAGBHEBERE
date of each respective exercise period. AN o

The amount of cost of share options charged to the EFRARGARZRINGOBRER KNS

consolidated income statement during the year is £8 A %49129,00078 7T (2017 : 889,000/ 7T) ©

approximately HK$129,000 (2017: HK$889,000).

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif 223



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

42.

224  pn

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

In respect of the 16,702,000 (2017: 10,048,000) share
options exercised during the year, the weighted average

share price at the dates of exercise was HK$0.1762 (2017:

HK$0.1765) and the weighted average closing price
immediately before the dates of exercise was HK$0.174
(2017: HK$0.179).

The estimated fair values of the share options granted are
determined by RHL Appraisal Limited, a valuer not
connected with the Group, using the Binomial model.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are based on the best estimate
of the directors of the Company. The value of a share
option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

The following assumptions are used to calculate the fair
values of share options:

Type (i) Type (ii)

2. LRBXAREBE2Z2RZ (&)

FEADTITEHI16,702,000(2017 = 10,048,000)
MERENS  NITEANNETHRE
A0.17627% 7£ (2017 : 017658 ) » M B
BOEARMzMEFH YT ER AK0.174
HIT (2017 1 0179 7T) ©

EREBERENGFAFEEIAEAR
[ 3 4% B B0 B B AR K M 1T REHE B A IR
REAERAZEAFESY -

S B AR 2 (B 2 2 PR 0 2 TR IR AR
TEEARTE BB E BB
B EESRRE T EBRBANTRASH
i i 2 8 o

AAEBERENAFEERERTIER:

Type (iii) Type (iv) Type (v) Type (vi) Type (vii)

EGWE HG)E BVE HFWVE HBWV)E H(WViDE
Grant date closing % H BHI >
share price (HK$) B3 Ui (&
(FBIT) 0.160 0.160 0.168 0.236 0.236 0.236
Expected life T8 BB R 3years & 3years & 3years & 3years £ 3years F 3years &
Expected volatility 78 8% 18 32.74% 32.74% 26.26% 33.19% 33.19% 33.19%
Expected annual  FEHAE &
dividend yield f% B & 6.25% 6.25% 5.95% 4.24% 4.24% 4.24%
Expected exercise 8 Hi7T
multiple (=E 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
Risk-free interest & @ b
rate Fl) = 0.778% 0.778% 0.942% 0.655% 0.655% 0.655%

No share options were granted or cancelled during the
year.
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43. DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE 43. HE—BEKZE AT

On 14 September 2017, the Group completed the disposal
of 45% equity interest in Nantong Port Group at a
consideration of approximately RMB1,666,643,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,966,201,000). Nantong
Port Group ceased to be an associate of the Group upon
and after the disposal. The disposal has resulted in the
recognition of a gain of approximately HK$847,628,000
(2017: Nil) and a taxation charge of approximately
HK$154,369,000 (2017: Nil). Other reserves in relation to
the associate amounting to approximately HK$30,345,000
are credited to the retained profits upon the disposal.

The consideration net of applicable PRC withholding tax of
approximately HK$1,811,832,000 is fully received in cash
during the year, after deduction of other direct costs up to
31 March 2018, net proceeds from the disposal were
about HK$1,735,150,000.

M2017F9H 148 AEE TR L EEB
BOEE245%KE RENRBARE
1,666,643,000 7T ( 48 % B 491,966,201,000
B MBEALDSEEREEC KRR ZE
THAEAEBZHENR &L EEHE
R #1847,628,000/% Jr (2017 : &) 2 I 2%
K #9154,369,0007% 7T (2017 &) < Bl 18
TH-EZBEA AT AR EtEELD
30,345,000 7R I B & 5 AR & Al o

HREMABRERBzPBREENBRE) AR
1,811,832,0008 TE R FNEBEIAR I
B MEMNBREHE2018F38318 1tz &
fhEENARE  ZEEZFEHIBFELY
#1,735,150,000% 7T °
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

4. TR T R

a. S@mMITEAEZER
(i) =HEE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets measured at REBHK AT EZ © R
amortised cost BE
— Loans receivable —EWRE R 372,700 62,100
— Trade and other debtors — B 5 Rk E th U AR 192,042 200,322
— Amounts due from associates — FEUEE & R B FRIE 79,710 48,709
— Amount due from a joint venture =~ — B —B4& &%
RIE 7,619 161
— Pledged bank deposits —BERRITER 30,557 113
— Bank deposits —RITER 248,276 184,079
— Bank balances and cash —HRTEEFEEERS 327,847 315,571
1,258,751 811,055
Financial assets measured at fair value R AT EBEGFEZ S/
BE
— Investments in equity instruments ~ — IR A FEEZAEAM
at FVTOCI FHIKE 2 Ean
TEAEKRE 436,826 451,816
— Investments in equity instruments ~ — R A FEEZAEZT
held for trading at FVTPL ReRBIEEEER
TEAEKRE 35,964 51,700
— Investments in debt instruments —BANFEEZAER
held for trading at FVTPL RZRIEEER
BLAKRE 320,174 —
— Other financial asset at FVTPL —BAFEEZAERR
ReHMmemEE 183,539 —
976,503 503,516
Total st 2,235,254 1,314,571
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 44. T ELT A (&)

T A ZEA (&)
(i) EHEME

a. Categories of financial instruments a.
(Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost WEHEK AT EZ SR
afE
— Trade and other creditors —H 5 & H th BT BR 5K 296,434 276,520
— Amount due to a joint venture —EN—HEAeELHE
A — 254
— Amounts due to associates — E{THE & R R FIB 17,400 36,666
— Amounts due to non-controlling — B SE 4 AR B 25 B
interests 104,089 97,065
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREAMER 1,142,667 1,757,927
1,560,590 2,168,432

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
debtors, loans receivable, investments in equity
instruments, investments in equity instruments held
for trading, investments in debt instruments held for
trading, other financial asset, trade and other
creditors, amounts due from (to) associates/a joint
venture/non-controlling interests and bank and other
borrowings. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

cREMEEEBRERBRE

AEEZIZERTABRRERTHE
R RTEEFELRE BHREME
W BWER #aTAKRE -
FIFEERaTARE KHIFEERE
BITARE HMemEE -BHR
Hip AR U (R B E R R
—MAaghX FEEREERANR
RITREMER LS/ T AR
B o 2 L B R R B Utk 2 R B 2 BRSR
BENTX - BEEEEERERZER
B AREIR BB B R AN Z ZHE T
AEBZBERBEEEZFHER -
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk
is attributable to its financial instruments
that are subject to both variable rate and
fixed rate. Those financial instruments of
variable interest rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Details of
the Group's interest bearing financial
instruments at variable rates have been
disclosed in Notes 27, 28, 33 and 38.
Financial instruments at fixed interest
rates expose the Group to fair value
interest risk. Details of the Group’s
interest bearing financial instruments at
fixed rate have been disclosed in Notes
27,32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37 and 38.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk,
the Group adopts a policy of maintaining
an appropriate mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings which is achieved
primarily through entering into different
contractual terms of borrowings. The
position is regularly monitored and
evaluated by reference to anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

The Group's exposures to interest rate
risk on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the rates announced by The
People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s RMB borrowings and advance at
variable rates and Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate and HKBLR arising from the
Group's HK Dollars loans receivable and
borrowings at variable rates.
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b. ®REKREEBZERBEK (&)
(a) WmHEE

(i)

=Bk

AEBZHNERKKE Z
BEREEBEMIA -%FE
FEEMIAFAEER
HASTEMN KRR - X
EEFESBMIAFS
» K §E27 2833 %38
NFETZE - TEE@MIT AR
AEBEEHAFEEFE

TEFBRMHE27 32
3334353637 %38

REBENEXRAR  KNEH
ERRBER TE@EBF]
NARAHRBAZER
REEBREEEBRZE
EHEAE -HEMANTIEHE
£ WRMBHEZES
BT -

AEERERABTEY
MEER - FERAME
NERRBEREREE
MOBEH - AEEZRE
MENERBREZSETR
FEARBITH MM X
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

0]

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable rate instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel.

If interest rates are variable and had been
50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 March 2018,
excluding the capitalised borrowing costs
of approximately HK$1,007,000 (2017:
HK$734,000), would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,894,000 (2017: post
tax loss would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$4,622,000).

For loans receivable, amounts due from
associates and bank balances, the effect
on interest rate risk to the Group's post-
tax profit is insignificant. Therefore, the
effect is not included in the sensitivity
analysis above.

44. £H T B (58)

b. TREREERREREXE (&)
(a) 5 mEbE (&)

Pr1i

(i)

= E k2 ()

B E DT
TXZGRERE DM TIIRIE
RBERTERREE L
BAAZzZHMEXERME
e DM NDBERNBE B
TEEBZAEESRITA
REEFEDRREEM
e -ERMAFETRERE
ANBERMNERERE )
BR RS pn skl A 50 & -

HZEF E EFT BKS0
A 252017 :50&E 2 )
FTEEMESRBTE .
B 78 & E 5 B 2201843
A3NBIEFE 2B & & F
(TBREEERZERK
N 491,007,000 7T (2017 :
734,000 7T )) #8 T % L
F+ 491,894,000 7T (2017
MEBEB EF TRERY
4,622,000/ 7T ° )

HREEER - R
REIFEARRITES
ECNCE RN SLIORRE By
MOFEEITMTRED -
At ZXEXWREER
ELAgREINA -

O wesmamnn 201 4
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a monetary item will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Certain receivables and investments
in debt instruments held for trading of
the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies such as RMB and United States
Dollars (“US Dollars”) and which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. The
Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company also have certain transactions
denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely
convertible into other foreign currencies
and conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
The Group manages its exposures to
foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency
receipts and payments. The Group
ensures that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an acceptable
level from time to time.

230 P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

44. £H T B (58)

b. TREREERREREXE (&)
(a) 5 mEbE (&)

(i)

ERER

SRR ERIER EE
75 B BE & % & i K B 2
e AEBEE T EUIFA
EFEBEEEBLAR
BETRARBRET(E
T FHINEGFE F4A%
BZAmE SN E R o AE
= B AT I SRR
ReAim BEEEGEY
ERINE R R
EREELHPERINNEE

B o

RAARAETEAMBERR
MEETREUARKER
B A\RETAEHAR
BMEBHMING  EHA
X B BT P AR A 2 N
EHIR B ROERAR - &
EEEERIIMNERR KA
HKFREBINER 5
b o AN ERREIFINE
B AR RFEAER Z
K o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Currency risk (Continued)

All of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK Dollars, US Dollars
and RMB. The Group mainly draws
borrowings in the functional currencies of
the entities as management considers the
repayments can be sourced from income
to be generated in those currencies.

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group believes the exposure of
transactions denominated in US Dollars
which are entered by group companies
with a functional currency of HK Dollars
to be insignificant.

The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the
exposure of RMB against HK Dollars. The
Group regularly reviews the balances of
assets and liabilities and the currencies in
which the transactions are denominated
so as to minimise the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk.

44. €T A (&)

b.

TRAEREEBRERBEKE)

(a)

Pr1i

w5 fE B ()
(i) BE¥ERGE

AEBEMBERGNRE
T -EXETRARBRE
fl-AEBETEANERZ
WREE B IREE R - L5
HREEERSAIAKE
NZEEBREMZ WA

yam
E K °

-

MR BT EETEE K
SEBENETRINGEE
K ZEBRRMAIML AR
TRENzZXSMEHZ
2\ f BT 2 4B o

AEBERR  EINERR
ITBREARBRETZ
BB o AEEE B H
BERBBZEBRARR
HZEEEN BREE
AR EEFES 2N
Rz o
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

44. £H T B (58)

b. TREREERREREXE (&)
(a) 5 mEbE (&)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (i) E¥ERERKGE)

(ii) Currency risk (Continued) REBE I BB
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s HNBRBR s EBEE
foreign currency denominated monetary EEEEE(NBIED T
assets and monetary liabilities (excluding MER)(BEEERRBEK
inter-company balances), with exposure B)RBERTHERZE
to foreign currency risk which are EEMT :
considered as significant by management,
at the end of the reporting periods are as
follows:

Liabilities Assets
afE BE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTHERT FAET
US Dollars ETT 15,710 — 323,702 3,490
RMB N 1,334 1,189 129 16,305
HK Dollars BT — — 506 1
In addition, foreign currency denominated gLoh - ASNEEEHE 2 & A
inter-company balances, with exposure to BEREATEEERASE
foreign currency risk which are considered K 7OV E B - R4 HE
as significant by management, at the end TER BN
of the reporting periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2018 2017 2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET FEx TRET

US Dollars =
RMB AR
HK Dollars BT

2,703 2,462 442,653 154,456
67,922 65,894 —_ _
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis
As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group's foreign currency risk exposure
related to US Dollars is not considered to
be significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented for US Dollars
against functional currencies.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase in RMB
against HK Dollars and 5% decrease in
HK Dollars against RMB. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit/a decrease in post-tax loss
where RMB strengthen 5% against HK
Dollars. For a 5% weakening of RMB
against HK Dollars, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit
(loss) for the year.

44. €T A (&)

b. TREREERREREXE (&)
(a) 5 mEbE (&)

(i)

B ER (R
mRBTEETHSE K
SEEHBEBETZIE
RER M T RS-
o WEBRETHANEE
B2 BRBEDN

TRANAREERARE
H OB T IE R 18 5% & B
TC A R R 5%
BB RE - &mAEE
ZER ABERINERR
B TR AS% A8RELL
Ko HRESMERTER
THEWAINE BB 2
EWIEE BRJREHE
ERINEIE R 25% % 8
EITHE - TRZIEHAE
TARBEREZEIL A%
I Bt 18 S FI 48 0T 1% &S
BRL ARBRLAETT
BR5% R - ¥ A s B (&
BIZHFTZEMEA K
F AR e

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Increase in profit/decrease in loss N F 18 ks 18
for the year B 21,132 9,728
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

234 pn

b. Financial risk management objectives and

"
L4

policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk from
its investments in equity instruments,
investments in equity instruments held for
trading, investments in debt instruments
held for trading and other financial asset.
Management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity securities
operating in port development, hotel
operation and properties management,
investment industry sectors and property
development. The Group has monitored
the other price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise.

®» PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
price risk for investments in equity
instruments, debt instruments and other
financial asset carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices or fair values of these
respective financial assets had been 5%
higher/lower,

o post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2018 would increase/
decrease by HK$22,532,000 (2017:
post-tax loss would decrease/
increase by HK$2,129,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of
investments in equity instruments
held for trading, debt instruments
held for trading and other financial
asset; and

o investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by
HK$21,841,000 (2017:
HK$22,591,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in the fair
value of investments in equity
instruments not held for trading.

44. £H T B (58)

b. TREREERREREXE (&)
i % 3 B (4E)

(a)

Pr1i

(i

"
L4

i) HfhEEER (R
B E DT
HREDM BB EH =
BEEATFEEI R ®
s THE BEHFTAEREM
TREEREMEYHER
e\ e T R

HWEBRTREEZBHN
NFEEBELEATHES%
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e HRBHEBEE R
m LA FIEEEZ
BEHELARAERHE
theMEERER
20184F3A31H IEF
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(2017 : HE BB G
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge obligations by the
counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk of the
debtors, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
will understand the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales
are made to customers with good credit
history. Credit limits attributed to customers
and credit term granted to customers on
different business units are reviewed regularly.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual
customer to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
The Group has concentration of credit risks in
relation to its bank balances that are deposited
at several banks. Management of the Group
considers that the credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited at several banks is limited,
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings.

The Group had concentration of credit risk as
the total loans receivable as at 31 March 2018
is due from five (2017: two) borrowers. Other
than the impairment loss recognised on a loan
receivable as set out per Note 27, the other
loans receivable were neither past due nor
impaired.

The credit risk on investments in listed debt
securities is limited because the counterparties
are corporations of good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
an unlisted convertible security issued by an
independent third party. However,
management considers that the credit risk is
limited as it is issued by company of good
reputation.

The Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk on investment in
listed securities as counterparties are brokers of
good reputation.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, the
exposure of which spreads over a number of
counterparties.

44. £H T B (58)

b. EHEAREREREBFRBX(E)

(b)

Pr1i

=& =R ()
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March
2018, the Group has unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$502 million (2017:
HK$180 million) available to finance the
Group’s working capital requirements. Details
of the amounts utilised at the end of the
reporting period are set out in Note 38.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. There are unutilised banking facilities
available to finance the Group’s working capital
requirements. The Group relies on borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
The Group will also consider the issue of equity
instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

44. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted

average Ondemand

b. EHEAREREREBFRBX(E)

mEEZEE (E)
RBESRANERERK

(9]

More than

90 days and

Total

effective or within 90  within 365 More than undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate days days 365 days cash flows  amount
MEFY REAL  EBIWA *HERRE
ERA=E 90HMA {BR365A K #BiB365H RELE KEE
% HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FhET TET ThErn TEL THEn
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRERE
Trade and other creditors B o REMERNER — 189,07 84,938 22,425 296,434 296,434
Amounts due to associates/ a joint venture/ & Bt 4 A7)/~
non-controlling interests REDE/ R
EmNIE
— non-interest bearing — e - 17,400 — - 17,400 17,400
— fixed rate interest —T8
bearing 5.14 1,338 6,485 105,536 113,359 104,089
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER
— fixed rate interest —T8
bearing 5.40 270,262 63,903 130,971 465,136 450,917
— variable rate interest — %8
bearing 4.84 149,661 90,369 536,610 776,640 691,750
627,732 245,695 795,542 1,668,969 1,560,590
mt) REEZEAFR AT 2018 F;
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

240 ey

¢

44. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and b. £RIEREREBERBEGE)
policies (Continued) © FBESEE (E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRANEZEMRR (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)
Weighted More than 90
average  On demand days and Total
effective orwithin90  within 365 Morethan  undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate days days 365 days cash flows ~ amount
MEFH  R@EMx  BBIH KRR
BRAE 90HM BR3658A BiA365A nELE HHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEL  TAT TExT TR
2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRERE
Trade and other creditors EoREMERER — 116,718 135,738 24,064 276,520 276,520
Amounts due to associates/ a joint venture/ & B & A &l /— Fﬁ
non-controlling interests RERE/ R
EmE
— non-interest bearing — A — 25,633 — — 25633 25633
— fixed rate interest —T8
bearing 5.18 12,609 5924 103,252 121,785 108,352
Bank and other borrowings BIREMER
— fixed rate interest —T8
bearing 5.33 201,983 222,036 46,417 470,436 458,392
— variable rate interest —%8
bearing 410 536,292 394,959 460,706 1,391,957 1,299,535
893,235 758,657 634,439 2,286,331 2,168,432

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

The fair value of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined.

44. €@ T

A (%)

« ETMIAZAFEENE

CHEERSMABY AFHEAER
MFARETE :

(i)

(ii)

Pr1i

WHEREEZEEL LN FEE
FTEZEHMEERETMAER
ZRFEE

EERR REAMBEHRRT
BEBHEHAAANRZEREER
TRABECREEELQTE
EME%E -

ZETREERERAGEZA
FEENRAREERAER
MEREREDITMETE -

BEFEELLNFEEE
ZCERMEEREMEBZ A
FlEE

RESHMBPTHEE  AEEE
TeMEENRTEEFE-
TREHREHENNEETZE S
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 44. T ELT A ()

ERMITAZAVEERE(E
(i) BEFEEELRFEENE

c. Fair value measurement of financial C.
instruments (Continued)

242 eal>

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and ZEMEERTHEBZ A
financial liabilities that are measured at FEEE)
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 3 Total
AFEEBEER E—R E=R HaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET TFET
At 31 March 2018 201843 A31H
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEAEGAEZR
Listed debt instruments BIEEBZ ETHEX
held for trading IR 320,174 — 320,174
Listed equity instruments BIEEEZz Fhi#EDR
held for trading TA 35,964 — 35,964
Other financial asset EmemEE — 183,539 183,539
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEEGAEM
THEHWEZEMEE
Listed equity instruments s T A 31,272 — 31,272
Unlisted equity instruments JErmERTA — 405,554 405,554
Total financial assets BB E 387,410 589,093 976,503
At 31 March 2017 #R201793A31H
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEEFEAEBRE
ZERMEE
Listed equity instruments BEEEZz EmiER
held for trading TA 51,700 — 51,700
Financial assets at FVTOC]I EAFEEGAEM
THREZEREE
Listed equity instruments IThESTE 92,469 — 92,469
Unlisted equity instruments FErFmERITA — 359,347 359,347
Total financial assets BB E 144,169 359,347 503,516
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

note:

Level 1:

Level 3:

The fair values of the financial instruments traded in
active markets are based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The quoted market
prices used for financial assets held by the Group are
the current bid price.

The fair values of the financial instruments are based
on Level 3 measurement (as detailed in Note 3) using
the valuation techniques described in Notes 24 and
32.

There were no transfers between the different levels
of the fair value hierarchy for both years.

44. €T A (&)

« ETMIAZAFEENEGE

(i) BEFEEELRFEENE
ZEHBEERTHMAEBZA
FlEE (F)

Pr1i
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 44. T ELT A ()

¢. Fair value measurement of financial ¢ STRMIAZATEEEE)
instruments (Continued) (i) 2BMTAE>E=RAFEE
(iii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value GTEZYER
measurement of financial instruments
Unlisted Other
equity financial
instruments asset Total
kLt Hity
ERTHE SREE i
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A 1H 422,614 — 422,614
Loss on revaluation recognised A E 2T W3S R
in other comprehensive income ZEHER (62,991) — (62,991)
Exchange realignment VE 3, 38 B (276) — (276)
At 31 March 2017 2017463 A31H 359,347 — 359,347
Purchases BE A — 175,000 175,000
Gain on revaluation recognised REZEREMRHK
in profit or loss = — 8,539 8,539
Gain on revaluation recognised REME2EIKZEER
in other comprehensive income - 46,165 — 46,165
Exchange realignment VE 5§82 42 — 42
At 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H 405,554 183,539 589,093
Included in other comprehensive income is HAEMmEEkR s EGkE
revaluation gain of HK$46,165,000 (2017: loss 46,165,0007% 7T (2017 : &5 18
of HK$62,991,000) relating to unlisted 62,991,000 7T ) B2 A 3] 45 HE 5%
investments in equity instruments using Level 3 R ERE=fT=E 23
measurement held at the end of the reporting tHEXTAEREEE T2
period and is reported as changes in investment A EEHBEES -

revaluation reserve.
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45. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 45 METEEEX B BEHER

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TERBASEREZPELZABEDHF

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities B BRAESLIIERSEH MELTHE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and EZBEDAEEREIARAKRBERER
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing AREBGFEABESRERTHBEABRETH
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future HenEazaAE-

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
Amounts
Amounts duetonon- Bankand
dueto controlling other Interest
associates interests borrowings payable Total
EAHE ENEER RITR
ARNRE EREMIE HttERX ENSRE FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TAET TAT FHBT
At 1 April 2017 M2017F4H1H 11,912 97,065 1,757,927 8,574 1,875,478
Financing cash flows @& R &A= (12,014) (2,478) (713,615) (81,344)  (809,451)
Finance costs capitalised #{E& K 7 Gt &
BN — — — 23,412 23,412
Finance costs (note) B & R (B aE) 102 — — 52,363 52,465
Exchange realignment [ 3, 3 #& — 9,502 98,355 — 107,857
At 31 March 2018 M2018%3 A31H — 104,089 1,142,667 3,005 1,249,761
note: Finance cost excludes imputed interest expenses on other payable Kiat RMERATBIEREMENERZEER A
of HK$990,000. 7 990,000 7T

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif
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46.

246 pn

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group joins defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are separately held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions in accordance with the rules of the
schemes in that jurisdiction.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group's
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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46.

47.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
(CONTINUED)

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to the
funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$8,668,000 (2017:
HK$6,558,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has no contingent
liability (2017: Nil).

46.

47.

iR k8 F EF & (&)
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é’ﬁJ_xﬂ%}\? BZEERHA RERED
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48. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@) The Group as a lessee:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
leasehold interest in land, rented premises and plant
and machinery which fall due as follows:

48. REHERKIE

() AEEE/EHEA:

R4 A SE A B R B 1 1 AT Y
ZERLtw o HEREES HAD
EUERBERBBECEHESE W
BRREERE S RIEAE o It FEE
L ZASEIIAT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —F R 13,548 11,220
In the second to fifth year inclusive EEFRAF(BEME

BEEA) 13,534 14,290

Over five years HBidh 619 985

27,701 26,495

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed,
for terms ranging from one to thirty years.

(b) The Group as a lessor:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants in respect of its investment
properties and stock of properties for future
minimum lease payments which fall due as follows:

HOBEHRRAS—FE=TFTE
kERETEE -

(b) AEEEHHEA:

RBEMEEN AEERLEEY
$RMETEZBPERARAE
BeHATH - XHHMT :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FET

Within one year —FR 14,258 14,600
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFERF(BERMAF

BREEA) 33,427 32,995

Over five years HBidhF 27,906 26,266

75,591 73,861

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to

twenty years.
248 P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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49.

50.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure

49. EEE A

RmERTER > THNEECERTRT
LB HE  ERASERSE—REER

the general credit facilities granted to the Group: B ZHEA
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Investment properties KEYE 156,882 140,069
Property, plant and equipment P - W KRB 240,000 339,945
Prepaid lease payments AN HEERE 177,275 170,618
Bank deposits RITE 30,557 113
Other intangible assets HfhmEEE 5,141 7,315
Stock of properties MEFRE 303,993 265,828
Investments in debt instruments held for trading #H{EEEEHK T AKRE 95,654 —
1,009,502 923,888
In addition, the Company pledged its investments in FH o RRABRETHEBRAR ZRER®E

certain subsidiaries of a book value of approximately
HK$279,009,000 (2017: HK$445,280,000) to secure the

{8 #7279,009,000/% 7T (2017 : 445,280,000
BI)ETFTER (EAMERERE ZE

facilities granted. {F o
COMMITMENTS 50. 7&1E
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Expenditure contracted for but not provided gtUs B A T1E B 23T QB AR
in the consolidated financial statements BEVBREABRE 2 RAX
in respect of acquisition of:
— Property, plant and equipment — W E - B N R 41,104 5,366
— Investment properties —REE 6,581 5,587
47,685 10,953

'
iy
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51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

250 en

51. B A TR B K&k

BALANCES
@ KRG BRxEMIAH>BESE
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated G R ANEE D HEE T R
financial statements, the Group also entered into the FTEIT U TEARLS
following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2018 2017
B AL Z2EA XEME HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
(i) Associates of the Group Interest charged by the Group 4,005 2,102
NEE & QA N & B UYELF B
Interest charged to the Group 102 1,474
REEZ A
Service fees charged by the Group 872 1,028
REBEWE R E
Advanced from the Group 43,000 —
REBBK
(i) Joint ventures of the Group Service fees charged by the Group 251 407
KEBZEERE REBWRREE
Rentals charged to the Group 481 459
AEEXNEE
Interest charged by the Group 7 —
7 5 B WEUR B
Advanced from the Group 7,435 —
REBBK
(iii)  Entity controlled by senior Service fees charged to the Group 441 424
management (note) AEBSNREE
RMEEANBES 2B (K iF)
note: These transactions constituted the de minimis connected Biet: ZEXFEXRETHATETES

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

Other than the related party transactions set out in
the Note 51(a)(iii) above, none of the related party
transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as

defined in the Listing Rules.
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51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 51. EEEA T X B K&k (&)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

b)) EFLEMIB2EEEXREZHE

(b)  The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management, which is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends, is as

THFEMEZEE2EMB/IABRZR
BEMBEAMETE  FHBWOT

follows:
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Short-term benefits 45 B 48 F) 19,527 18,681
Discretionary bonus EYIS FE AT 56,729 1,825
Post-employment benefits RORAE N 820 779
Share-based payment expense U I 7EZRAX 129 889
77,205 22,174

Pr1i
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51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

252 pn

(b)

(Continued)

Details of the share options for the Company’s

shares granted to the directors and other members
of key management and outstanding during the year

are set out below:

51. BB AL X 5 R &6 ()

(b) (&)

FARTESEREMIBZEEEK
BURBRTEABARARDG 2
BREZFBHIWT

Number of shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options

RERBERTERERTZIFALARGEUE

Exercised Exercised Lapsed
Exercise Outstanding during the Outstanding duringthe  during the Outstanding
price per at year ended at yearended year ended at
Grantee Date of grant  Exercise period share  01.04.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2018
gz HE Bz
R20165F  2017F  R2017F  2018% 2018%F  R2018F
=13 4818 3A31HL 38318 3A31HL 3A31BL  3A31H
AERA it B TEHE TEE HATE FETE HATE FEAE FEXN HXOH
HK$
i
Directors
B
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 27.06.2014 27.06.2014-26.06.2017  0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — (15,000,000 —
BR 27.06.2014 27.06.2015-26.06.2017  0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — (15,000,000) —
27.06.2014 27.06.2016-26.06.2017  0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — (15,000,000) —
29.06.2015 29.06.2015-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000
29.06.2015 29.06.2016-28.06.2018 02504 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000
29.06.2015 29.06.2017-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000
Chan Shu Kin 29.09.2014 29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 —  (4,500,000) —
R E
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 29.09.2014 29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 —  (4,500,000) —
BEE
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond  29.09.2014 29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 —  (4,500,000) —
-1
Other members of ~ 27.06.2014 27.06.2014-26.06.2017  0.1624 24,502,400 (10,048,000) 14,454,400 (2,203,200) (12,251,200) —
key management 27.06.2014 27.06.2015-26.06.2017  0.1624 24,502,400 — 24,502,400 (12,251,200) (12,251,200) —
HTEEEEBRE 27.06.2014 27.06.2016-26.06.2017  0.1624 24,502,400 — 24,502,400 (2,247,600) (22,254,800) —
29.06.2015 29.06.2015-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,165,600 — 15,165,600 — — 15,165,600
29.06.2015 29.06.2016-28.06.2018 02504 15,165,600 — 15,165,600 — — 15,165,600
29.06.2015 29.06.2017-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,165,600 — 15,165,600 — — 15,165,600
Total &3 222,504,000 (10,048,000) 212,456,000 (16,702,000) (105,257,200) 90,496,800
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HZE2018F3A31HILFE

51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

52.

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(0)

(c)  Details of the balances with associates and a joint
venture at the end of the reporting period are set

out in Notes 28, 35 and 36.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

RS THEE

51. BB AL XX 5 K& & ()

HEERA N —

MEELXZERFBEHIINKZE

28 35M36°

52. "Bz W BN KK HE

2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N GIENCIPR: E 19,065 5,353
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Y B JEB A B FR0A 1,106,528 435,960
1,125,593 441,313

CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B B A B F I8 2,007,186 2,514,679
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HiEWEET - 518 RFEN KA 916 856
Short term bank deposits MHISRITIF K 174,608 173,078
Bank balances and cash WRITHB AR 737 1,870
2,183,447 2,690,483
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other creditors and accrued expenses HiENBERLESRAX 3,425 4,370
Bank borrowings — due within one year —FRNEEHZRITER 120,000 622,350
123,425 626,720
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZE 2,060,022 2,063,763
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEEBRBERS 3,185,615 2,505,076

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEEF
Bank borrowings — due after one year —F R I 2 IRITER — 35,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,185,615 2,470,076

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXREE
Share capital P& A 551,958 458,741
Reserves (note) & (H L) 2,633,657 2,011,335
TOTAL EQUITY B 3,185,615 2,470,076

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif
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52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONAND 52. KR A B Z B B R R K B £ &

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

note:

(#&)
EE

Share-based

Share payment Retained
premium reserve profits Total
DR &S
B3 E RIEREE R A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2016 Mn2016F4A1H 494,694 4,970 2,026,859 2,526,523
Loss for the year FEER — — (516,703) (516,703)
Issue of shares under share 1R 15 B AR R 5t &I 3 17 I D
option scheme 846 (220) — 626
Recognition of equity-settled HRERELEE ARG
share-based payment expense S REAX — 889 — 889
At 31 March 2017 72017438318 495,540 5,639 1,510,156 2,011,335
Profit for the year FEEHEF — — 573,586 573,586
Issue of shares under share RIEBE AT BB 1T I D
option scheme 1,406 (364) — 1,042
Recognition of equity-settled HRIZREEE ARG
share-based payment expense XA FIER X — 129 — 129
Release upon lapse of vested B 57 B B AR A IR A A
options — (2,222) 2,222 —
Issue of placing shares TR ERD 51,266 — — 51,266
Transaction costs attributable to 217 &R D E(EXZ 5
issue of placing shares J %N (3,701) —_ —_ (3,701)
At 31 March 2018 MH2018F3 A31H 544,511 3,182 2,085,964 2,633,657
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. T EHiB AR HKEATIARSE

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES EhEER
(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at @ ARAAEZEHEBERAR2018F &
31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 2017F3A31B ZFFBWOT :

Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital

BRTRE HEREREIL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  subsidiaries to the Group  Principal activities
MBI BROTRBERE/
WEAREE i/ e ZMEX MNBEAREE  AKEEHL FTEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BlERRAA Bk ordinary shares REER
10,0007 7T
ERBMH

Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate  The PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Development Co., Ltd. H registered capital and sale of properties

IHEERUEREER (note (i) below) MERE REREE
NS 8,800,000% 7T

FME X
(TFxhzE)

Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC US$100,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development, investment,
Investment and H registered capital sale and leasing of
Development Co., Ltd. (note (i) below) properties, developed
("Jiangsu Yangtong”) 100,000,000% 7T land, land under

IHFBAERERR AR development and projects
RAl(I&FRE]) (T X i) under development.

WE BRELH FBE
PR FAERIER 2
Eiﬁéé REHERMA
g

Jiaxing Feeder Port Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Investment Limited e ordinary share infrastructure investment

EEANTEREERAA 1T BOEERERRE

TR D

Jiaxing International The PRC RMB262,800,000 90 90 90 90 Port operation
Container Feeder Port H registered capital BOLE
Limited (note (i) below)

RENTERERKBHE AR 262,800,007
BRRA FER

(T K (i)

Nation Cheer Investment Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 100 100 100 100 Securities trading and
Limited e ordinary shares investment

HEREBRAA 1,200,0007% T EREENRE

TR D
Paul Y. Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
REEFER AT EA ordinary shares infrastructure
QBT investment
ERR R BOSERERRE
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

53. X EfBAR HBEATIARE
EhEER(E)

@@ (&)
(@) (Continued)

Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital

RARE/AMEXELL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  subsidiaries to the Group  Principal activities
SR/ BOTRBERE
WELRERE i e ZMEX MWEARARE  AKEENL  FTEXR
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
Paul Y. Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
&5 ordinary shares REZR
28T
LB ARG
PYI Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of management
REEEEEEARATA e ordinary shares services
287 REERRB
LR
PYI Min Sheng Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited e ordinary shares RE R
REREREFRAT 2B
LB ARG
PYI Properties (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
REFEFER)ERLAA FAE ordinary share REER
1B
LEmR R
PYI Xingdong Properties The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
(Jiangsu) Limited e registered capital and sale of properties
REAREE(IH) (note () below) MEER REREHE
BERRA 20,000,000% 7T
BRI
(T HFEE()
PYI Yichang Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Limited BB ordinary share infrastructure investment
REAEREFRAT BT BOSERERRE
Ll
Treasure Capital Finance Hong Kong HK$1 100 — 100 — Provision of credit services,
Limited BB ordinary share securities trading and
BEREAXUBERAR 18T investment
LB REEERE BHER
REE
Yichang Port Group Limited ~ The PRC RMB203,690,000 51 51 51 51 Ports operation
HEABEEARAML B registered capital BOLE
NG| (note (ii) below)
AR #203,690,00070
(X Hiat (i)

256 P(I:) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. T EMB AT B 23RS

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES EhEER (E)
(CONTINUED)
@ (&)

(@) (Continued)

Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital

BERTRE HEMEREIL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  subsidiaries to the Group  Principal activities
R g BRORBMERE/
WELRERE i e ZMEX MWEARARE  AKEENL  FTEXR
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
Yichang Port Group Yunchi  The PRC RMB409,050,000 62.366 62.366  31.807 31.807 Port operation
Port Limited F registered capital (note (iii) BOZE
HEAKEEEBERR (note (ii) below) below)
NSl A& % 409,050,000 70 (TX
g R izt
(T K it (i) (i)
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied The PRC US$41,000,000 100 100 100 100 LPG and CNG distribution
Petroleum Gas Limited F registered capital and logistics
MERERBRIR (note (i) below) RIEEBRRERERAR
BRAF 41,000,000% 7T DERIR
(TFxhia()
M RERRERZME  The PRC US$18,950,000 100 100 100 100 LPG technical research
EERAA H registered capital and development
(note (i) below) BAL A AR AT R
18,950,000 7 RER
(FxhaE)
Bt L EEEXEERA  ThePRC RMB45,000,000 100 100 75 75 Development, investment
al H registered capital and sale of properties
(note (ii) below) MEBR RERBEE
AR #45,000,0007T
(X Hiat (i)
TE/NFDRRFARE The PRC US$10,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development of
BRRAE H registered capital recreational facilities
(notes (ii) and (iv) below) REHBER
10,000,000% T
(T &2 Gi) & (i)
All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies. LM EMB AR BEBRAR -
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

258 e

(CONTINUED)
(@) (Continued)
notes:
(i) Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

(ii) Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

(i) Yichang Port Group Yunchi Port Limited (“Yunchi Port Co")
is being owned as to 62.366% by Yichang Port Group, a
51%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
maintains control over the subsidiary through control over
Yichang Port Group.

(iv)  Asat 31 March 2018, the registered capital of JT#k/ |\ 1
S8R BAE AR A ) was paid up to US$6,680,000 (2017:
US$6,680,000).

Remark:Except for the subsidiary as disclosed in note (iv) for the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the registered
capital of all principal subsidiaries registered in the PRC were
fully paid up during the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A maijority of these subsidiaries are engaged in
investment holding and corporate services, which
operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report

53. T EM B QA
EhEER (&

(a)

(%)

EE

(iv)

BELAARE

)

ERARRINEEELE -
WERRR/PIGEREDE -

EEABEBRZEWBEARAATEH
BEARBEEARRHEASI%OHE R
RIHEE K EEM 562.366% N&E
EEBYEESEEEMMNTFIEES
A7 M B A A A A

2018438318« /T & /) ¥ 08
SHEERAAZEMERD
6,680,000 7T (2017 : 6,680,000 7T )

o =

i K e

FoBR R ELE20184F K201743A31H Ik

FERWFHWBEBZMB ARSI - FT
ERFPEEIMZEEWNBRARARER
20184F K 20173 A31HIEFERE
BREMER-

REEHRTER AR R MY
AEEMETBERZMBARR - %
EWMBRARAABAIREREZERRK
EERYG REERTEZE-

BEMBARERFERETEME
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. T EHiB AR HKEATIARSE
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES EhEER (R
(CONTINUED)

by BBERIFEREZ AEEIIER
(b)  Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the BB ARG
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Principal
place of Voting rights held by  Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of entity business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests ~ controlling interests
FTEEHX FERESERZ PREFERES
EBER it B RERE ZaF (E8) HitkERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET
Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC 25% 25% 13,065 (4,618) 346,430 303,065
LR F R H
Yichang Port Group The PRC 49% 49% 11,321 12,815 311,449 272,923
(note i) i
HEBBE
(Bt &)
Yunchi Port Co The PRC 37.634% 37.634% 43 1,803 192,067 176,714
5 R A G
Individually immaterial (60) 124 51,032 46,730

subsidiaries with

non-controlling interests
VA JEE A R 2R 2 {E B

FERMERF

24,369 10,124 900,978 799,432

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif

259



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZ2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below.

53.TEMBEART BMEATARE

gERER ()
(o) (4)
AU EEAFERES 2 AEHE

MEBARSA BB BERMT

Jiangsu Yangtong Yichang Port Group

LEROF R EERKE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TET FHETT FET FET
(note ffzZii)
Results of the entities: FEERES
Revenue W A —_ — 334,812 286,969
Profit (loss) for the year ZERER AEN
attributable to owners of FEm A (EE)
the entity 52,260 (18,472) 23,104 26,155
Profit (loss) for the year, WTATELEFER
attributable to A (g 8E)
— owners of the Company — AR EHEB A 39,195 (13,854) 11,783 13,340
— non-controlling interests —RBE%ERZ
holding the entity IR = 13,065 (4,618) 11,321 12,815
52,260 (18,472) 23,104 26,155
Other comprehensive income AT AT EA
(expense), attributable to ZEWA(FX)
— owners of the Company — ARRNBEA A 90,898 (54,940) 28,314 (16,938)
— non-controlling interests —BEZEEZ
holding the entity e IR R 30,300 (18,314) 27,205 (16,273)
121,198 (73,254) 55,519 (33,211)
Total comprehensive income UTATENAZ®E
(expense), attributable to WA (RX) @Bz
— owners of the Company i N/NEIE N 130,093 (68,794) 40,097 (3,598)
— non-controlling interests —RHE%ERZ
holding the entity IR = 43,365 (22,932) 38,526 (3,458)
173,458 (91,726) 78,623 (7,056)

Dividends paid to non-
controlling interests

BRI

g
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)

53. T EMBAF
EhEEHR (&)

1|

Jiangsu Yangtong Yichang Port Group

SIERER EERBKER
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT FHExT FET
(note [tz%ii)
Financial position: BRI
Non-current assets EmBEE 1,298,727 1,045,376 1,250,742 1,090,734
Current assets mEEE 1,565,111 1,491,220 309,129 238,280
Current liabilities mE B E (582,326) (544,203) (214,570) (351,884)
Non-current liabilities ErRBHEERE (895,792) (780,131) (516,952) (242,804)
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR RE — —  (192,739) (177,339)
1,385,720 1,212,262 635,610 556,987
Equity attributable to N TNTALTEE#ER
— owners of the Company — KRR BIHEAA 1,039,290 909,197 324,161 284,064
— non-controlling interests ~ — A% EE
holding the entity IEFERR HE =S 346,430 303,065 311,449 272,923
1,385,720 1,212,262 635,610 556,987
Cash flows: HeRE
Net cash (outflow) inflow from & &S5 &) IH &
operating activities (R RAER (26,687) (21,780) 46,530 61,986
Net cash inflow (outflow) from & & 55&) 2 H &
investing activities A O ) JH 88 31,156 (43,132) (82,112) (14,710)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from B& &) 2 H &
financing activities Cm ) R A F=8 (54,608) 61,337 51,853 (53,381)
Effect of foreign exchange rate 4 FE = oy 5 g2 &
changes 2,379 (125) 17,768 (3,579)
Net cash (outflow) inflow e Ort)RA
F B (47,760) (3,700) 34,039 (9,684)
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)

Additional financial information in respect of Yunchi
Port Co is disclosed as follows, which 62.366% of its
interests has been consolidated and included in the
financial information of Yichang Port Group as
disclosed above:

53. EEWE ﬂ*‘ﬁﬁ% ENFRE

BERAEMBE QR ZEING I E B
T BEPHG2366% 2B
AERBEREEBSBEB W EXH
BUBERNA:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Results of Yunchi Port Co: E BN A EAE
Revenue I A 49,391 41,979
Profit for the year attributable to owners Z B 2% G A JE(5FE % 7
of the entity 114 4,791
Profit for the year, attributable to UTATEREEE }137'1 ol
— parent of the entity —ZEB N 71 2,988
— non-controlling interests —%ESA‘ETE‘EZ?H & 2
holding the entity 43 1,803
114 4,791
Other comprehensive income (expense), LA™ A = & {k £ b 2 A
attributable to (A%)
— parent of the entity —ZEBZ8RA 28,519 (16,590)
— non-controlling interests —RHEZERBZIFERER
holding the entity 17,210 (10,012)
45,729 (26,602)
Total comprehensive income (expense) LA TN ATEMZEIA (B)
attributable to 48
— parent of the entity —ZERE A 28,590 (13,602)
— non-controlling interests —RE%ES Z éH & #E 2
holding the entity 17,253 (8,209)
45,843 (21,811)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IR R 2 IR
interests 1,900 —
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HZE2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 53. X EfBAR HBEATIARE
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES EEER (FE)
(CONTINUED)
(b) (&)
(b) (Continued)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial position: BBk R
Non-current assets FERBEE 568,151 487,029
Current assets REBEE 64,790 51,067
Current liabilities REBARE (78,844) (68,535)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (43,742) —
Equity attributable to owners of the REBBEAZEMER
entity 510,355 469,561
Equity attributable to AT ATEEREZ
— parent of the entity — BB AR 318,288 292,847
— non-controlling interests —RHEBEZERZIFERER
holding the entity 192,067 176,714
510,355 469,561
Cash flows: BERE -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4 % EE) 2 IR & A F 58 15,829 7,837
Net cash outflow from investing activities ¥ & & &) 2 I8 & i 1 )5 58 (34,829) (1,528)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing F& /E& 2 H &R A CRH)
activities %58 16,948 (2,280)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4 [ o piy 8 87 28 2,707 (1,451)
Net cash inflow REMAFE 655 2,578
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)
(b) (Continued)
notes:

264 enly

0]

(ii)

Being the non-controlling interests directly holding 49%
interests in Yichang Port Group, which the disclosure
information includes its proportionate share of Yichang Port
Group's 62.366% interests in Yunchi Port Co and 80%
interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned subsidiary as
consolidated by Yichang Port Group. Non-controlling
interests directly holding 37.634% interests in Yunchi Port
Co and 20% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yichang Port Group have been disclosed under
the name of entity “Yunchi Port Co” and “Individually
immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests” of
the same table respectively.

The financial information of Yichang Port Group has
consolidated and included its 62.366% interests in Yunchi
Port Co and 80% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-
owned subsidiary. The relevant disclosure information about
the non-controlling interests holding the entity for Yichang
Port Group represents the financial information of Yichang
Port Group attributable to the non-controlling interests
directly holding 49% interests in Yichang Port Group.

PYI Corporation Limited 2018 Annual Report
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

(0)

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates
indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2018

and 2017 are as follows:

Name of associate

Place of
incorporation/

registration

Issued and
fully paid
up capital/

registered capital

53. T EfBAR BEATIRS
EHEER(E)

el

© ARBHEBAEZARAEIEZHE

NAEIAR2018F N 201763 A31H 7 5
BT

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable

to the Group Principal activities

AEBERES BT
AL BRATRBE RE/EMREX
BERNAEE o i it B B GEfE A BOL FTEEHK
2018 2017
% %
Paul Y. Engineering Group British Virgin HK$122,055,900 48.23 48.23 Investment holding in
Limited Islands ordinary shares companies engaged in
REZXEFEERRAA EERLHS 122,055,900 T provision of comprehensive
Egilidiian) engineering and property-
related services
REZEBRRUERHEZE
IRRYMEMEBEREZ
NG
Jiangyin Sunan International The PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. registered capital BO2E
IR EHE R S EATEE (note below)
BRAA A R #400,000,0007C
A ER
(Fxhat)
Nantong Port Group Limited The PRC RMB966,004,400 — 45 Port operation
HASDEEEAERAA s registered capital  (Note 43) BOLE
(note below) (Hf#£43)
A B 966,004,400 7T
AEAT & A
(Fxhat)

note: Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

Mt WERRBFIEERLEDLE -
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HZ2018F3A31HILFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

266 e

(

(d)

CONTINUED)

March 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Name of joint venture registration

53.

Particulars of the Company’s joint ventures at 31

Fully paid

registered capital

TERBE QT k&

ERREN (B

BE

el

KRR ZHEDENR20184F &2017
FIANHZFHFBHOT

(d)

Percentage
of registered
capital attributable

to the Group Principal activities

EMRL rEBERL
EEDLELR o it 26 EHEEMEEL HMEXEINL FEEK
2018 2017
% %
WIEBBEEARDA The PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 Investment holding
Hh registered capital REER
(note below)
AR #53,000,0007T
(Fxhst)
MM EsERHE AT AR AR The PRC RMB 10,000,000 50 50 Property holding
h registered capital BEME

note: Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

(note below)

A E#10,000,0007T
i E AR
(Fxhat)

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To provide details
of other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in excessive length
of particulars.

"
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Financial Summary

PR

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A31HLFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FH&T FBT FHERT
RESULTS 4
Revenue WA 998,652 523,557 488,052 553,977 624,400
Profit (loss) before taxation & %% gy 7] (& 8) 318,299 331,849 (474,228) (22,701) 714,220
Taxation 18 (182,360) (203,434) 112,695 (1,318) (212,461)
Profit (loss) for the year FERN(EE) 135,939 128,415 (361,533) (24,019) 501,759
Attributable to: FEAL -
Owners of the Company KRABEAR A 85,586 86,028 (297,902) (34,143) 477,390
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR B = 50,353 42,387 (63,631) 10,124 24,369
135,939 128,415 (361,533) (24,019) 501,759
At 31 March
M3A31H8
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET THExT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets wEE 9,097,182 9,431,923 8,425,813 7,781,556 8,119,334
Total liabilities A= (3,590,572) (3,879,350) (3,302,658) (2,972,950) (2,506,542)
5,506,610 5,552,573 5,123,155 4,808,606 5,612,792
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to KRR AEAZ
owners of the Company JFE 1 HE 7% 4,922,674 4,844,034 4,299,576 4,009,174 4,711,814
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR BE = 583,936 708,539 823,579 799,432 900,978
5,506,610 5,552,573 5,123,155 4,808,606 5,612,792

mt) REEBEER AR 2018 Fif
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Particulars of Principal Properties

TEYERFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWME
Group's
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
rEH
NEREE BRAR HH Frit #E s
Nantong International Trade Center with Rented for hotel Leasehold with 100%
gross floor area of about 6,000 sqg m operation medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, 8 1 FHEERS
Jiangsu Province, the PRC B JE 58
BT & E A ™) 588 5%
FEEBERE SR
FESETH A 496,000 F 75 K
Commercial shops with gross floor area Rented for Leasehold with 51%
of about 5,000 sg m commercial use medium term
169 Yanjiang Road, Wujiagang District, o AR 1 hHRERE
Yichang City, Hubei Province, the PRC [EESEES
REVRILE EE MR R EE T RE1695%
7 & 12 5L 18 495,000 F 75 2K
0.88 sq km land located at the west of the outer Undetermined Leasehold with 75%
gate of Yangkon Town, Rudong County, use long term
Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC i RORTE R & RHEIHEHERAE
W BT £ & ma dm T 40 R B ¥ DR AN P RN
088 F A AE i
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER BEDREYE
DEVELOPMENT
Estimated
Stage of completion Group
Location and area Existing use  completion date interest
fh &t rEE
NEREE RERAR 7E B B& BR S5 R B 8 FRrit &
2 sq km land under development Undetermined  Land leveling March 2020 75%
located at the west of the use stage 20203 A
outer gate of Yangkou Town, HMARERSE THTFEEER

Rudong County, Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

BT A F B AR O0F O SE SN A Al
2 RERES LI
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Corporate Information

NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Managing Director

Lau Tom Ko Yuen

Executive Directors

Sue Ka Lok
Wu Yan Yee

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Shu Kin
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

Remuneration Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Leung Chung Ki

Nomination Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen

Sue Ka Lok

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

Chan Kai Ki

Share Repurchase Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen

BAUFHITES
foe 6 B2
EBE

RN

PRI ER (£ &)
=R
RINE

REZES

BRI (£ /E)
25 R
R R 2

R
CREAREZRERE
B ()

(3 £

RINE

B

BROEBERSS

BRI (£ /E)
2= R
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Corporate Information

NEEH

COMPANY SECRETARY

Chan Kai Ki

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Chan Kai Ki
Wong Yiu Hung
(Alternate to Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Chan Kai Ki)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (China) Co., Ltd

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Rudong Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
OCBC Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Bank of East Asia Limited

Wuhan Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd
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FEERRIT
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Corporate Information

NEEH

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

JC Master Law Offices (PRC)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Stevenson, Wong & Co. (Hong Kong)
Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co. (Hong Kong)

FINANCIAL ADVISERS

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited
KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consultants (Shenzhen) Limited

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES ADMINISTRATORS

BOCI Securities Limited
(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;,
Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

33/F, Paul Y. Centre
51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2831 8328
Fax: +852 2372 0641

EEEB

FEREMELR (A REZ)
TR EH AT (FE)
BRERERMT(EE)
EEXEERMEB(FE)
RERGEREMEB(FE)

Bt % B S

EEVBEMERAR
KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited
EEXEBEHFAORY)BRAF

ROO#BBTEZERA

TRERESBR QA
(ROBEFE —REA
BIRENE —EHEA)

= it ik

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

TERERMH

B

NBEEIE

G B 7851 5%
RERFEFL3IZE
T 55 : +85228318328
{5 H 1 +852 2372 0641
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Corporate Information

NEEH

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

WWW.pyicorp.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Frankfurt Stock Exchange
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PYW

BROBFERER

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BREOBFEERDE
FEWERBERA A
BE

EFRNER183%
B2

A ut

WWW.pyicorp.com

B 40 1K 5%
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VR B 5O AR AR AP
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PYW



el

" E# K ER 2 F
PYI Corporation Limited
(REFERMR 2 R AR)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

EENEEEEREE 51 FIREREHL 33
33/F, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

&4 Tel 1 +852 28318328

{E 5 Fax:+852 2372 0641

WWW.pyicorp.com
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